CORPORATE
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 12th December, 2017

at 6.30 pm

Room 102, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street,
London E8 1EA

Committee Membership

Clir Barry Buitekant

Clir Jessica Webb (Chair)

Clir Susan Fajana-Thomas (Vice-Chair)

Clir Katie Hanson, Clir Christopher Kennedy
Clir Michael Levy, Clir Nick Sharman

Clir Vincent Stops, Clir lan Sharer

Clir Will Brett, Clir Sally Mulready

Clir Laura Bunt, Clir Mete Coban

CliIr Clare Potter, Clir M Can Ozsen

Tim Shields ggg'ta:tl:(hat ]
. . iy u
Chief Executive Governance Services Officer

Tel: 020 8356 6279
Email: Rabiya.khatun@hackney.gov.uk

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting




AGENDA

Tuesday, 12th December, 2017

ORDER OF BUSINESS

| Item No | Page No
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations Of Interest - Members To Declare As Appropriate
3 Consideration Of Minutes Of The Previous Meeting 1-6
4 Revised Planning Sub-committee Procedure 7-14
5 Planning Authority Monitoring Report 2017 15-136
6 Regulatory Services - Regulatory Services' Service Plan Update | 137 - 224
7 Work Programme 2017/18 225 - 226
8 Any Other Business Which In The Opinion Of The Chair Is

Urgent




Access and Information

Location

Hackney Town Hall is on Mare Street, bordered by Wilton Way and Reading Lane,
almost directly opposite Hackney Picturehouse.

Trains — Hackney Central Station (London Overground) — Turn right on leaving the
station, turn right again at the traffic lights into Mare Street, walk 200 metres and look
for the Hackney Town Hall, almost next to The Empire immediately after Wilton Way.

Buses 30, 48, 55, 106, 236, 254, 277, 394, D6 and W15.

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the
Town Hall.

Induction loop facilities are available in the Committee Rooms and Council Chamber

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the
side to the main Town Hall entrance.

Copies of the Agenda

The Hackney website contains a full database of meeting agendas, reports and
minutes. Log on at: www.hackney.gov.uk

Paper copies are also available from Governance Services whose contact details are
shown on page 1 of the agenda.

Council & Democracy- www.hackney.gov.uk

The Council & Democracy section of the Hackney Council website contains details
about the democratic process at Hackney, including:

Mayor of Hackney

Your Councillors

Cabinet

Speaker

MPs, MEPs and GLA
Committee Reports
Council Meetings
Executive Meetngs and Key Decisions Notice
Register to Vote
Introduction to the Council
Council Departments



http://www.hackney.gov.uk/
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/mayor-hackney.htm
http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.asp?bcr=1
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/cabinet.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-speaker.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/local-mps-meps-gen-info.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-mayor-cabinet-councillors.htm
http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.asp?GL=1&bcr=1
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/elections-electoral-register.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-council-introduction.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/xc-departments.htm

RIGHTS OF PRESS AND PUBLIC TO REPORT ON MEETINGS

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press
and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees,
through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media
providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the
person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting.

Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any
time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from
which all recording must take place at a meeting.

The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear
and record the meeting. If those intending to record a meeting require any other
reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of
the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so.

The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting. Anyone
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or
may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from
any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting;
interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be
filmed.

All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they
have objections to being visually recorded. Those visually recording a meeting are
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not
wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease
recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.

If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public
are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the
proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt
information is under consideration.

Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted.



ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS

Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council,
the Mayor and co-opted Members.

This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring
interests. However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an
interest in a particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact:

e The Director of Legal
e The Legal Adviser to the committee; or
e Governance Services.

If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.

1. Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on

the agenda or which is being considered at the meeting?

You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:

i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the
Register of Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone
living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner;

il relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the Register
of Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as
if they were your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or

ii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner,
or anyone living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner.

2. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the

agenda you must:

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant
agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules
regarding sensitive interests).

ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being
discussed. You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst
discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter. In
addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision.

iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or
Standards Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the
meeting. If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your
involvement, such as whether you can only be present to make representations,
provide evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote on the
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest.



3. Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on

the agenda which is being considered at the meeting?

You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if:

i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or
in another capacity; or

ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in
supporting.

4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda

you must:

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant
agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

il. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that
contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under
consideration relating to the item in which you have an interest.

iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence
matter under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained
a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee. You
cannot stay in the room or public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes
place and you cannot vote on the matter. In addition, you must not seek to
improperly influence the decision. Where members of the public are allowed to
make representations, or to give evidence or answer questions about the matter
you may, with the permission of the meeting, speak on a matter then leave the
room. Once you have finished making your representation, you must leave the
room whilst the matter is being discussed.

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s
dispensation procedure you may remain in the room. If dispensation has been
granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can
only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are
able to fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a non
pecuniary interest.

Further Information

Advice can be obtained from Suki Binjal, Interim Director of Legal on 020 8356 6234
or email suki.binjal@hackney.gov.uk



mailto:Yinka.Owa@hackney.gov.uk

Agenda Item 3
Hackney

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 30TH OCTOBER, 2017

Councillors Present: Councillor Jessica Webb in the Chair

Clir Susan Fajana-Thomas (Vice-Chair),

Clir Katie Hanson, Clir Christopher Kennedy,
ClIr Nick Sharman, Clir Vincent Stops,

Clir Sally Mulready, Clir Clare Potter and

Clir M Can Ozsen

Apologies: Councillor Michael Levy, Councillor lan David
Sharer, Councillor Will Brett, Councillor Laura Bunt
and Councillor Mete Coban

Also in attendance Clir Caroline Selman
Clir Carole Williams

Officers in Attendance: Dan Paul (Head of Human Resources and Electoral
Services) , Seamus Adams (Head of Parking and
Markets Service) and Gerry McCarthy (Head of
Community Safety, Enforcement and Business
Regulations)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Levy, Sharer, Brett, Bunt
and Coban.

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - MEMBERS TO DECLARE AS
APPROPRIATE

2.1 There were no declarations of interest.
3 CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 March 2017
were agreed as a correct record.

3.2 Matters Arising

3.2.1 Corporate Committee reports

The Chair reported that since the previous meeting she had written to the Chief
Executive requesting a meeting with the Chair, Vice-Chair and Councillor Sharman to
discuss the issues raised concerning the contents of Corporate Committee reports.
The Chair advised that the Chief Executive had indicated that he would be willing to
hold a meeting only with the Chair and Vice Chair.

Page 1




Monday, 30th October, 2017

3.2.2 Construction waivers
Councillor Hanson sought clarification regarding the progress made on publishing the
list of construction waivers on the Council’s website and requested an update.

Actioned: Ashraful Haque

With regards to the Geographical Information System (GIS) layer on the database,
unfortunately we are still in the process of migrating to a new database which will
allow us to complete the Bl update. We will need to update the system so it works with
the Bl model. Once this has been finalised, we will then need to discuss with ICT
about the mapping. However, as you can imagine there are always delays to such
things and we are already behind schedule with the migration. Butl| have put a
provisional target date of end of Q4 to have the system ready. | will update you once
we have the system ready.

4 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2018/19

4.1 Dan Paul introduced the report relating to the draft annual pay statement for
Chief Officer Pay for 2018/19 and advised that there was a legal requirement to
publish the pay policy under the Localism Act. This statement would have to be
approved by Council before 31 March 2018.

4.2 Mr Paul summarised the contents of the report including the pay multiples in
2015/16 and 2016/17 and stated that the increase in the Chief Executive’s pay in
2016/17 had been unique and was the result of 7 elections including 4 by-elections or
referenda being held during this financial year.

4.3  The reduction in median total pay and median total earnings had resulted from
the TUPE transfer of Hackney Homes employees to the Council. The median pay in
future would not reach the previous level achieved in 2015/16 as the TUPE employees
had proportionally more employees at lower grades.

4.4 In response to a question from Councillor Hanson, Mr Paul confirmed that the
Localism Act required information relating to the Chief Executive pay to be published.

4.5 Councillor Sharman asked if the Council monitored gender and ethnic minority
pay and whether this information could be incorporated into this report. Mr Paul stated
that from April 2018 it would be a legal requirement to publish data on gender and
ethnic minority pay gaps. The Council currently held data relating to the workforce
gender, ethnicity and disability and other groups but this data could not be published
in this report until local authorities had agreed a format to ensure that the data would
be comparable in the future.

4.6 Councillor Mulready enquired whether the Council had a breakdown of the
disabled employees in top tier management and the additional support they received.
Councillor Williams confirmed that the Council provided additional support for staff
with disabilities and the Council published information relating to its workforce, which
could be circulated to members following the meeting.

4.7 The Chair sought clarification on whether the Council would be publishing its
pay data relating to gender, ethnic minority, disabled and other groups. Councillor

Page 2



Monday, 30th October, 2017
Williams indicated that the Council would be reporting on gender pay gap in 2018 and
then planned to publish the pay data for ethnic minorities and other groups.

RESOLVED to agree the Pay Policy Statement and recommend Council approve
it.

Actioned: Dan Paul
‘The information that the Council currently publish pertaining to its workforce is
available at https://www.hackney.gov.uk/knowing-our-workforce

We will be going further in 2018 to add pay gap data to this. We are progressing the
gender pay gap information, and have already planned to follow this with ethnicity pay
gap data. As requested by the Committee, we will then continue with this to roll it out
to other characteristics.’

5 HIGHWAYS OBSTRUCTION AND ENFORCEMENT: TABLES AND CHAIRS
- VERBAL REPORT

5.1  Seamus Adams provided a verbal report relating to the enforcement of tables
and chairs on the public highway and advised that the Council recognised the issue of
tables and chairs being an obstruction on the public highway. However, it was also
necessary to balance enforcement with business growth in the borough.

5.2 Mr Adams advised that with the planned improvements to the IT systems and
service this would allow officers from Parking to access street trading licences and
conditions and also premises licensing conditions. Any breaches of the premises
licence would be reported to the Environmental Enforcement Team. The licensable
area would be shown on the street trading licence to encourage operators to remain
within their designated area at the front of the premises. The improved systems would
enable the service to address this issue more robustly in the future.

5.3 Councillor Stops stated that some traders were not displaying their street
trading licences in shop windows, which was a breach of their licensing condition. He
added that the footpath requirement for a minimum of 1.2 metres clear of any
obstruction was not appropriate for some footpaths especially for narrow and busy
footpaths and when using buggies. Mr Adams indicated that two enforcement officers
visited shops in the borough to ensure that shops complied with their licence. He
explained the footpath access requirements and although enforcement action had
improved the increase in the growth of café culture had led to an increase in street
furniture. It was stressed that it was necessary to balance business needs with public
highway safety and Mr Adams was confident that as the service took a pro-active
approach to address this issue the improvements would be visible. The service was
also changing the licence to show the licenced area on the licence and this process
would be more transparent for all parties and enforcement would be easier. Councillor
Stops indicated that he would also like a written response to the concerns that he had
circulated prior to the meeting.

5.4  Clir Mulready expressed concern at the building material and street furniture
blocking footpaths, which were dangerous and could potentially cause accidents area
especially in Church Street and Stoke Newington. Mr McCarthy stated that
enforcement officers had taken action to remove building material from streets but it
was a challenge to identify the owner. With limited resources operations had to be

Page 3


https://www.hackney.gov.uk/knowing-our-workforce

Monday, 30th October, 2017
targeted in order to address this issue. Councillor Mulready sought clarification
regarding the enforcement process and Mr McCarthy advised that the process
consisted of a verbal warning, followed by written warning and final written warning
before any enforcement action was taken. The warnings allowed the trader with
opportunities to comply with the condition and further breaches of licensing conditions
would result in enforcement action.

5.5 In response to a question regarding A-boards, Mr McCarthy said that a zero
tolerance policy had been taken to tackle the issue of A-boards on public highways
and a breach would include issuing a warning and then a written warning and then
seizure of the board. He added that most owners complied with the warning and
removed the A boards immediately.

5.6 The Chair indicated that this subject matter was of particular interest to
members and requested that a report be submitted annually on furniture blocking the
public highway in public realm.

RESOLVED that the verbal report be noted and annual report to be submitted to
future Committee meetings.

Actioned: Seamus Adams

Response to the points raised by the corporate committee regarding the enforcement
of shop front street trading licence terms and conditions within the borough by the
council’s markets & street trading service.

Monitoring and licence display

In respect of licences being permanently displayed in shop windows, the markets
service have dedicated inspectors who specifically oversee the effective management
and delivery of shop front licences. Throughout each week these inspectors attend
businesses who trade from the front of their premises. Visits are carried out on a
regular basis to ensure valid licences are in place and that trading activity is compliant
with our terms and conditions. This includes checks to ensure that licences are
correctly displayed prominently in the front window or door of the premises. In
addition, visits are also carried out on a reactive basis where reports of licence
infringements have been received.

Following recent feedback about the display of licences in shop front windows, the
service is currently redesigning the licence to accommodate a schematic drawing of
the licenced area on the licence itself. Additionally the licence will clearly state that it
must be on display prominently in the front window or door of the premises along with
any licence restrictions or special conditions noted where relevant such as times of
operation.

This piece of work should be completed by February 2018 making the process more
transparent for all involved, enabling the service to enforce regulation 3.1 (stated
below) more rigorously:
¢ 3.1 - A copy of the shop front trading licence must be displayed in the window
of the premises outside which trading is permitted. The copy of the licence is
to be displayed so as to be clearly visible and legible from the street.

Enforcement process

Page 4



Monday, 30th October, 2017
All correspondence and action taken by council inspectors in relation to these visits is
documented in a database held by the markets service and managed through the
standardised formal warning process. This process consists of a verbal warning, a
written warning and final written warning before action is taken to revoke the licence.
Further licence breaches are then escalated to the environmental enforcement team
to progress with formal action in the form of a PACE interview and fixed penalty
notices. Continued infringements ultimately result in prosecution proceedings as seen
in the current case of Hackney vs L&G Disposables.

Shop front trading applications - suitability assessment
Market & street trading Officers issue shop front licences by following the process in
line with the current street trading regulations. This process does not require
consultation with Streetscene or TFL about the size of shop front trading areas.
Applications received for a shop front trading licence are followed up by an inspector
who conducts a site visit to assess the premises’ suitability for shop front trading which
includes taking physical measurements. A decision is made based on the prevailing
street trading regulations which presently require a minimum width of 1.2m to the
nearest street furniture as a standard condition laid out in Regulation 4.2 (below):

e 4.2 - A minimum of 1.2m clear of any obstruction shall be maintained for safe

access to and egress from the premises to which the licence relates

Officers may refuse an application or place conditions before granting a licence, for
example in locations with very high pedestrian footfall on busy thoroughfares. These
locations may require an increased distance from the premises to the nearest street
furniture of 1.5m or 2m to ensure the free movement of pedestrians, wheelchair users
and push chairs & prams etc.

6 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
6.1 Members expressed their dissatisfaction at the quality of reports presented at
meetings of the Corporate Committee and the Committee’s role and areas of work.
The Chair indicated that it was now necessary to review the annual work programme
and the terms of reference.

6.2  Councillor Potter commented that the Committee had not received the Planning
Authority Monitoring (AMR) Report 2016, which had been scheduled for July 2017.

6.3 Councillor Selman invited members to attend a Members’ Briefing on 7th
November 2017.

Stephen Rix undertook to circulate the Committee’'s terms of reference so that
members could understand the areas of work covered by the Committee.

RESOLVED to note the work programme.
Actioned: Stephen Rix
The terms of reference and area of work was circulated following the meeting.

7 ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR IS
URGENT

7.1 There was no other urgent business.

Page 5



Monday, 30th October, 2017

Duration of the meeting: 6.30 - 8.00 pm
Rabiya Khatun

Governance Services
020 8356 6279

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 4

&= Hackney

Revised Planning Sub-Committee Procedure

CORPORATE COMMITTEE CLASSIFICATION:
MEETING DATE 2017/18
Open
12 December 2017
If exempt, the reason will be listed in the
main body of this report.

WARD(S) AFFECTED

All Wards

GROUP DIRECTOR

Tim Shields, Chief Executive's

Page 7



1.1

1.2

41

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

This report is presented to the Corporate Committee for a decision regarding
corporate governance.

Approval is sought for revisions to the procedure for meetings of the Planning
Sub-committee.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Corporate Committee is recommended to:

Approve the revised procedure for meetings of the Planning Sub-
committee attached to this report at Appendix A.

REASONS FOR DECISION

To ensure that the business of the Planning Sub-committee is determined
efficiently and effectively in particular when a planning application to be
determined by the Sub-committee has been submitted by a member of the
Council.

Making the proposed changes to the procedure relating to planning
applications submitted by members of the Council will ensure that the duty on
the Council to act fairly is discharged by balancing the right of parties to speak
and answer questions about a planning application with the rule that decision
makers must not be biased towards one particular party when taking
decisions.

BACKGROUND

The procedure followed by the Planning Sub-committee has been revised to
clarify the steps that will be followed at meetings of the same in particular in
respect of planning application submitted by members of the Council as the
existing procedure is not clear on how the consideration of such applications
by the Sub-committee should be dealt with.

Policy Context
The revised Planning Sub-committee procedure will assist lawful and fair
decision making regarding planning applications pursuant to the Council’s

local development plan documents for the development and use of land in the
Borough of Hackney.

Page 8



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

Equality Impact Assessment

The proposed revisions to the existing procedure for the Planning Sub-
committee will not impact on the Council’s equality duties regarding the
elimination of unlawful discrimination, harassments and victimisation; the
advancement of equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it; and the fostering of
good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it as a party’s attendance at meetings of the
Planning Sub-committee, and their ability to speak at such meetings, including
members of the Council, will remain unchanged.

Sustainability
N/A.
Consultations

There is no statutory obligation to consult on procedures and protocols for
Committees and Sub-committees. Officers have consulted with the Chair of the
Planning Sub-committee who has confirmed his acceptance of the revised
procedure for the Planning Sub-committee.

Risk Assessment

Revising the procedure followed by the Planning Sub-committee to ensure that
the Council discharges its duty to act fairly will assist the Council avoid legal
challenges.

COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE
RESOURCES

The revised procedure for meetings of the Planning Sub-committee is noted,
and there are no direct notable financial implications emanating from this report.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL

The Council may arrange for the discharge of its functions by a committee or
sub-committee and decide the procedure to be followed at the meetings of the
same under section 101 and 99 of the Local Government Act 1972.

The Council has delegated decisions regarding planning applications to the
Planning Sub-committee and officers as set out in Part Il of its Constitution.

The terms of reference for the Corporate Committee provide that it shall appoint
a Planning Sub-committee and approve its terms of reference, procedures and
protocols and so the Corporate Committee is authorised to approve the
attached revised Planning Sub-committee procedure.

Page 9



APPENDICES
Appendix 1 - Revised procedure

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None.

Report Author

Justin Farley

Solicitor

020 8356 2778
Justin.Farley@hackney.gov.uk

Comments of the
Corporate Director of

James Newman
Head of Finance

Corporate Director of
Legal, HR and Regulatory
Services

Finance and Resources 020 8356 5154
James.Newman@hackney.gov.uk
Comments of the Stephen Rix

Head of Litigation & Interim Head of Commercial
Deputy Monitoring Officer

020 8356 6122

Stephen.Rix@hackney.gov.uk

Page 10



mailto:Justin.Farley@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:James.Newman@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:Stephen.Rix@hackney.gov.uk

Appendix

Attending Meetings of the Planning Sub-Committee

Introduction

The majority of planning applications for extensions to a home, new shop fronts,
advertisements and similar minor development, are decided by Planning Officers.

The Planning Sub-Committee generally makes the decisions on larger planning
applications that:

* may have a significant impact on the local community; and
« are recommended for approval by the Planning Officer.

Planning Sub-Committee members use these meetings to make sure they have all the
information they need and hear both sides before making a decision.

The Planning Sub-Committee

The Planning Sub-Committee is made up of Councillors from all political parties. One
of the Councillors is the Planning Sub-Committee Chair. When making decisions the
Planning Sub-Committee will always be:

* open about how they came to a decision,
« fair when making a decision, and
* impartial by not favouring one side over another.

Meetings are held in public at Hackney Town Hall and usually start at 6.30pm on the
first Wednesday of the  month. Agendas are available at
http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1 or from
the Committee Officer a week before the meeting.

All Planning Sub-Committee members will keep an open mind regarding planning
applications. The meetings are necessarily formal because the Chair and members
want to listen to everyone and have the chance to ask questions so that they can fully
understand the issues.

Those speaking, either for or against a planning application, are generally given five
minutes to explain their concerns/why they believe the application has merit. If there
is more than one person for or against a planning application the five minutes is to be
divided between all the persons wishing to speak or a spokesperson is to be
nominated to speak on behalf of those persons. The Chair will help groups speaking
on the same item to coordinate their presentations.

Page 11


http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1

How the Meeting Works

The Planning Sub-Committee will normally consider agenda items in turn. If there are
a lot of people for an item the Chair might change the order of the agenda items to
consider an item earlier.

At the beginning of each meeting the Chair will explain how the meeting works and
what can and cannot be taken into account by Planning Sub-committee members
when making decisions. The procedure followed at each meeting is set out below:

The Chair welcomes attendees to the meeting and explains the procedure the
meeting will follow,

Apologises received,
Members declare any interests in an item on the agenda,
Minutes of previous Planning Sub-committees are considered/approved,

The Planning Sub-committee will consider any proposal/questions referred to
the Sub-committee by the Council’s monitoring officer,

The Chair asks the Planning Officer to introduce their report/recommendation
to the Planning Sub-Committee. The Planning Officer will also inform Planning
Sub-committee members of any relevant additional information received after
the report was published,

Registered objectors are given the opportunity to speak for up to five minutes,

Registered supporters and the applicant are given the opportunity speak for up
to five minutes,

Councillors who have registered to speak to object or in support are given the
opportunity to speak for up to five minutes. The registered objectors or
supporters as the case may be will be given the opportunity to speak for a
further five minutes in such circumstances to ensure equal time is given to all
parties,

Where the applicant is a Councillor they must leave the room after the Planning
Sub-committee members have asked them any questions of
clarification/discussions regarding an agenda item have been completed so that
members can consider and vote on the recommendation relating to the
Councillor’s planning application.

Planning Sub-committee members can ask questions of objectors and

supporters and ask Council officers for further clarification before considering a
Planning Officer’'s recommendation,

Page 12



Where Planning Sub-committee members have concerns regarding a planning
application that cannot be addressed to their satisfaction when considering the
application, the members can resolve to defer determining the planning
application until such time as their concerns can be addressed,

+ The recommendation, including any supplementary planning
conditions/obligations or recommendations proposed during the consideration
of an item by the Planning Sub-Committee members, is put to a vote. Where
an equal number of votes is cast for and against a recommendation the Chair
has a casting vote.

Decisions

Decisions of the Planning Sub-Committee relating to planning applications shall be
based on:

» National planning policies set out by Government,

* Regional strategy, the London Plan, set out by the Greater London Authority,

» Development plan documents, such as the Core Strategy, Development
Management Local Plan etc., and

« Other ‘material planning considerations’ such as the planning history of a site.

Non-planning considerations are not relevant to the Planning Sub-committee’s
decision making and should be disregarded by the Sub-Committee.

Speaking at the Meeting

If you have submitted a written representation to the Council in respect of a planning
application you can register to speak at the meeting at which the application is
considered by the Planning Sub-committee. To register to speak you should contact
the Committee Officer by phone on 020 8356 3338 or email
governance@hackney.gov.uk by 4.00pm on the working day before the meeting.

If you wish to present photographs or illustrative material at the meeting, notice of this
should be given as the consent of the Chair will be required. Please contact the
Committee Officer for more information.

Page 13


mailto:democraticservicesteam@hackney.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

&= Hackney

Planning Authority Monitoring Report 2017

CORPORATE COMMITTEE CLASSIFICATION:
MEETING DATE 2017/18
Open
12 December 2017
If exempt, the reason will be listed in the
main body of this report.

WARD(S) AFFECTED

All Wards

GROUP DIRECTOR

Kim Wright, Group Director, Neighbourhoods and Housing

Document Number: 18935837 P ag e l 5

Document Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



1.1

1.2

21

3.1

41

4.2

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

This report seeks approval of the Local Plan Authority Monitoring Report (AMR)
for 2017. The AMR provides monitoring information on spatial planning-related
activity for the financial years of 2015/16 and 2016/17 to inform and monitor
policy development and performance. It highlights the extent to which the
policies set out in the Local Plan (the Core Strategy 2010, the Development
Management Local Plan 2015, the Site Allocations Local Plan 2016, and
adopted area action plans) have achieved their objectives, using quantitative
indicators - for example it shows how planning policies have facilitated the
delivery of a large number of new homes and employment floorspace in the
Borough.

This AMR reports on two monitoring years covering from 13t April 2015 to 31st
March 2016 and 1st April 2016 to 315t March 2017. It provides analysis of the
effectiveness of policy. It does this primarily by reviewing the results of
developments which have completed, and planning applications permitted over
the last two years. It also aims to set out clear challenges and opportunities for
the new Local Plan 2033 (LP33) to address.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Corporate Committee is recommended:

To approve the Authority Monitoring Report 2017 (as set out in Appendix
1)

REASONS FOR DECISION

The production of a monitoring report is a statutory requirement as part of the
Council’s role as local planning authority.

BACKGROUND

The last AMR was approved by Corporate Committee in July 2016. This AMR
provides an update, reporting on two monitoring years up to March 2017.

Policy Context

The AMR report provides monitoring information on the performance of Local
Plan policies/policy documents and updates on planning-related activity and
planning decisions over the past two financial years.

It also reports on progress in new plan making (the implementation of
Hackney’s Local Development Scheme) and progress on Neighbourhood
Planning in the Borough. Overall this provides a clear and succinct evaluation
of policy for the financial years of 2015/16 and 2016/17.

Some key findings of the AMR are as follows:

Document Number: 18935837 P a_g e l 6

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



Housing

Key Points: Housing delivery was above target

Housing policy has been effective at delivering the homes needed by the
Borough, with 8790 new homes delivered or 132% of its target between
2012 and 2017. This housing supply is made up of conventional self-
contained homes which form the majority, as well as long-term empty
homes returning to use and non-conventional homes such as student
halls. Of the conventional supply, 35% of homes were in affordable
tenures, with over half of these in social rent. New housing has been
delivered across the borough but growth is focussed in north of the
borough and Shoreditch, in and around Dalston and in Hackney Central
A range of different size homes have been provided, broadly in line with
policy requirements; 26% of dwellings being 3 or more beds. In addition,
there were more 2-beds (38%) overall than 1-bed properties (36%).
The draft London Plan proposes a new housing target for Hackney of
1330 homes per annum. The existing target is 1599 home reflecting
previous analysis that we have a significant amount of approvals in the
pipeline to deliver over the next 5 years, but supply of new sites is less
certain beyond 2020. This also acknowledges the land required to meet
demand for employment space and community infrastructure, whilst
maintaining a high quality of design.

Housing affordability continues to decrease year-on-year in Hackney,
with the ratio of house prices to incomes almost doubling between 2008
and 2016 despite the great recession, with median prices reaching 16:1
with median earnings. On the most recent evidence, this means
planning policy would need to deliver 60% of all new housing as socially
rented to meet the needs of the borough.

Challenges: To respond to continued issues around housing affordability
for residents the Draft Local Plan 2033 sets out new policies — including
a policy to secure affordable housing on small sites for less than 11 units

Employment

Key Points: There are large amounts of new employment floorspace in
the pipeline and high levels of growth in new businesses within the
borough

Hackney has approved planning applications that if implemented would
provide a significant amount of new employment floorspace: a total of
around 195,000sgm net new space, mainly B1 (offices) class. This
would largely come forward within the borough’s Priority Employment
Areas, with Shoreditch topping the list with permissions that would
provide a net gain of 160,000 sgm of new B1 floorspace in this area.

The number of active enterprises, (businesses that had either turnover or
employment during 2014) within Hackney, has grown by 64% since

Document Number: 18935837 P ag e l 7

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



2009/10, faster than neighbouring boroughs and almost twice the inner
London average, creating increasing demand for floorspace.

The planning service has secured 7,558sqm of affordable workspace
since 2010 through S106 agreements.

There were 428 new hotel rooms completed in the reporting years and a
pipeline of 1785 hotel bedrooms, mostly in the south of the borough that
have received planning permission indicates a high level of economic
interest.

Overall, Priority Employment Areas (PEAs) gained a net 6,296sgm in
2015/16 -2016/17. This is against a recent a trend, with losses in PEAs in
the last 5 years totalling -9,814sgm. Taken in view of the broader picture
of employment losses, policies have been effective. Unprotected areas in
the rest of the borough recorded a loss of 23,000sqgm of B1-B8 floorspace
over the last five years.

There is likely to be continued pressure on employment floorspace in
competition with residential land values.

Challenge: To respond to these challenges the Draft Local Plan 2033 sets
out an approach to direct new employment development and better
protect against the loss of industrial floorspace losses in the future. This
has been further strengthened by new Article 4 Directions protecting
employment uses.

Retail and Town Centres

Key Points: Hackney has seen growth in retail and there is a strong
pipeline and high occupancy rates in all town and local centres in
Hackney.

Overall there has been an increase of 3760sqgm of retail (A1) space across
the borough in the reporting years, indicating positive growth in the
provision of this vital service.

The pipeline for town centres going forward is positive with a total of
10513sgm new floorspace expected from permitted developments.
Dalston, Hackney’s major town centre is expected to gain an addition
1410sgm of retail floorspace, Stoke Newington to gain 809sgm and
Hackney Central to lose 400sgm. An additional 89sqm of retail floorspace
has been permitted in Local Centres.

In terms of shopping centres, the primary frontages of Dalston, Hackney
Central and Stoke Newington High Street perform well, with 56%, 55%
and 60% of units respectively in retail use and with very low vacancy
levels. Primary frontages have an average of 57% of units in retail use
whilst secondary frontages average 43%.

The average vacancy rate in Local centres is 5%.

Despite changes to permitted development rights there have only been
small losses of A1 retail in Hackney Central (312sqm) and Stoke
Newington (825sgm) and Dalston has gained 722sgm of A1 floorspace.
Local Centres have seen a very small overall loss of 215sgqm over the

Document Number: 18935837 P a_g e l 8

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



same time period, although this varies by centre with a gain 300sgm in
Lower Clapton Road and a loss of 240sgm in Kingsland Road.

e Alarge amount of new A1/2/3 uses been approved in priority employment
areas, with a net increase of 6439sgm in 2015/16 and 2016/17. This has
been driven by employment-led policies which look for active frontages
combined with high levels of new development in these areas, where
relatively large sites make complete redevelopment more viable.

e Policies for the night time economy have had mixed results. Over the last
five years A3 uses have increased in the centres of Dalston (653sgm),
and Stoke Newington (407 sgm) but over the same period 10,075sgm of
A3 has come forward outside of town centres, notably in the Central
Activities Zone, Shoreditch PEA and Wenlock PEA.

e Over the last five years there has been no overall change in Hackney
Central, Stoke Newington and Finsbury Park town centres of A4 (drinking
establishments) floorspace, and an overall gain in Dalston of 279sgm.
There has been a loss of 3,428sgm.

Challenges: To respond to these challenges the Draft Local Plan 2033
sets out a strategy to manage growth in retail and town centre uses —with
growth focussed in Dalston and Hackney Central as the two major
centres. LP33 identifies Shoreditch as a Central Activities Zone (CAZ).
The extent of the CAZ frontages will be determined through Future
Shoreditch Area Action Plan.

Communities, Culture, Education and Health

Key Points: Planning and delivery of new primary schools been positive
in 2016.

e In2015/16 and 2016/17 there were net gains of 15,020sgm and 364sqm
respectively in D1 floorspace.

e Planning and delivery of new primary schools in the borough is positive,
with a total of 90 places in 2 new extensions to schools in 2016, enabling
provision of school places and a 5% buffer. Planning permission was
granted in 2016 for new schools at Nile Street and Tiger Way.

e Section 106 funded the following projects:

o Improvements to Shoreditch and Stoke Newington libraries

o Cardinal Pole Roman Catholic School received a much needed
internal work to consolidate 3 small areas into one large fit for
purpose library.

o The expansion of Woodberry Down Primary School from two to
three forms of entry. This work was completed in April 2017

Transport

Key Points: Cycling Parking provision has increased along with public
transport usage.

Document Number: 18935837 P ag e l 9

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



Passenger usage of Hackney’s railway stations continue to increase
year on year, with a total of 48.8 million entries/exits at stations in 2016.
An increase of 8.4 million entries/exits from the previous year.

Old Street and Shoreditch High Street stations recorded growths of
115% and 57% in 2015/16.

In 2015/16 and 2016/17, 87% of completed development were car free.
In 2015/16 on average, 2.03 car parking (disabled included) spaces were
delivered per scheme, a decrease of 1.07 per scheme since 2014/15.
However, this figure went up by to 14.5 car parking spaces (including
disable) per scheme in 2016/17, and this was mainly due to the completion
of two large projects (Woodberry Down Estate and the International
Broadcast Centre (IBC) on Waterden Road) which between them
delivered 971 car parking spaces. Cycle space provision has gone up by
almost 27% from 963 in 2014/15 to 1349 in 2015/16, and by almost 33%
in 2016/17 to 1993 in completed developments.

The Council is supportive of proposals for the Crossrail 2 rail project
linking North East and South West London, with a new station at Dalston
and has stressed the importance of an interchange there. The Council is
also supportive of a new station at Hackney Central on an eastern branch
and has made representations to Transport for London on all these
issues.

Challenges: There have been significant increases in London Overground
usage placing pressures on this service. The Draft Local Plan 2033
supports the case for Crossrail 2 (including an eastern spur) to improve
connectivity and facilitate growth.

Open Spaces Environment and Climate Change

Key points: Hackney has delivered improvements to open space with the
last two years

Planning obligations secured prior to the implementation of CIL have
been used to deliver the following improvements to open spaces:

o S106 contributions went towards improving De Beauvoir Square’s
play area. A second entrance was added to the play area to
provide an alternative exit point from the enclosed space. The
wooden edges to the squares rose beds have been replaced with
a metal edging eliminating future maintenance issues.

o The London Fields outdoor gym equipment had reached the end
of its life and was located in the children’s play area. Contributions
went towards replacing and expanding outdoor gym equipment in
a new more accessible location in London Fields.

o Contributions went towards improving and replacing play
equipment which had come to the ends of its life in Haggerston
Park.

o Improvements to Allens Gardens aimed at improving biodiversity.
The works include Owl Boxes, bat detectors, wildflower

Document Number: 18935837 P a_g e 2 O

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



pollinators and additional seating as well as an educational
program.
An additional two parks gained green flags between 2015/16 and
2016/17 for a total of 21. Furthermore, 88% of Sites of Importance for
Nature Conservation are in positive conservation management.

Heritage and Design

Key Points: Three sites previously on the heritage at risk register have
been restored.

Overall, the number of buildings on the Heritage at Risk register has
decreased by 3 sites or a reduction of around 9%, from 34-31 sites.
Leaving a total of 31 buildings still at risk in the borough. Three
conservation areas remain at risk (Dalston Lane West, Sun Street and
Mare Street), although Dalston Lane (West) recently had its
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan revised and is likely
to be removed from the register once a large development project within
the area is completed.

The Hackney Design Awards were held in September 2016, and
Woodberry Wetlands was crowned as the people’s choice winner.

6 tall buildings of 10 storeys or greater have been approved in 2015/16
and 2016/17; with an average height of 23 storeys - the tallest of which
was 33 storeys (1 — 17 Crown Place).

4 of 6 buildings approved were in schemes containing residential units,
indicating that tall buildings are primarily supported by high residential
values — however all developments contained a mix of uses.

Challenges: The Draft Local Plan 2033 informed by a borough-wide
characterisation study sets out an approach to ensure that heritage
assets can be protected while delivering housing and employment
floorspace at higher densities.

Document Number: 18935837 P ag e 2 1

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



4.2

4.3

4.4

Planning Performance

Key Points: Major targets in planning performance were met in 2015/16
and 2016/17. There has been a significant increase in number of planning
applications processed and planning performance agreements made
providing adequate revenue to support continued excellent performance.

In 2016/17, 84% of Major Planning Applications were determined in
accordance with agreed timescales, beating a target of 70%. A total of
37 major applications were processed.

80% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks, also beating
the target of 75%

88% of other applications were processed within their 8 week deadline,
beating a target of 80%

63% of appeals to planning decisions were dismissed. Though this was
below the 70% target but the number of appeals against decisions was
considerable higher (128) compared to the previous year where only 86
appeals were made.

52% of Planning Applications were validated within 5 days. This was
below target (80%).

In 2015/16, 64% of planning searches were carried out in 10 working
days, slightly below target (80%). However, the percentage increased to
87% for the first 3 quarters of 2016/17.

Building control increased their market share for certification by 3% from
34 — 37% of all developments in 2015/16. During 2016/17, their market
share dropped back to 34% - still this was below their target of 50%.
86% of building control applications were processed within 3 days in
2015/16, this increased by 1% to 87% in 2016/17 — well the target at
80%.

The number of site inspections undertaken within 1 day of request,
significantly above target (80%) at 93% and 91% for 2015/16 and
2016/17 respectively.

Equality Impact Assessment

The AMR will help feed into planning policies and help identify equality issues,
such as the proportion of Hackney residents with reasonable access to key
services by various modes of transport.

Sustainability

The AMR reports on the performance of sustainability policies that will be
revised as necessary if any issues arise.

Consultations

Consultation has been undertaken on chapters with the relevant service areas.

Document Number: 18935837 P a_g e 2 2

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



4.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Risk Assessment
There are no significant risks identified for the production of the AMR.

COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE
RESOURCES

This report requests the Corporate Committee to approve the Authority
Monitoring Report (AMR) for the reporting year 2015/16 and 2016/17.

The AMR in Appendix 1 provides financial and performance data for 2015/16 and
2016/17 on Planning related activity and decisions.

The financial data in the AMR is retrospective, and the future impact of activities
and planning policies monitored in the report, will be managed within the relevant
service capital and revenue budgets of the Council.

COMMENTS OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF LEGAL

Under Article 9.1.3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Council’'s Corporate
Committee is responsible among other things for maintaining oversight of the
Council’s planning functions.

Pursuant to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, local planning
authorities must prepare reports containing such information as is prescribed as
to the implementation of the Authority’s Local Development Scheme and the
extent to which the policies set out in the local development documents are being
achieved. The Authority Monitoring Report at appendix 1 has been prepared to
enable the Council to monitor its performance and in discharge of the statutory
obligation.

The Authority Monitoring Report must cover a period the authority considered
appropriate in the interest of transparency, beginning from the end of the period
of the last report, and which is not longer than 12 months. In discharging this
duty, Hackney’s AMR covers the period of 1 April 2015 to 31st March 2016 and
1 April 2016 to 31st March 2017.

Under section 35(4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the
local authority must make the Report available to the public.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 — Planning Authority Monitoring Report 2016 and 2017
BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Document Number: 18935837 P ag e 2 3

Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017



Report Author

Joshua Bwire, Strategic Policy
Joshua.Bwire@hackney.gov.uk
020 8356 3184

Comments of the Group
Director of Finance and
Corporate Resources

Philip Walcott, Group Accountant
Philip.walcott@hackney.gov.uk
020 8356 2396

Comments of the Interim
Director of Legal

Stephen Rix
Stephen.rix@hackney.gov.uk
020 8356 6122

Document Number: 18935837
Documen t Name: AMR 2017 Cover report to Corp Cttee Dec. 2017

Page 24



mailto:Joshua.Bwire@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.walcott@hackney.gov.uk

Hackney’s Local Plan

Authority Monitoring Report 2016 & 2017

The Planning Service

& Hackney



Page 26



London Borough of Hackney

Authority Monitoring Report 2016 & 2017

Strategic Policy
The Planning Service
2 Hillman Street
Hackney
London
E8 1FB

Page 27



Executive Summary

The AMR provides monitoring information on spatial planning-related activity for the financial years of
2015/16 and 2016/17 to inform and monitor policy development and performance. It highlights the extent to
which the policies set out in the Local Plan (the Core Strategy 2010, the Development Management Local
Plan 2015, the Site Allocations Local Plan 2016, and adopted area action plans) have been achieved, using
quantitative indicators - for example how planning policies have facilitated the delivery of a large number of
new homes over 2015/16 and 2016/17 and approval of large quantums of employment floorspace in the

Borough.

This AMR reports on two monitoring years covering from 15t April 2015 to 31st March 2016 and 15t April 2016
to 31st March 2017. The document begins with a brief summary of topic areas before providing in-depth

analysis on a range of areas, making use of both qualitative and quantitative data.

The AMR provides analysis of the effectiveness of policy and of the changing environment it is being applied
to in the borough. It does this primarily by reviewing the results of developments which have completed, and
planning applications permitted over the last two years. It also aims to set out any clear challenges and
opportunities for the new Local Plan, ‘LP33’. LP33 will be a new borough wide Local Plan. It will be the
strategic planning document which directs and guide development in the borough up to 2033. See:

https://www.hackney.gov.uk/LP33.

The AMR also reports on the collection and spend of the community infrastructure levy (CIL) and S106

obligations in accordance with government regulations.

Housing

Key Points: Housing Delivery was on target.

e Housing policy has been effective at delivering the homes needed by the Borough, with 8790 new
homes delivered or 132% of its target between 2012 and 2017. This housing supply is made up of
conventional self-contained homes which form the majority, as well as long-term empty homes
returning to use and non-conventional homes such as student halls. Of the conventional supply, 35%
of homes were in affordable tenures, with over half of these in social rent.

¢ New housing has been delivered across the borough but growth is focussed in north of the borough
and Shoreditch, in and around Dalston and in Hackney Central.

¢ Dwellings in the period have been delivered over a broad range of sizes, broadly in line with policy
requirements, with 26% of dwellings being 3 or more beds. In addition, there were more 2-beds (38%)

overall than 1-bed properties (36%).

Page 28


https://www.hackney.gov.uk/LP33

e The draft London Plan proposes a new housing target for Hackney of 1330 homes per annum. The
existing target is 1599 homes. This reflects previous analysis that we have a significant amount of
approvals in the pipeline to deliver over the next 5 years, but supply of new sites is less certain
beyond 2020.

¢ Housing affordability continues to decrease year-on-year in Hackney, with the ratio of house prices to
income almost doubling between 2008 and 2015 despite the great recession, with median prices
reaching 16:1 with median earnings. On the most recent evidence, this means planning policy would

need to deliver 60% of new housing as socially rented to meet the needs of the borough.

Challenges: To respond to continued issues around housing affordability for residents the
Draft Local Plan 2033 sets out new policies — including a policy to secure affordable housing

on small sites for less than 11 units.

Employment

Key Points: There are large amounts of new employment floorspace in the pipeline and high

levels of growth in new businesses within the borough.

¢ Hackney has approved planning applications that if implemented would provide a significant amount
of new employment floorspace: a total of around 195,000sgm net new space, mainly B1 (offices)
class. This would largely come forward within the borough’s Priority Employment Areas, with
Shoreditch topping the list with permissions that would provide a net gain of 160,000 sqm of new B1
floorspace in this area.

e The number of active enterprises, (businesses that had either turnover or employment during 2014)
within Hackney, has grown by 64% since 2009/10, faster than neighbouring boroughs and almost
twice the inner London average, creating increasing demand for floorspace.

e The planning service has secured 7,558sqm of affordable workspace since 2010 through S106
agreements.

o There were 428 new hotel rooms completed in the reporting years and a pipeline of 1785 hotel
bedrooms, mostly in the south of the borough that have received planning permission indicates a high
level of economic interest.

e Overall, Priority Employment Areas (PEAs) gained a net 6,296sgm in 2015/16 -2016/17. This is
against a recent a trend, with losses in PEAs in the last 5 years totalling -9,814sgm. Taken in view of
the broader picture of employment losses, policies have been effective - unprotected areas in the rest

of the borough recording a loss of 23,000sgm of B1-B8 floorspace,

Page 29



Challenges: To respond to these challenges the Draft Local Plan 2033 sets out an approach to direct

new employment development and better protect against the loss of industrial floorspace in the

future. This has been further strengthened by new Article 4 Directions protecting employment uses.

Retail and Town Centres

Key Points: Hackney has seen growth in retail and there is a strong pipeline and high occupancy

rates in all town and local centres in Hackney.

Overall there has been an increase of 3760sgm of retail (A1) space across the borough in the reporting
years.

The pipeline for town centres going forward is positive with a total of 10513sgm new floorspace
expected from development that has planning permission. Dalston, Hackney’s major town centre is
expected to gain an addition 1410sqgm of retail floorspace, Stoke Newington to gain 809sgm and
Hackney Central to lose 400sgm. An additional 89sgm of retail floorspace has been permitted in
Local Centres.

In terms of shopping centres, the primary frontages of Dalston, Hackney Central and Stoke Newington
High Street perform well, with 56%, 55% and 60% of units respectively in retail use and with very low
vacancy levels. Primary frontages have an average of 57% of units in retail use whilst secondary
frontages average 43%.

The average vacancy rate in Local centres was 5%.

Despite changes to permitted development rights there have only been small losses of A1 retail in
Hackney Central (312sgm) and Stoke Newington (825sqm) and Dalston has gained 722sgm of A1
floorspace. Local Centres have seen a very small overall loss of 215sgm over the same time period,
although this varies by centre with a gain 300sgm in Lower Clapton Road and a loss of 240sgm in
Kingsland Road.

A large amount of new A1/2/3 uses been approved in priority employment areas, with a net increase
of 6439sqm in 2015/16 and 2016/17. This has been driven by employment-led policies which look for
active frontages combined with high levels of new development in these areas, where relatively large
sites make complete redevelopment more viable.

Policies for the night time economy have had mixed results. Over the last five years A3 uses have
increased in the centres of Dalston (653sqm), and Stoke Newington (407 sgm) but over the same
period 10,075sgm of A3 has come forward outside of town centres, notably in the Central Activities
Zone, Shoreditch PEA and Wenlock PEA.

Over the last five years there has been no overall change in Hackney Central, Stoke Newington and
Finsbury Park town centres of A4 (drinking establishments) floorspace, and an overall gain in Dalston

of 279sgm. There has been a loss of 3,428sqm.

Page 30



Challenges: To respond to these challenges the Draft Local Plan 2033 will sets out a strategy to
manage growth in retail and town centre uses — with growth focussed in Dalston and Hackney Central
as the two major centres. LP33 identifies the need for a retail designation in Shoreditch linked to its
role as part of the Central Activities Zone (CAZ). The extent of the CAZ retail frontages will be
determined through Future Shoreditch Area Action Plan.

Communities, Culture, Education & Health

Key Points: Planning continues to secure funding through the Community Infrastructure levy and

Section 106 agreements.

e In 2015/16, the Council received a total of £7.3 million in Section 106 payments and signed
agreements worth a total of £14.4 million.

e In 2016/17, a total of £17.2 million in Section 106 payments was received, and signed agreements
worth a total of £23.2 million.

o Hackney’s CIL which was adopted in April 2015 received a total of £122k in 2015/16 and £6.64 million
in 2016/17 in CIL contributions.

e The borough also collected £6.4 million for the Mayoral CIL in 2015/16, and £4.4 million in 2016/17.

Transport

Key Points: Cycling Parking provision has increased along with public transport usage.

o There were a total of 48.8 million entries/exits at stations in Hackney in 2016, an increase of 8.4 million
entries/exits from the previous year.

e In2015/16 and 2016/17, 87% of completed development were car free.

e In 2015/16 on average, 2.03 car parking (disabled included) spaces were delivered per scheme, a
decrease of 1.07 per scheme since 2014/15.

¢ However, this figure went up by to 14.5 car parking spaces (including disable) per scheme in 2016/17,
and this was mainly due to the completion of two large projects (Woodberry Down Estate and the
International Broadcast Centre (IBC) on Waterden Road) which between them delivered 971 car
parking spaces. Cycle space provision has gone up by almost 27% from 963 in 2015 to 1349 and by
almost 33% in 2016/17 to 1993 in completed developments.

¢ Old Street and Shoreditch High Street stations recorded growths of 115% and 57% in just one year -
2015/16. Dalston Kingsland station is busier than Nottingham train station, and Hackney Central than

Ealing Broadway.

Page 31



e The Council is supportive of proposals for the Crossrail 2 rail project linking North East and South
West London, with a new station at Dalston and has stressed the importance of an interchange there.
The Council is also supportive of a new station at Hackney Central on an eastern branch and has

made representations to Transport for London on all these issues.

Challenges: There have been significant increases in London Overground usage placing
pressures on this service. The new Local Plan 2033 will need to consider how Crossrail 2 can

improve connectivity and facilitate growth.

Open Spaces, Environment and Climate
Change

Key points: Hackney, already the greenest inner London Borough has increased open space in the

borough over 2016/17, delivery of the Woodberry down nature reserve

¢ Hackney has 58 parks and green spaces totalling 282 hectares of open space, ranging from large
areas of Metropolitan Open Land at the Lee Valley Regional Park, which accounts for almost 40% of
the borough's open space, to pockets of grass by the side of roads.

e Out of 58 parks and open spaces, 21 have been awarded Green Flag status (as of 2017).

¢ Overall there has been a net loss of 1360sgm of publically accessible open space in Hackney 2015/17.

¢ Planning obligations secured prior to the implementation of CIL have been used to deliver the following
improvements to open spaces:

- Improvements to De Beauvoir Square’s play area. A second entrance was added to the play
area to provide an alternative exit point from the enclosed space. The wooden edges to the
squares rose beds have been replaced with a metal edging eliminating future maintenance
issues.

- The London Fields outdoor gym equipment had reached the end of its life and was located in
the children’s play area. Contributions went towards replacing and expanding outdoor gym
equipment in a new more accessible location in London Fields.

- Contributions went towards improving and replacing play equipment which had come to the
ends of its life in Haggerston Park.

An additional two parks gained green flags between 2015/16 and 2016/17 for a total of 21.
Furthermore, 88% of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation are in positive conservation

management.

Page 32



Heritage and Design

Key Points: Three sites previously on the heritage at risk register have been restored

Currently, there are 31 buildings still at risk in the borough on the Heritage at Risk register. Three
conservation areas remain at risk (Dalston Lane West, Sun Street and Mare Street), although
developments in the Dalston Lane West are likely to result in their removal from the list.

The Hackney design wards are held biannually, the last contest was held in September 2016 and
about 50 projects nominations were received. Out of the 16 schemes that were shortlisted in
September 2016, this year's independent judging panel selected 7 winners. The overall People's
Choice winner for the year was Woodberry Wetlands N16.

A total of 8 tall buildings were completed in Hackney between 2015/17 — two of which have a maximum
height of 40 and 50 storeys respectively (Land bounded by Curtain Road/Hewett Street/Great Eastern
Street/Fairchild Place/Plough Yard/Hearn Street, and Principal Place).

6 of 8 buildings completed were in schemes containing residential units, indicating that tall buildings
are primarily supported by high residential values. The other two buildings were hotels (non-residential

with bedrooms).

Challenges: The new Local Plan 2033 will need to consider how heritage assets can be protected

while delivering housing and employment floorspace at higher densities.

Planning Performance

Key Points: Major targets in planning performance were met in 2016/17. There has been a significant

increase in the number of planning applications processed and planning performance agreements made

providing adequate revenue to support continued excellent performance.

In 2016/17, 84% of Major Planning Applications were determined in accordance with agreed
timescales, beating a target of 70%. A total of 37 major applications were processed.

80% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks, also beating the target of 75%

88% of other applications were processed within their 8 week deadline, beating a target of 80%

63% of appeals to planning decisions were dismissed. Though this was below the 70% target but the
number of appeals against decisions was considerable higher (128) compared to the previous year
where only 86 appeals were made.

52% of Planning Applications were validated within 5 days. This was below target (80%).

In 2015/16, 64% of planning searches were carried out in 10 working days, slightly below target (80%).

However, the percentage increased to 87% for the first 3 quarters of 2016/17.

Page 33



Building control increased their market share for certification by 3% from 34 — 37% of all developments
in 2015/16. During 2016/17, their market share dropped back to 34% - still this was below their target
of 50%.

86% of building control applications were processed within 3 days in 2015/16, this increased by 1%
to 87% in 2016/17 — well the target at 80%.

The number of site inspections undertaken within 1 day of request, significantly above target (80%) at
93% and 91% for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.

Page 34



Table of Contents

B 1o T [T T N 10
2. HAckney in CONTEXE ...uuuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieetieennesseeeesessseessseeeeessnnnssssssssssssssssessessssnnssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnnnnsssses 12
3. PlanNiNg POlICY ...ceeeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiicetrnneeeeesiisssssesesessssssessnnssssssssssssssssnnsseesssnnsssssssssssssssssssssssesssnnnnnssnses 16
4. Neighbourhood Planning & Duty t0 COOPErate ........ccceeeeeeeriiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieeeenssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 22
L [ 10 T V- 31
T 1 44T 1 o3V 41T o 1 P 45
7.  Retail and TOWN CENEIES ....cceiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeerrr s s s s sanns 58
8. Communities, Culture, EAUCAtion & HEalth .......cccceeuiiiiiiieiiiiiiieiiiiieeeeenreeeeeieereeasesseseessnsssssssnnssseseens 71
£ TR I - 14 ] « ] o N 82
10. OPEN SPACES .evuuirrnnirrenirrneiirnesirresisrensstrsesstrssssrsssstssssersssstrsssstsssssssssesssssstssssssssssssssssrasssssnsssrssssssasssrs 86
11. DeSiZN aNd HEFEAZE .. cciiiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnieereeessssssissssssssttteeeesssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssnnnnssssssssssssssns 89
12. Planning PerformancCe.......ccueueeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeennssiiiiiiiiiiieeessssssssssssssssmmmessssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 93
13. Appendix - Site Allocations in the SALP and Area Action Plans ........cccccuiiiireennennnnnnssnsniiinnnnnnnnneeessse 97

9

Page 35



1.

1.1

Introduction

Hackney’s Planning Service seeks to deliver the Council’s spatial objectives through
development and implementation of planning policy via the development management
process. This report evaluates and demonstrates the effectiveness of planning policy
and decision-making, and to identify areas where objectives are not being met and
where local plans and policies, or the internal development management process needs
to be reviewed. It also aims to set out any clear challenges and opportunities for the new
Local Plan, ‘LP33’. LP33 will be a new borough wide Local Plan. It will be the strategic
planning document which directs and guide development in the borough up to 2033. See:

https://www.hackney.gov.uk/LP33.

10
Page 36


https://www.hackney.gov.uk/LP33

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

This year is Hackney’s fourteenth Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) (formerly known
as Annual Monitoring Report) since the Local Development Framework was introduced
in 2004. Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local
planning authorities to prepare an annual monitoring report, however, section 113 of the
Localism Act 2011 amends section 35 in respect of the requirements to prepare

Monitoring Reports.

The new requirements for the AMR, set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (hereby known as “The Regulations”), give local
authorities more freedom to choose what to monitor in relation to the current local plan
and to focus on local priorities and goals. The AMR monitors the performance of Local

Development Documents and draws conclusions about their effectiveness.

This AMR covers the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 to 31
March 2017 reporting on the performance of planning policy across key topic areas, and
progress of the Local Development Scheme (LDS), the Core Strategy and Area Action
Plans (AAPs), as well as neighbourhood planning, the Council's ‘Duty to Co-operate’,
the Community Infrastructure Levy and other issues pertinent to measuring the

effectiveness of Hackney’s Planning Service.

The AMR monitors Key Performance indicators (KPIs) for planning policy, performance

in plan-making and compliance with the Duty to Cooperate.

The report also provides a report on Hackney’s Community Infrastructure Levy and
S106.

Data sources for the AMR come from a range of Local and National Indicators. All data
on developments in the borough is sourced from the London Development Database
(LDD). The report has been informed by information received from a range of council

teams. Structure of the Report

The report is divided into the following sections:

Executive Summary

Chapter 1: Introduction

Chapter 2: Hackney in Context

Planning Policy Update

Chapter 3: Planning Policy Updates
Chapter 4: Neighbourhood Planning & Duty to Cooperate.

Topic Areas

11
Page 37



Chapter 5: Housing

Chapter 6: Employment

Chapter 7: Retail and Town Centres

Chapter 8: Communities Culture, Education and Health
Chapter 9: Transport

Chapter 10: Open Space

Chapter 11: Design and Heritage

Chapter 12: Climate Change and the Environment

Planning Performance

Chapter 13: Planning Performance Report

Appendix

Appendix 1: Progress on delivery of SALP Sites

Appendix 2: Progress on delivery of Area Action Plan Sites

Page 38

12



2. Hackney in Context

2.1 Hackney’s Corporate Policy Team annually update a profile' of the London Borough of
Hackney and the people living and working here. Some of the key facts and figures for

Hackney from the 2017 Profile are summarised below:

Location

2.2 Hackney is one of 14 inner London boroughs, situated in East London.

2.3 London, together with its immediate hinterland of south east England, contributes over
a third of UK GDP. Over the last decade, Hackney’s proximity to the multi-national

financial institutions and their wealth has started to make a difference in the Borough.

2.4 Hackney occupies a pivotal location to the north east of the City of London. As shown in
Map 1 below, Hackney shares boundaries with Islington, Newham, LLDC, Haringey,

Waltham Forest, Tower Hamlets and the City of London.

Map 1: Hackney in a Regional Context

' https://www.hackney.gov.uk/media/2665/Hackney-profile/pdf/Hackney-Profile2

13
Page 39



Population

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

29

Hackney’s population is estimated to have increased by 2.2% over the year to 269,009
people. A quarter of its population is under 20 and the proportion of residents between
20-29 years has grown in the last ten years and now stands at 21%. By contrast, those
aged over 55 make up less than a fifth (14%) of the population, making Hackney a

relatively young borough.

hiales
Females

25 000 20 D00 15 000 10 000 x 00 o %000 10,000 15000 20000 25 000

Hackney is a culturally diverse area, with significant ‘Other White’, Black and Turkish
Communities, as well the largest Charedi Jewish Community in Europe focused in the

North East of the Borough. 9/10 residents say groups get on well with each other.

Hackney has a significant immigrant population, with the most recent groups made up

of Australian and Western European Immigrants.
In 2011, 14.5% of Hackney residents said they were disabled or hand a long-term
limiting illness.

Hackney’s population is growing very rapidly, and is now likely to exceed 300,000 people
by 2027 — 7 years sooner than was reported in the last AMR. The biggest contributor to

this trend is the working age group (See below).

=} = =
= R B BE B 5 2 2 E # # = H H o 8

FL b

—0 i 56 . 14
Source. GLA Projections 2014 Rcunc}_:) t—%%%gl}r%ecmry Based (BFO)



Health and Wellbeing

2.10 Life expectancy has once again increased for men and women, and is now 78.7 years
for men and 82.8 years for women. However, life expectancy for men and women in

Hackney remains below the London average of 79.6 and 83.8 years respectively.

Deprivation

2.11 Hackney remains the eleventh most deprived local authority in England on the
Government’s Indices of Multiple Deprivation with 17% of Lower Super Output Areas in
the top ten per cent most deprived in the country. It should be noted these positions

have improved in comparison to the rest of England.

2.12 The majority of deprivation domains showed an improvement in 2015, compared with
levels in 2010, with percentages falling from 42% to 17% in the number of Lower Super
Output Areas (LSOAs) experiencing high levels of deprivation, with improvements in the
health, employment, housing and deprivation effecting children. The crime domain

experienced an increase in relative deprivation.

Education

2.13 There was a great improvement in secondary education, with 63.5% of pupils obtaining
five or more GCSE’s grade A* - C including English and Maths in 2016, up from 43% in
2008. This is well above the London average of 59.7%, and the England average of
52.8%.

Economy

2.14 The number of firms in Hackney increased by 66% from 2004-2016. The number of
people claiming out of work benefits fell by 13,700 between 2000 and 2016, despite the

rapid growth in the working-age population.

Housing

2.15 The proportion of households who rent from a private landlord has more than doubled
in the past 10 years. Nearly a third of all households are now private renters; 45% of all
households in Hackney rent from a social landlord. Those in social housing tend to have

higher unemployment and lower average incomes than people living in other tenures.

15
Page 41



Environment and Transport

2.16 Hackney is the third most densely populated borough in London, but it is also one of the
‘greenest’ with falling levels of car ownership. Nitrogen dioxide levels can be high,
especially around main roads and the borough has several air quality action plans in

place.

Crime and Community Safety

2.17 The overall crime rate in Hackney is the lowest in 10 years. Incidents of crime reported
to the police have declined by over a third in that time, or approximately 13,000 fewer
victims of crime. However, crime levels increased by 6% in 2015/16, in line with London-

wide trends.

Growth and Change

2.18 There is significant growth in The North West of the borough around Manor House, the
area along the upgraded North London Line from Dalston to Hackney Wick and along
the recently improved East London Line from Dalston to Shoreditch are expected to
experience the greatest growth in housing, commerce and infrastructure in the coming

years.

16
Page 42



3. Planning Policy

3.1 Hackney continually works to keep its policy current by conducting research and
developing new policy for the borough, as well as incorporating and applying changes

to National and London-level planning policy.

Local Development Scheme

3.2 The local development scheme outlines planning policy documents' content and the
programme for preparing or reviewing them. It helps ensure effective spatial planning,

guiding sustainable development and helping regenerate the borough.

Core Strategy

3.3 The Core Strategy is the key planning policy document, setting out the broad strategy
for sustainable growth of Hackney. The Core Strategy and Proposals Map were
adopted November 2010. The strategy was the key document in developing the

Development Management Plan and Site Allocations Local Plan, detailed below.

Hackney Development Management Local Plan (DMLP)

3.4 The Development Management Local Plan (DMLP) is a Borough-wide planning policy
document, essentially containing a range of policies which expand on the Core Strategy
to help determine planning applications. DMLP policies need to be considered in parallel
with other Local Plan documents, the Core Strategy and detailed area-based AAP

policies, and the emerging Site Allocations Local Plan.

3.5 The Council formally adopted the Development Management Local Plan (DMLP),
including the policies map, on 22 July 2015..

Hackney Site Allocations Local Plan

3.6 The SALP identifies key strategic development sites in the Borough, and provides site-
specific policy as well as allocating a particular use for those sites. Allocating sites is
part of a strategic approach to guiding and managing development and growth in the
Borough. This provides site specific policy on a number of key strategic sites in the
Borough on which change and development is expected, to assist in the delivery of the
priorities for the Borough (such as housing and employment uses) by safeguarding and
allocating uses for these sites. The document sets out land use allocations and other
policies where appropriate for key sites in the Borough that are not already covered by

17
Page 43



Area Action Plans. It also quantifies the amount of housing and other types of land use

it could bring forward to help meet the Borough’s needs.

3.7

The Site Allocation Local Plan (SALP) was adopted in July 2016.

Local Plan 2033 (LP33)

3.8

3.9

The Local Plan 2033 sets out a growth strategy for the borough up to 2033. It will
incorporate core strategic policies; which set out the overall planning strategy, and
detailed development management policies; which guide development within the
borough. The vision, delivery strategy and policies of the Local Plan will provide an

integrated and coordinated approach to planning within the borough.

The production of the new Local Plan will be informed by several rounds of public
consultation, together with evidence gathering and sustainability appraisal of policy
options. The Plan must be consistent with national policy and in general conformity with

the London Plan.

3.10

LP33: Early consultation on a Direction of Travel document and Sustainability
Assessment Scoping report was undertaken in October to December 2017. A suite
of evidence base documents have been produced and published alongside a draft
Plan which is currently undergoing Regulation 18 consultation until 4" December
2017. Consultation on the Proposed Submission version is scheduled for
Summer/Autumn 2018 with Examination in Public anticipated for late 2018/early

2019. Final adoption of the Local Plan is programmed for 2019.

The North London Waste Plan (NLWP)

3.11

North London Waste Plan. The North London Waste Plan is being jointly prepared by
seven north London boroughs: Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Islington
and Waltham Forest. The plan will identify a range of suitable sites for the management
of all north London's waste up to 2032 and include policies and guidelines for
determining planning applications for waste developments. When adopted, the Plan will
form part of the suite of documents that make up the Local Plan/Development Plan for
each of the North London boroughs. The Plan is currently at the evidence gathering,

stakeholder engagement and drafting stage.

3.12

The North London Waste Plan (NLWP) is jointly being prepared by seven north
London boroughs: Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Islington and
Waltham Forest. The NLWP was consulted on between July and September 2015,

and Boroughs are still considering the proposed Crossrail 2 scheme potential

18
Page 44




implications for existing and proposed waste sites before working on proposed

submission version of the plan.

Area Action Plans (AAPs)

3.13 Hackney has three adopted area action plans, which set out specific strategies and
policies for their areas. The AAPs cover Dalston, Hackney Central and Manor House,

and allocate sites for development.

3.14 Stamford Hill is a specific area where there are evident development and growth
pressures that require management through area-based planning policies. Initial
evidence gathering and stakeholder engagement is well underway and two separate
consultation bodies have been established to oversee the Plan making process: a Cross
Party Steering Group to manage the project and a Community Panel made up of Ward

Councillors and Community leaders to advice on the consultation process;

3.15 In January 2017 the Council consulted on ‘Towards a Stamford Hill Plan. The next
stage of consultation on a draft Plan will be undertaken in Summer 2018. Adoption

is anticipated in 2019.

Future Shoreditch - Area Action Plan

3.16 The Area Action Plan will provide a comprehensive planning framework for Shoreditch
to manage development pressures and balance objectives of maintaining the historic
character and identity of the area whilst encouraging and facilitating development that
contributes to the economic growth of the Borough and the role of Shoreditch in

accommodating the expansion of the city in the City Fringe Area.

3.17 Future Shoreditch: A launch consultation was carried out in March to May 2017
along with further stakeholder engagement in July. Consultation on the Future
Shoreditch Issues and Options document will be undertaken in January to
February 2018. The results of this consultation will inform a draft Plan, scheduled
for consultation in Summer 2018. Future Shoreditch is anticipated to be adopted
in 2019.

19
Page 45




Implementation of Hackney’s CIL

3.18 The Council’s CIL charging schedule was adopted following an examination by an
independent planning inspector, and was implemented from April 2015. The CIL sets
out a floorspace based charge on new floorspace in developments of over 100sgm, with
charges varying for different uses in different areas (for example, £190/sgm on new

residential in zone A).

3.19 Planning Contributions SPD (S106) sets out the Council’s policy for securing Planning
Contributions, from new developments that require planning permission. The SPD
details the Council’'s approach in securing Planning Contributions and how it will be
implemented alongside the CIL. It also provides clarity to developers, development
management officers, stakeholders and local residents regarding the basis on which
Planning Contributions will be sought. S106 negotiations can still be used for site specific
mitigation or local infrastructure provision that is not covered by CIL. The SPD will be

reviewed again if Hackney reviews its CIL charging schedule.

3.20 The Planning Contributions SPD was adopted in November 2015

Sustainable Design and Construction SPD

3.21 Sustainable Design and Construction SPD provides planning guidance on how

sustainable design and construction can be achieved.

3.22 The Sustainable Design and Construction SPD was adopted in July 2016.

Housing Supplementary Planning Document

3.23 This SPD will help support the Council in delivering high quality mixed housing that is
well-integrated with Hackney’s varied places and communities, taking into account the
current land availability and pressures for development. It will also provide guidance on
the implementation of affordable housing policies and provide further guidance on Local

Plan 2033 housing policies.

20
Page 46




3.24 The Housing SPD is currently at the evidence gathering stage.

Hackney Central and Surrounds Supplementary Planning Document

3.25

3.26

The Hackney Central and Surrounds SPD seeks to the deliver the objectives and
aspirations set out in the Hackney Central Area Action Plan (AAP). The AAP, which was
adopted in 2012. It sets out a strategy for coordinated development and design in
Hackney Central, to ensure that any changes reflect local aspirations for the future of

the area.

The masterplan builds on this framework and sets out how these objectives and
aspirations can be delivered in today's context and identifies a series of improvements
including the refurbishment and/or redevelopment of key sites together with public realm
enhancements. The delivery of these objectives and aspirations will help facilitate socio-
economic growth, environmental improvements and significant regeneration in and

around Hackney Central and beyond.

3.27

Hackney Central and Surrounds Masterplan: Consultation on the draft Masterplan
was undertaken from 3 October to 14 November. The SPD was adopted on 19
June 2017

21
Page 47




Neighbourhood Planning

3.28 Neighbourhood Plans can be produced by designated Neighbourhood Forums for
designated Neighbourhood Areas. The Council has approved an Area and Forum for
an area around Chatsworth Road, enabling a Neighbourhood Plan to be brought
forward. Neighbourhood Plans need to be in conformity with the Council’'s Local Plan
policies, and regional and national planning policies. A more detailed update on

Neighbourhood Planning is provided in section 4 of this report.

Article 4 Directions

3.29 Atrticle 4 Directions: The Council has made a series of non-immediate Article 4 Directions
(A4D) to withdraw specific permitted development (PD) rights in allocated areas, as

follows:

- Office use to residential use (in all Priority Employment Areas not already exempt,
Hackney Central Area Action Plan (AAP) , and Hackney Central and Stoke
Newington District Town Centres) - made on 20th July 2015 and in effect since 15%
September 2016.

- Flexible town centre uses (in all of the Borough’s Major and District Town Centres
and in the local shopping centres) - made on 20th July 2015 and in effect since 15
September 2016

- Retail to residential use (in all of the Borough’s Major and District Town Centres and
in the local shopping centres) - made on 20th July 2015 and in effect since 15
September 2016.

- Light industrial to residential use (borough-wide) — made in March 2017 and due to
come into effect on 1 May 2018

- Storage and distribution to residential use (borough-wide) — made in March 2017 and
due to come into effect on 1 May 2018

- Launderettes to residential (applies to all launderettes in the borough which are
outside of Conservation Areas) - made in March 2017 and due to come into effect on
1 May 2018.

- Chesham Arms - An immediate Article 4 Direction for The Chesham Arms Public
House, 15 Mehetabel Road took effect on 6" March 2015 removing permitted

development rights for any change of use.

22
Page 48



4.

Neighbourhood Planning & Duty to
Cooperate

Neighbourhood Planning

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act 2011. The Government
also introduced guidance on submitting Neighbourhood Area and Forum applications in
the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations, in 2012 and 2016. Through the
Localism Act, local communities have the power to influence the future of the places
they live by preparing Neighbourhood Plans. Neighbourhood Plans are led and prepared
by the community. The Council has a statutory role to provide advice and support to

those producing a plan

Neighbourhood planning allows communities to influence the development and growth
of their local area through the production of a Neighbourhood Development Plan, a
Neighbourhood Development Order, or a Community Right to Build Order.
Neighbourhood Planning is taken forward by Neighbourhood Forums that apply to the

Council to designate a ‘Neighbourhood Area’ for which to focus their proposals.

As Neighbourhood Plans become formal planning documents with significant weight in
decisions on planning applications, they have to be prepared following a statutory

process, broadly similar to that for the Council’s own plans.

Before a Neighbourhood Plan can be considered a Neighbourhood Forum needs to be
formed and a Neighbourhood Area needs to be agreed. The Neighbourhood Forum will
set the boundaries for the neighbourhood area, and this must be agreed by the Council.

There can be only one Neighbourhood Forum for each area.

For a Neighbourhood Plan to be accepted it must comply with local and national planning
policy. Neighbourhood Plans can provide detail on how the Council’s borough-wide
planning policies should be applied in a local area, to reflect the aspirations of the
community and local circumstances. Neighbourhood Plans have to be in line with the

overall strategic approach in Hackney’s existing adopted plans and national policy.

In January 2015 the Government introduced a number of amendments to the
Neighbourhood Regulations. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment)
Regulations 2015 became effective from February 2015. The Government introduced
new time limits for local authorities to determine Neighbourhood Planning applications.
New Regulation 6A was added into the 2012 Regulations to prescribe the date by which
a local planning authority must determine an application for the designation of a

23
Page 49



4.7

neighbourhood area to 13 weeks. Where an application area straddles a borough
boundary and falls within the administrative area of two or more local planning

authorities, the prescribed period is 20 weeks.

Changes were also made to the time allowed for representation and to the list of
documents that a qualifying body must submit to a local planning authority with a
proposal for a neighbourhood plan. The minimum period that a local planning authority
must allow for representations was reduced from six weeks to four weeks. Additionally,
Neighbourhood Forums are now required to submit either an environmental report
prepared in accordance with the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes
Regulations 2004, or a statement of reasons why an environmental assessment is not

required.

Hackney’s designated Neighbourhood Areas and Forums

4.8

The Council has so far designated four neighbourhood areas and one forum. These are

as follow:

Central Stamford Hill Neighbourhood Area - designated July 2013

- Chatsworth Road Neighbourhood Area and Forum - designated July 2013
Queen Elizabeth Lordship Neighbourhood Area - designated January 2015
East Shoreditch Neighbourhood Area - designated February 2015

Chatsworth Road Forum

4.9

The Chatsworth Road Forum was the first group in Hackney to implement the legislation
and their applications to designate a Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum

were approved by the Council in July 2013.

- %
_1“- .‘c
q&r‘&-". e, o
e !
3@;6.?1- ‘:h?.?bo
A Y
ot W
%
e South
---- Millfiacs Y

Park 4 Hackney Marshes
F/ 5
i ‘Glplon
% Fond

%

1“ &

5, E- Clapion 'y
= L Fark
Y
L3 |
" \
A
3
....
Pl
-----
o

=

NatEo scak

Fig 4.1: Designated Chatsworth Road Neighbourhood Area

24
Page 50



4.10

The Chatsworth Road Neighbourhood area is a mainly residential area bounded by the
River Lea to the east, Lea Bridge Road to the north, Lower Clapton Road to the west
and Homerton High Street to the south. The Neighbourhood area focuses on Chatsworth
Road, the local neighbourhood’s high street which runs through its centre. Most of the
area is within 10 minutes walking distance of the Chatsworth road local shopping centre.

The Chatsworth Road Neighbourhood Forum are currently working on a draft Plan.

Central Stamford Hill Neighbourhood Area

4.1

412

The Council designated the Central Stamford Hill Neighbourhood Area in July 2013.
Following the Council’s refusal of a total of 4 separate Stamford Hill area and forum
applications. Hackney Cabinet refused the forum applications on the grounds of their
negative impact on community cohesion in Stamford Hill. Given the pressure for growth
in this part of the Borough and the need to build local consensus on planning issues,
Cabinet resolved that the Council should lead on developing an Area Action Plan (AAP)
which would work with both groups and build community cohesion in the Stamford Hill

area.

A Cross Party Project Steering group involving local Ward Members from all three
political parties has been set up to steer the AAP and is working well. This has been
followed by a Community Panel which includes community representatives and local
people who live or work in Stamford Hill. The main purpose of the Community Panel is
to ensure that a range of local views are taken into account in the policies developed in
the AAP. The group includes representatives of both Stamford hill Neighbourhood
Forum groups, key community groups, faith groups and Ward Councillors. The work with
the Community Panel won the London Planning Award, for the Best Community Led

Regeneration Project in 2016.

25
Page 51



Page 52

Legens 1 B
[ stamiord Hil Meighbourhood Area WAL Warw
| " Hesery
L] ) '-\
\
= .."
fch Y
= o \
sm'::' ﬁ Bacn G Y
i tbu L Wl
W {/ = S Licge
/ il teo Sprenglh
; & mford it L P
5
kY
N .
P Stamford Hill Neighbourhood Area
g Pt e TR el sl g ok 1oe i Dol & adgm b, 2oan oy dl
Hackney [ s | o B e T Y e
Fig 4.2: Designated Central Stamford Hill Neighbourhood Area
26



Queen Elizabeth/ Lordship Neighbourhood Area

4.13 In January 2015, the Council designated a Neighbourhood area in Clissold Ward. The
Queen Elizabeth Lordship Neighbourhood Forum group made an application for a small
Neighbourhood Area, comprising a series of residential streets in the North east corner
of Clissold Park. The group are still in the process of developing their neighbourhood
forum and have decided not to proceed with a forum application for the time being. This
application was for a neighbourhood area only and covers a small area comprising about
5 streets bounded by Lordship Road and Clissold Park. Some of the area is already
within a Conservation Area and the main focus of the group is on improving local design

and amenity. The Neighbourhood Area was approved un-amended at the January 2015

Cabinet.
<
. PZARROR (T
LG
o

i A OCL

Fig 4.3: Queen Elizabeth/Lordship Park Neighbourhood Area

Mol

East Shoreditch Neighbourhood Area and Forum applications

4.14 The East Shoreditch Neighbourhood Forum submitted a Cross Borough Tower Hamlets
/Hackney application for a neighbourhood area and forum, which was considered by the
Hackney Cabinet in February 2015. The submitted area was focused on the Boundary

Estate, but also included the east side of Shoreditch High Street including key business

27
Page 53



4.15

locations. Tower Hamlets Cabinet approved both the area and forum applications for

their area in February 2014.

Hackney Cabinet designated a smaller neighbourhood area boundary centred on the
Hackney section of Calvert Avenue and St Leonards Church. The accompanying
application for an East Shoreditch Neighbourhood Forum was refused on the grounds
that the associated boundary had been altered and no longer reflected the make-up of
the Neighbourhood area. It was also considered that the proposed forum was primarily
drawn from the residential areas located within the Tower Hamlets boundary, which
under represented the business interests in Hackney. The cabinet report also included
a resolution for the planning team to start work on a Shoreditch Area Action Plan (see

update on Future Shoreditch — Area Action Plan)

Fig 4.4: East Shoreditch Neighbourhood Area (area outlined in red)

28
Page 54



-

e

|
|
|

Seale: 1:3,130 at Ad

29

Page 55



Duty to Cooperate

4.16

417

Section 110 of the Localism Act introduces the duty to co-operate in relation to the
planning of sustainable development (as a new section 33A in the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). In effect, for Hackney Council, this means that in

preparing its Local Plans, the Council must co-operate with:
Neighbouring local planning authorities and county councils;

Other local planning authorities and county councils where sustainable development
or use of land would have a significant impact on at least two local planning areas or
on a planning matter that falls within the remit of a county council, or on other strategic

issues such as infrastructure which may have an impact; and

The “prescribed bodies” and “specific and general consultation bodies” which are
considered to be of most relevance to the preparation of the development plan for

Hackney, as described in the Duty to Co-operate Report published in December 2013.
The Act also requires the local planning authority to:

Engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis with these authorities and

bodies to develop strategic policies;

Set out planning policies to address issues which arise from the process of meeting
the Duty; and

Consider joint approaches to plan making.

30
Page 56



Organisation

All prescribed,
specific and general

bodies

London Boroughs

North London Waste

Plan

London
Development
Corporation

Legacy

Nature of Cooperation

Consultation on Local Plan 2033 - Notification to interested parties about the
Local Plan. Meetings with prescribed bodies such as Historic England regarding
Areas of Archaeological Priority, the GLA (see section in table below).

Attendance at cross borough Inter Faith Forum.

Attended the Association of London Borough Planning Officers (ALBPO; regular
one-to-one meetings with the London borough of Islington, City of London,
Tower Hamlets, Waltham Forest GLA and others.
e Tower Hamlets meetings 25/09/17 and 21 /11/17 focussed on the
respective Local Plan reviews, Bishopsgate Goodsyard and the emerging
Shoreditch AAP

e Waltham Forest meeting 05/05/17, and another scheduled for 11
/12/17. Meeting focussed on the respective Local Plan reviews and the
Lee Bridge, Leyton and Clapton areas.

e City of London meetings 14/12/16 and 20 /09/17 focussed on the
respective Local Plan reviews, and the Liverpool Street and Shoreditch
areas where the two boroughs meet.

e Haringey meetings: 12/12/16 focussed on LBH direction of travel
document and subsequent meetings regarding Finsbury Park.

e Islington meeting 15/12/16. Discussions regarding LBH direction of
Travel document and LBI Regulation 18 draft Plan and the emerging
Shoreditch AAP.

e Newham meeting 31/05/17 focused on respective Local Plan
preparation work and evidence base.

Representation to Haringey Local Plan at all stages. The Plan was adopted in July
2017.

Representation to Tower Hamlet Local Plan Regulation 19 consultation in
October 2017.

Representation to City of London Local Plan Issues and Options in January 2017.

Representation to Waltham Forest Leyton and Lea Bridge (Lea Valley Eastside)
consultation in January 2017.

The NLWP was consulted on between July and September 2015. The seven
Boroughs are still considering the proposed Crossrail 2 scheme potential
implications for existing and proposed waste sites before working on proposed
submission version of the plan. Ongoing meetings with officers and Members and
DTC bodies relevant to waste matters.

Cooperation on strategic matters relating to the Hackney Wick area. Regular
meetings held with the LLDC and the former host boroughs, the Lee Valley
Regional and Transport for London on Planning Policy matters.

Page 57

31



GLA The Council have met with GLA officers to discuss the emerging policies in the
draft Local Plan and the new draft London Plan.
LBH officers have also had numerous meetings with the GLA in relation to the
SHLAA work and also attended events relating to the London Plan including their
evidence base on town centres and industrial Land

Representations made to the
London Plan * A city for All Londoners’ December 2016

Hackney made representation to the Draft Affordable Housing SPG February
2016.

Table 4.1: Duty to Cooperate actions in 2015/16

Page 58

32



S.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Housing

Housing forms a central element of the Council’s planning policies, with the principle aim
of ensuring that the housing needs and aspirations of Hackney’s current and future

residents are met in a way that is sustainable.

The borough faces extremely high demands for housing, with the most recent Market
Assessment indicating need to build at least 1758 new homes each year to meet the
needs of a growing population. Planning policies aim to achieve this target, while
ensuring that new homes are of the correct size, tenure and above all quality to meet
the needs of residents. Hackney is required by the London Plan to meet and exceed a
housing target, set, from 2015 at 1599/annum. The next iteration of the London Plan is
proposing a housing target of 1,330/annum effective from 2019 based on an assessment

of land availability.

Net additional dwellings over the last 5 years (FY2013-17)

As a raw measure of policy effectiveness, total housing delivery over the last 5 years
has totalled 8261 units, an average of 1652/Year. Three out of five years exceeded the
target with almost half delivered in 2011-12 (See Fig 5.1, below).

10000
9000 Hackney Housing Delivery
2000 FY2012 - FY2016
7000
6000
5000
4000
3000

2000

1000

0

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 Five-year Total

Annual total (units) e=mmmlondon Plan target

Figure 5.1: Housing Delivery in Hackney FY2012-FY2016

012 13 14
Affordable
Rent 13 11 45

33
Page 59

5

year
Total

69



Intermediate 319 107 210 107 158

Market 690 642 1117 1214 1005
Social

Rented 778 128 459 94 20
Empty

homes

returning to

use 874 117 -41 36 -9
Non-

conventional -

supply 362 -6 35 1025 4
Annual total 231

(units) 2 988 1791 2521 1178
London Plan 116

target 0 1160 1160 1599 1599

Table 5.1: Housing Delivery in Hackney FY2012-FY2016

5.4

Although housing delivery for the current reporting year (FY2016) was below the housing
target, the level of housing delivery is more appropriately measured over the longer-term
due to several factors influencing housing delivery in any given year. Over the last five
years the borough delivered approximately 132% of its target, with delivery exceeding
the target for the period almost two years early, in 2015. This represents a significant
boost to housing numbers within the borough and indicates that planning policy has

enabled new dwellings to come forward.
Delivery by Type

53% conventional market units

17% socially rented (i.e. Hackney Council/Housing Association)
11% empty homes in the borough being returned to use

10% Intermediate (Shared Ownership, etc)

8% Non-Self Contained (Student Halls and Hostels)

1% Affordable rent (Tenures set to 80% of market rates)

Housing Delivery By Type, FY2012-FY2016

W Affordable Rent
Intermediate
W Market
Social Rented
W Empty homes returning to use

W Non-conventional supply

34
Page 60

901
4668

1479

977

696

8790

6678



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Figure 5.2: Housing Delivery in Hackney by Type FY2012-FY2016

In line with the London Plan, Hackney seeks the maximum reasonable amount of
affordable provision in developments, with policy current set at a target 50% affordable
housing on conventional developments over 10 units through policy DM21 of the DMLP
and 20 of the Core Strategy. As non-conventional developments are not covered, they
have been set aside when calculating the proportion of affordable vs. market units

delivered.
As a proportion of conventional developments:

35% or 2449 units were affordable over the last 5 years. Of this:
21%, or 1479 units were socially rented

13%, or 901 units were intermediate

<1%, or 69 units were Affordable Rent

Conventional Supply By Type, FY2012-FY2016

m Affordable Rent
M Intermediate
W Market

Social Rented

Figure 5.3: Conventional Supply in Hackney by Type FY2012-FY2016

Core Strategy Policy 21 sets out a mix of 60% Social Rented vs. 40% Intermediate (or
other). This target was more closely met, with 65% of the affordable element delivered

as social housing versus 34% Intermediate. Affordable rent made up <1% of supply.

It should be noted that the large figure for long-term empty homes returning back to use
(977 over the last 5 years) in Hackney is partly due to Hackney’s efforts to tackle the
issue of empty homes. Grant funding is available through the Council for landlords
wanting to return empty properties in to use for renting by those on the Council’s housing

waiting list.

Non-self-contained housing refers to student housing, hostels, houses in multiple-

occupation and housing for older people and accounts almost 10% of Hackney’s delivery

35
Page 61



for 696 net additional units over the period. Delivery of these units typically involves large

losses and gains (as buildings either fall to other uses or new ones are constructed.

36
Page 62



Delivery by Ward

5.10 Core Strategy Policy 1 sets out that new developments should be focused in growth
areas, primarily the Town Centres, South Shoreditch and the railway corridors of the
North and East London Lines. Below provides a spatial indication of Housing delivery

in the last five financial years.

Lordship

Leabridge

Stoko Nwir\mvn

Central Hackney Downs \
Kimg's Park

\ palste Hackney Cantral Chatham
Wick

_-'I::e Beaunvoir fiueanshridge Victoria

— Hinsirg Dvrary, Hoaclorary 204227
Haxtan ABERTSLON Tolm dvalings by War

| LR RALY
B e &
me &
0w I
1T 1MW

Figure 5.4: Housing Delivery by Ward, FY2012-FY2016

5.11 Figure 5.4 shows that there is a significant divergence in housing delivery between
wards, with clear growth areas around the north of the borough and Shoreditch. There

was also significant housing delivery in and around Dalston and Hackney Central.

37
Page 63



Net dwellings delivered
Ward Fy2012-Fy2016

Haggerston 1105
Hoxton 1162
De Beauvoir 538
Dalston 411
Queensbridge 195
Clissold 73
Lordship 51
Stoke Newington

Central 86
Hackney Central 382
Victoria 104
Brownswood 930
Hackney Downs 101
Chatham 392
New River 756
Cazenove 51
Wick 202
Springfield 47
Leabridge 219
King's Park 229

5.12 These figures indicate that new housing growth is coming forward in line with the cores
strategies’ aims, broadly. However there may be a need to look at how Stoke Newington
can better accommodate new growth. It may also be prudent to consider any new
growth areas that need to come forward to meet future housing need, as sites within

existing growth areas are developed.

38
Page 64



Housing Quality — Size and Density of New Conventional Development

5.13 Along with the provision of new units to meet the needs of the borough, Hackney places
a particular focus on the quality of developments by requiring they contribute to reducing
overcrowding and meet a range of sizes to suit the needs of the borough, and that they

contain appropriate levels of space both within and overall in new developments.

5.14 The key element of this is the provision of a balance of smaller and larger units to fit a
range of housing needs, with a specific focus on 3-bed houses established under Core
Strategy 19 and extended by Policy DM22 to require specific amounts of 3bed or greater

with a descending amount of 2bed and 1bed units.

5.15 As Fig 5.5, below demonstrates the last 5 years has delivered this, with an overall
proportion of slightly more 2 beds than 1 beds units and marginally lower of 3 or more
beds (26% in total).

Number Of Bedrooms, All New
Number Of Bedrooms, Developments FY2012-FY2016
Market Tenure

M 1 bed
M 2 beds
3 beds
M 4+ beds

Number Of Bedrooms,
Affordable/Social Rent
Tenure

Number Of Bedrooms,
Intermediate Tenure

Figure 5.5: Bedroom Sizes, Tenures Fy2012-FY2016

Page 65

39



5.16 Breaking this down by tenure, significant differences appear in the data. Market and
intermediate unit sizes are predominantly 1 & 2 Bed, with a less-than-compliant level of
larger sizes. Social Rent provides a more policy compliant mix, with 43% 3 or more bed
units (Policy DM22 looks for 33%).

5.17 Overall, this policy is working effectively to broadly deliver the correct sizes of tenure,

and ensuring that the right homes are delivered to meet the objectives of the borough.
Density of Dwellings

5.18 The average density of new housing in Hackney over the Last 5 years has on average
been 230 dwellings per hectare (DpH). This is significantly above the London Average

DpH which is 185 DpH. Neighbouring boroughs Islington and Tower Hamlets have

significantly higher average residential densities (See Fig 5.6, below).
Dwellings per hectare, Completions, Hackney & neighbours FY2012-
FY2016
600
500

400

300 /

200 — — ?& ---- =

100
0 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Hackney 238 272 229 208 205
Haringey 184 177 152 219 186
Islington 275 345 364 355 352
London Legacy DC 143 171 199 199
Tower Hamlets 298 397 415 374 533
Waltham Forest 172 158 153 143 150
All London 178 183 187 185 190

=== Hackney —— Haringey = [slington London Legacy DC Tower Hamlets

= \Waltham Forest === All London

Figure 5.6: Dwellings per Hectare, Completed Developments FY2012-FY2016

5.19 Considering the physical limitation of space within the borough, densification is to an
extent inevitable, and will require increasingly innovative design responses to provide a

high quality environment.
Housing Affordability

40
Page 66



5.20

Housing affordability is an obstacle to all of the objectives of Hackney’s Sustainable
Community Strategy; from increasing income poverty, to reducing Hackney’s resident’s
opportunities to access employment and the amenities to live healthy, successful lives,

affordability has a key role to play.

5.21 Hackney’s Local Plan policies help to increase affordability by bringing forward
affordable developments, and by increasing the total supply of homes, and therefore
affordability acts as both a function of success, and an indicator of the need for stronger
policy on affordable housing.

5.22 Fig 5.7 shows that housing has become increasingly unaffordable, with median house
prices in the borough more than 16 times median incomes in 2016. In addition to this,
unaffordability is accelerating, rising 70% or 6.6 between 2011 and 2016. This is
compared to a rise of 1.7 2005-2011. This presents a significant issue for the borough
going forward. An increasing proportion of new housing will need to be delivered within
affordable tenures, and there will be increasing pressure on rents as residents are
unable to get onto the Housing Ladder. Planning policy may need to consider how it
can provide alternatives to home ownership through the private rental sector (PRS).

Median house prices to earnings ratio (lower quartile) 2005 - 2016

18.0

16.0

14.0

12.0

10.0

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

WTe [ e | e | e | e | e | e |e|e|e|e]|e
Hackney 89 | 99 | 105 | 11.0 | 92 | 104 | 96 | 108 | 11.7 | 13.1 | 147 | 163
Tower Hamlets | 87 | 9.8 | 96 | 108 | 93 | 93 | 96 | 100 | 99 | 120 | 134 | 144
London 87 | 90 | 93 | 95 | 84 | 92 | 96 | 96 | 100 | 107 | 122 | 135
England 68 | 72 | 72 | 69 | 65 | 69 | 67 | 66 | 66 | 69 | 71 | 7.2

=== Hackney Tower Hamlets London

England

Figure 5.7: Median Income to House Prices, Hackney 2005-16

41
Page 67



5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

Net Additional Dwellings in the next 5 Years (FY17-21)

The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to optimise the supply of housing by
assessing both demand and supply of new developments. This is to demonstrate a
sufficient supply of housing for the next 5 years (a “5 Year Land Supply”) to meet and
exceed the housing target for the borough set by the London Plan. It also requires the
council to identify a further 5 years of deliverable sites, and where possible for the

proceeding 5 years (i.e. years 10-15).

The London boroughs are subject to additional regulation through the London Plan.
Acknowledging that there are significant supply-side (i.e. a lack of new suitable sites for
housing) issues, the London Plan sets out a minimum delivery target for boroughs over
a period. With the adoption in 2015 of the FALP Hackney’s minimum delivery 2015-
2025 is 15,988 dwellings, which is expressed by an annualised minimum target of 1599
Dwellings per Annum. This is likely to change with the likely adoption of the new London
Plan in 2019 however for monitoring purposes the current target will continue to be used

until the plan is adopted. This current target is broken down into types of delivery, below:

Housing Target, FY2017-21

Dwelling Type Minimum Annualised Target

Conventional and Non-

Self-Contained 1471
Dwellings

Vacant units returning 198
to use

Total per Annum 1599
Total 5 Years 7995
5% Buffer 400 (Rounded up)
Grand Total 8395

Table 5.3: Current Housing Target

This is a high target for planning policy to meet, but as figure 5.9 (overleaf) shows, the
current pipeline of housing indicates that the borough will exceed this target by
approximately 728 dwellings, with a total of 9123 dwellings expected to complete by
2022.

These numbers are clustered in certain areas of the borough, which broadly reflect the

Growth Areas identified in the core strategy and major regeneration schemes.

42
Page 68



T sy e oy, st S yemrs
Total dvelings: by vard

o
e ma

160 A 6
10 1 (W
D 1

Figure 5.8: Housing Delivery, Pipeline to 2022

5.27 Figure 5.8 shows that the pipeline for new known developments (i.e. identified through
planning permissions and allocated sites) over the next five years indicates that
development is likely to continue to focus in and around the south of the Borough as well
as the north-west. Significant housing growth is expected to take place in and around

Dalston too.

43
Page 69




Figure 5.9: Housing Trajectory 2015

Housing Trajectory 2016-17

35000 32931
30000

mm Net completions last 4 years
25000
20000 I Net completions reporting year
15000

Net projections Phase 1

10000 2424

I Phase 2

5000 23 2521 2440 2234 2202
1 1107 107
L i e e—
I Phase 3
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Phase 2 (2022-Phase 3 (2026- Total
26) 31)
I Total

0/ abed

«=Om London Plan Target

44



5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

Figure 5.9 sets out the updated housing trajectory for the borough in graphical form, as
well as the London Plan Minimum target. As this demonstrates, Housing delivery in the
borough is expected to significantly exceed targets over the next several years, tailing
off in Phase 3 around 2026 with a slight under delivery. Over this time period however
total housing delivery is projected to exceed the London Plan target over the same

period by 7%.

The trajectory indicates that Hackney can demonstrate a 5-year land supply, as required
by the NPPF, as well the 5% buffer which is required by authorities which do not have a

history of significant under delivery.

Overall, between 2017-18 and 2021-22 the borough will deliver a total of 9123 homes,

or 114% of its London Plan Target. Delivery in the period is broken down below:

5-year housing supply projection by type

3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
[— — — —
0 e
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
non-conventional 205 126 0 150 150
M Returns from vacant 305 226 100 250 250
Conventional 2440 1187 1557 2202 1738

Figure 5.10: Trajectory for 2016-20 by type of housing.
Conventional completions make up the bulk of new development coming forward in the

borough. It is supplemented by Non-conventional units, mostly in student halls. The
gradual drop-off towards the end of the period is largely the result of a lack of concrete

(application based) data and a transition to projected sites coming forward.

Overall, the housing trajectory shows a healthy level of growth going forward, with sites
from SALP and AAPs expected to make significant contributions towards overall housing
growth. Furthermore, the long term outlook also provides a strong foundation for future
housing development, if complemented by new site allocations which will come forward

in Local Plan 2033, as well as sites in the Council’s emerging Brownfield Register.

Analysis

45
Page 71



5.33

5.34

5.35

Over the last 5 years, planning policy has led to the delivery of 132% of London Plan
targets, providing a total of 8790 units. Of this amount, approximately 2449 affordable
units have been delivered, or 35%. While this does not meet the council’s very high
target of half of new housing being affordable, it represents an outstanding achievement
against a London average of 24% over roughly the same period, and is 6% higher than
that of Tower Hamlets (29%) which shares Hackney’s housing market. In addition, it has
been highly successful in delivering a large proportion of 3 and 4 bed properties (26%)
as required by Core Strategy policy 19 and DMLP 22. The new Local Plan will need to

ensure that affordable housing delivery remains a critical aspect of planning policy.

However, housing policy faces new challenges going forward. The Council’s housing
target increased in 2015 to 1,599 homes/annum however it now expected to be lowered
to 1,330 homes/annum from 2019 as set out in the Draft London Plan (December 2017).
Despite this housing need in Hackney is higher than identified housing capacity in the
Borough. Figure 5.8 shows that there is sufficient development - 9123 homes, or
114% of target in the pipeline to meet targets over the next 5 years to 2022, but the
borough will need to develop additional sites for housing if it to meet the needs of its

residents in the future.

In addition to this, Housing affordability continues to increase year-on-year, almost
doubling between 2008 and 2016 despite the great recession, with median prices
reaching over 16:1 with median earnings. This poses a significant challenge to the
delivery of new homes for the people of Hackney. The most recent Strategic Housing
Market Assessment suggests that if the council were to achieve its objective of meeting
the needs of current and future residents planning must deliver 66% of new housing
as socially rented, and if trends continue it is not unforeseeable that provision of social
housing may reach 90-100% in order to ensure that the housing needs and aspirations
of Hackney’s current and future residents are met in a way that is sustainable. This is
challenging within a national policy environment where viability remains the key driver
of provision. LP33 will set out policies aimed at maximising the provision of affordable
units across Hackney with regard to development viability, including from smaller
developments (below 11 units) where there is not currently a requirements to provide

affordable housing and where almost half of the borough’s housing comes from.

46
Page 72



6.

6.1

6.2

Employment

Increasing employment is a key objective of the borough aimed at reducing poverty and

increasing life chances. In addition, changes to employment floorspace can have

significant impacts for business rates and spending in
Hackney, contributing to economic prosperity. Planning policy
aims for Hackney to be one of London’s most competitive and
affordable business destinations, with policy supporting the
main growth areas to attract a distinctive mix of enterprises
through providing a high quality environment around industrial
locations and ensuring all employment areas offer high quality

affordable units.

Core Strategy Policy 17 and DM14 seek to protect areas of
high levels of business floorspace, known as Priority

Employment Areas, and seek to encourage increased

Employment Uses
B1a
B1b
Bic
B2
B8
D1

provision of employment floorspace within these areas. The principle aim is to ensure

these areas retain the benefits of agglomeration, such as supply chains/networks,

collaboration and operation, without damaging residential amenity.

Net change (m?) of B1, B2 and B8 and D1 uses in PEAs and overview of the

Borough

Page 73

47



6.3

6.4

Core strategy policy 17 seeks to prevent the loss of employment floorspace. This is
reinforced through DM14. Within PEAs, DM17 seeks employment-led schemes, i.e. B1,
B2 and B8, D1 as the majority use but enables residential to come forward as long as
they are auxiliary to the employment component. This is balanced in tension with
encouraging the agglomeration of businesses in a way which supports and protects
them, and residents existing residential areas to create a balance with other land uses

in the borough.

Between 2012-2017, as figure 6.1 shows (overleaf) there has been a significant net loss
of employment space in priority employment areas as a whole. Within the PEAs these
losses have occurred in B1 and B8, with total losses of 6,323sgm and 23,799sgm
respectively. B2, already a very minor floorspace type in PEAs, lost 1837sqm. D1
floorspace on the other hand registers a total net increase of 22,145sqm. Figure 6.1
indicates that PEAs were affected in different ways, with some experiencing significant
losses (Wenlock, Homerton and Mare Street) while others, such as Kingsland saw
transitions between employment uses (in this case B8 to B1) and Shoreditch saw a net

gain in B1 floorspace but a loss of B8.

48
Page 74



Net change in empoyment floorspace in PEAs, FY2012-FY2016

10000
8000
6000
4000
E
g 2000
8 I
] - - m_ [ | _ __ _ _
Q 0 | = [ | =
w
3 v 1
o
w  -2000
-4000
6000 Belfast M Theyd
nton eltas Dalston |Homerton|Kingsland € Shacklewelbhoreditch Yo" | wenfck
. Street Road Street Road
BBT 105 94 454 -6578 1758 | -1078 -120 5434 274 618
_1%%% 0 0 0 -342 5 -1100 0 -400 0
W B8 0 0 -870 487 -3172 -1526 0 -3053 -4395 -11270
—14%6 0 0 308 8305 5013 2643 0 792 0 5084

Priority Employment Areas

Figure 6.1: Net Change in Employment Floorspace in PEAS FY2012-FY2016

6.5 Whilst policy is working to counteract the loss of employment floorspace, a significant
amount of B1, B2 and B8 floorspace has been lost in PEAs. Whilst losses in the rest of
the Borough in B1 and B2 floorspace have been greater than in PEAs (where the
majority of existing stock is) and this shows the effectiveness of policy in limiting losses
in PEAs, changes in stock in PEAs have still been high in recent years. Loss of B8
floorspace in PEAs is particularly higher than in the rest of the Borough with most of
these loses concentrated in Wenlock, Theydon Road, Shoreditch and Kingsland PEAs.
The biggest losses in PEAS occurred between FY2012 and FY2014, with a net gain of
B1-B8 floorspace in FY2015 and FY2016. Many of these changes are signs of the
changing nature of and way businesses are growing in Hackney, with increased job

densities and a continued shift to a service/tech economy.

Net change in employment floorspace, Hackney PEAs vs rest of
the Borough FY2012-FY2016

W Blsgm W B2sgm W B8sgm D1sgm

25000 22145 21644
20000

15000

10000 Page 75

5000



6.6

Figure 6.2: Net Change in Employment Floorspace PEAS vs Rest of
Borough FY2012-FY2016.

2015/16 and 2016/17 show a different trend to the last five years combined. There was
a net gain of 7,361sqm B1 floorspace in PEAs, compared to the loss of 6,323sqm over
the previous five years as a whole. The maijority of this was contained in Shoreditch and
Mare Street, which together gained 11,095sgm of B1. Wenlock saw a significant loss of
over 4,000sgm B1 floorspace, down mostly to a single development (2011/3007) which
replaced it with over 5,000sgm of D1 floorspace. It should be noted that for several PEAs
there was no recorded employment floorspace activity. There were few notable

developments in 2015/16 and 2016/17, and key applications of interest were:

12-20 Paul Street (2007/1871) Demolition of existing buildings and erection of three
buildings ( 6, 7 and 10 storeys, including basements) to comprise of 5400sgm of office
space, 135 sgm of B1/A3 ground floor space and 419 flats for students accommodation
with associated parking and landscaping.

Mentmore Terrace (2013/4000) Demolition of single-storey warehouse (B2/B8 use) and

erection of a 6 storey building (plus basement and mezzanine level accommodation) to
provide 31 residential units (7 x 3 bed, 15 x 2 bed and 9 x1 bed) and 1724 sqm of Class
B1 (Business) floorspace.

PEA

Anton 0
Street 105 0 0

Belfast 0
Road 94 0 0

50



Dalston 631 0 -870 0
Homerton 505 -342 487 0
Kingsland 72 0 -1080 4735
Mare

Street 4696 -1100 -1382

Shoreditch 6399 0 -2834 330
Theydon

Road -274 0 -4395

Wenlock -4867 0 922 5094
Total 7361 -1442 9152 10159

6.7

Table 6.1: Net change in B1-B8 and D1 floorspace in PEAs, 2015/16-2016/17

As well as looking specific land use performance within PEAs, it is informative to look at
the wider trends in the borough. Between FY2012-2016 there was a net loss of B1-B8

employment floorspace throughout the Borough but a gain in D1 floorspace.

Employment Floorspace Changes, PEAs and rest of the Borough
FY2012-2016

54793
44793
34793
24793
14793
4793
-5207
-15207
-25207
-35207

-B372B3
Bdro7

PEAs
-31959
22145

Rest of Borough
-23248
21644

mB1-B8 D1

649U Bre QAL TR ISP A A B Fobk A Fidease levels of employment across the

borough, and so this trend over the last five years is not considered to be positive.

Ne

However, figure 6.4 (employment pipeline) shows this loss across the Borough and in

PEAs will be offset by gains in high quality employment floorspace from developments

already with planning permission.

Page 77

51



173704

153704

133704

113704

93704

73704

g/ abed

53704

33704

13704

-6296

Net Blsgm
M Net B2sgm
M Net B8gm
B Net D1sgm

Anton
Street

544
-1025
-1420

738

Dalston

-450
0
0
0

Figure 6.4: Employment pipeline, 2016/17

Employment space pipeline, breakdown and overall net, FY2016

De

Beauvoir

1066
-238
1066
1066

Hackney
Downs

3202
3202
3202
3646

Homerton

678
678
678
1013

Kingsland

2932
2932
-500
2932

Mare
Street

3069
-720
-2120
3394

Shacklewell

o O o o

[ |
Shoreditch

159739
-337
-3088
163653

Theydon
Road

800
800
-992
800

Wenlock

13557
13557
-1991
14796

.
“restof

rest o
borough

10525
-441
-6296
33970



6.9 As well as monitoring the completion of developments, it is possible to gain insight into

6.10

6.11

planning performance by looking at employment floorspace which is either under
construction or permitted at present. As of 2016-17 there is approximately 195,000 sqm
net of Employment Floorspace in the pipeline, of which over 80% is located in the
Shoreditch PEA, dominating other PEAs and indicative of the high demand in the south
of the borough, and indicative that Policy 3 of the Core Strategy has been very effective.
Furthermore, more than 90% of this demand is for B1 floorspace. The majority of PEAs
record a net gain, as does the rest of the borough, which indicates policies are having a

positive impact in comparison to trends.

Overall there is a mixture of losses and gains in the pipeline, with B1 space dominating
gains (185,137sgm) followed by D1 (6,451 sgm), with a clear transfer from B2 (-
2,320sgm) and B8 (-8,029sgm) within PEAs. Outside of the PEAS, the pipeline
indicates a gain in B1(10,525sgm) and D1 (23,445sqgm) and a loss of B2 (-441sgm) and
B8 (-5,855sqm), a similar trend to the PEAs. The gain in D1 is mostly in the form of
Educational uses. Planning policy is clearly affecting PEAs unequally, but overall the
pipeline presents a more positive view of going forward. The new Local Plan proposes
a more refined approach to the Council’s employment policy has been taken in the draft
Hackney Local Plan (LP33). The borough’s designations have been redefined to
comprise of Priority Office Areas (POAs), Priority Industrial Areas (PIAs) and Locally
Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS). Within POAs, employment led development is
required (with an emphasis on office delivery). Within PIAs, support mixed use
development which safeguards industrial land/ floorspace but enables other uses to be

introduced through redevelopment/ intensification.

Overall the pipeline shows a healthy level of new developments, which reflect well on
planning policies in the Core Strategy and DMLP. The form of employment taken
reflects present trends in generally being large floorplates within mixed use schemes.

Notable schemes in the pipeline include:

Land bound by Plough Yard, Curtain Road (2015/3453) within Shoreditch PEA. A gain
of 33,000sgm of new office floorspace as well as 412 residential units.

Norton Folgate (2016/2044), within the Shoreditch PEA is the largest development on
record, providing 80,000sgm of new office space as well as residential units in a 50

storey tower.

53
Page 79



6.12

6.13

Net change in B2/B8 in Hackney’s Locally Significant Industrial Sites and

Strategic Industrial Locations

Hackney has a very small amount of land in protected industrial designations, known
and LSIS. In 2015, there was no change to these areas. This demonstrates that the
policies within the Local Plan have been effective in protecting industrial land within LSIS

designated land.

Business in the Borough

Planning policy seeks to maintain and expand the supply of employment floorspace in
Hackney through managing the release and provision of floorspace in new
developments. The ultimate result is to enable businesses to grow and succeed,
therefore employing local people and contributing to the boroughs economy. A measure
of this success is the number of businesses in Hackney and how this has grown or

shrunk year on year, as shown in figure 6.5 and the accompanying table, below.

% changes in Active Enterprises, 2009-2015

70.00%

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

Camden Hackney Islington Tower Hamlets Inner London

Figure 6.5: Active Enterprises, 2009-14

54
Page 80



6.14

6.15

200 201 201 201 201 201 201

Area 9 (0] 1 2 3 4 5
25 25 25, 26, 27, 29, 31,
Camden 175 380 930 460 530 020 385
11, 11, 12, 12, 14, 16, 18,
Hackney 230 700 150 980 180 095 510
14, 14, 14, 15, 16, 18, 22,
Islington 010 095 395 310 850 710 110
Tower 11, 12, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18,
Hamlets 880 400 850 740 030 545 390
211 216 220 230 245 265 287
Inner ,36 27 ,38 73 ,61 ,23 ,58
London 5 5 5 0 5 0 5

Table 6.1: Active Enterprises, Tables, 2009-15

Figure 6.5 shows that Hackney has been highly successful in growing the number of
new businesses in the borough, with growth in the number, and importantly the rate of
new enterprises — between 2009-15 Hackney gained an additional 7,280 active
enterprises, or a growth of 164% over the period, almost double the Inner London

average.

There is a disconnection between the net loss of employment floorspace indicated by
planning applications, but growing business base of the borough. This suggests either
new businesses are using floorspace in new, less traditional ways, or that some
businesses are not making use of traditional employment space for operation. It is also
possible that the impacts of these conflicting trends have not begun to effect each other
yet. An Employment Land Study has been produced to inform the new Local Plan. This
analyses trends in employment space and helps our understanding of the type of
floorspace in use by new businesses, and how best this can be provided through an
effective policy response. The findings indicate that there is still a significant need for
new employment floorspace (minimum 117,000sgm for the plan period) and also

suggest a need to protect vital industrial land in the borough.

55
Page 81



Affordable Workspace Provision

6.16 DMLP policy 16 builds on the Core Strategy’s objective of making Hackney one of
London’s most competitive and affordable business destinations by seeking that new
developments in major commercial and mixed use development schemes provide 10%

affordable workspace. While this policy is fairly new, there is already a pipeline of

Affordable workspace secured, 2010-17, Hackney
2500
1990

2000

1708

1500
1162 1228

910

1000
560

500

Affordable Workspace (Sgm)

m 2012 2013 2014 w2015 w2016 w2017

schemes which are tied, via s106, into providing the workspace.

Figure 6.6: Affordable Workspace, 2010-15 Hackney

6.17 As figure 6.6 shows, 7559sgm of affordable workspace has been secured since 2010.
The highest yearly total was in 2016, where 1990sgm was secured and reflects the
adoption of the DMLP which strengthens the provision through policy DM16. Overall

56
Page 82



6.18

this shows the policy to be working effective to delivery some new affordable workspace.
There is also significant pipeline for new employment floorspace therefore it is likely that

the amount of affordable floorspace provision in the borough will continue to increase.

New Hotel Rooms

Core strategy policy 17 acknowledges that Hotels (Class C1) form an important part of
the supply of employment developments in the borough, both contributing to the
economy but also more recently facilitating the tourism and entertainment industry in
Hackney as well as short-stay for business’s clients and collaborators. Current planning
policy encourages the provision of Hotels, and there has historically been a strong

demand in the Shoreditch Area.

Figure 6.7: Hotel Development , 2015Hackney

57
Page 83



Hotel development completions FY2016 and pipeline, number of rooms

6.19

6.20

Haggerston Victoria W Brownswood M Hackney Central

19
938
688
351
Completed bedrooms, FY2016 Not started bedrooms Under construction bedrooms

Figure 6.7: hotel completions and pipeline, Hackney

As figure 6.7 shows (above) there is a healthy pipeline of developments either
construction or permitted, totalling 1785 new rooms over 12 new developments. Over
9%, or 1626 of these units are within Haggerston Ward, and are symptomatic of the ‘city
fringe’s growth over time and the popularity of Shoreditch as a tourist and business
destination. Overall, around 40% of the pipeline is under construction, representing a
healthy rate of implementation. As set out in Hackney’s Employment Land Study, the
GLA’s forecast of hotel room need for the Borough between 2016 and 2036 is an
additional 1,600 rooms. Taking account of hotels under construction and planning
permissions the twenty year forecast need has been met at the end of 2016. This
evidence has informed the policy approach regarding hotel provision in the new Local

Plan.

Analysis

The Core strategy and DMLP seek to promote and focus employment floorspace into
employment designations in the borough, PEAs and LSIS. Despite these strong policy
protections, employment floorspace in Hackney’'s PEAs has experienced significant
losses in the last 5 years totalling of 6323sqm B1 and 23799sgm B8 respectively,

with minor net losses to B2 and significant gains of 22145sqm D1. Losses have been

58
Page 84



6.21

6.22

6.23

concentrated in the Wenlock and Mare Street and Homerton PEAs. However, policies
do seem to have slowed the loss for certain types of floorspace, with unprotected areas
in the rest of the borough recording a loss of 10,405sgqm B1 and 10,027sqm B2.
Overall, across all PEAs in the reporting years there has been a net gain of 6,926 sqm
in 2015/16-2016/17 of employment floorspace, the majority of this being a growth in B1

and D1 floorspace.

However, the situation improves hugely when looking at pipeline developments which
indicates future delivery around 195,000sgm of new employment space, mainly in the
B1 class. Eight out of eleven PEAs will see an increase in floorspace, with Shoreditch
seeing a net gain of 160,000 sgqm of new B1 floorspace significantly ahead of other
PEAs. Three PEAs will see a minimal loss or no gain in employment floorspace. Overall
employment space outside of PEAs and LSIS is likely to shrink. The overall indication
is that instead of losing employment floorspace to other uses, and therefore businesses,
developers within Hackney appear to be renewing employment space, with policy

helping to refocus new floorspace into employment areas.

Hackney’s Employment Land Study suggest a strong need for B1a office (a minimum of
117,000sgm). The findings of this study also stress the need to ensure the retention of
an adequate stock of industrial capacity to support a diverse, adaptable and more
sustainable economy. In response to this evidence on employment needs, a more
refined approach to the Council’'s employment policy has been taken in the draft
Hackney Local Plan (LP33). The borough’s designations have been redefined to
comprise of Priority Office Areas (POAs), Priority Industrial Areas (PIAs) and Locally
Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS). Within POAs, employment led development is
required (with an emphasis on office delivery). Within PIAs, support mixed use
development which safeguards industrial land/ floorspace but enables other uses to be

introduced through redevelopment/ intensification.

The effectiveness of planning policy in developing Hackney into a competitive and
affordable business destination is reflected in continuous increases in the number of
active enterprises within Hackney, which has grown by 64% since 2009/10 faster
than neighbouring boroughs and almost twice the inner London average. However,
Hackney still lags behind in the gross number of enterprises, and policy must ensure
that as demand increases supply of workspace remains available, and affordable. On
this, the council has been successful in securing affordable workspace (that is,
floorspace discounted 20% for 10 years) with 7558sgm secured since 2010. This shows
policy DM16 to be effective in at least offsetting some of the losses across the borough
identified above.

59
Page 85



6.24

6.25

Finally, the completion of 428 hotel bedrooms in the reporting years as well as the
pipeline for 1785 hotel bedrooms in the south of the borough is indicative of the high
levels of popularity of this area with tourists, and increasing businesses, and builds on

wider changes to the way that people work, which are becoming increasingly flexible.

Future policy will need to consider how it can protect the agglomerative qualities of
employment areas while allowing for increasing provisions of residential uses. In
addition to this, research by the GLA indicates the ratio of residential to industrial
floorspace values is 8.3:1, the fifth highest in London, indicating there may be a need to
significantly strengthen policy in coming years to prevent the loss of businesses and

employment.

60
Page 86



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Retail and Town Centres

Protecting Hackney’s Town Centres is key to the continued growth and prosperity of the
borough, especially in terms of supporting local amenities. The core objectives aim to
make Hackneys town centre hierarchy most inclusive and vibrant places in London by
supporting the further development as civic and cultural hubs which are well connected
centre and have strong commercial retail and cultural industries. Core Strategy policy
13 sets out the overarching strategy, which focuses on developing Dalston and Hackney
Town centres, while DMLP policy 7 directs all new A1 floorspace to town centres,
supported by DM9 which prevents changes of use to A1 frontages in Town Centres that
would result in the proportion of units falling below 60%. While retail is at the heart of
town centre uses, other services, such as banks, employment agencies and law firms,

as well as restaurants and cafes are also important.

In addition to these daily uses, there is also a need to plan for the night-time economy,

with DMLP policy 11 directing A3, A4 and A5 uses to town centres to support this.

Hackney has a hierarchy of town centres, defined by the London Plan. These run from
a London level major centre (Dalston) to smaller district centres (Hackney Central and
Stoke Newington) and finally some 14 local centres (for example, Broadway Market and
Wick Road). The centres designation reflects their usage, i.e. Dalston supports
significant big-brand retailers, while Upper Clapton road has some business use but is
largely groceries and day-to-day amenities. The core strategy and DMLP support A1 as
the predominant land use at ground floor level in town centres, defining a primary and
secondary frontage in which proportions of A1 must remain over 60%, and defining the

area of town centres through the town centre boundary.

The most effective way to understand policy effectiveness is to look at changes to the
amount of these uses within town centres and the size and activity of frontages in town
centres. Figure 7.1, below shows the net changes in A1 across the borough, shows the

major town centres, followed by 7.2 showing local centres.

61
Page 87



Net Change (m2) of type (A1, A2, A3) and proportion at ground floor level in
designated town centres

Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Major and District Centres,
Hackney
FY2015, FY2016

3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
o _—
-500 Hackney Central Stoke Newington Dalston Oumid;:;:z town
Net Al Floorspace 257 -243 892 2854
m Net A2 Floorspace 0 0 -143 112
M Net A3 Floorspace 0 0 347 2309

Figure 7.1 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Major and District Centres, FY2015-FY2016

Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Local Centres, Hackney
FY2015, FY2016

Net Al Floorspace  m Net A2 Floorspace M Net A3 Floorspace

200

176
150 158 129
109
93
100
63
50
14
N 0 0 0
0
Broadway Chatsworth Kingsland Lauriston Lower Manor Stamford Stoke Well Street
Market ~ _,Road Road Road Clapton House Hill Newington
-50 Road Church
Street
-100 =18
-109
-150

Figure 7.2 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Local Centres, FY2015-FY2016

Page 88



7.5 In the reporting years, there has been a net gain of A1 in the district centre of Hackney
Central (257sgm) and a net loss in Stoke Newington (-243sqm), with a larger increase
in the Major centre of Dalston (892sgm). Local Centres have seen an overall increase
of 111sgm, with Broadway Market and Lauriston Road gaining the greatest. Kingsland
Road, Stoke Newington Church Street and Chatsworth Road showed a loss of A1
floorspace. However, as figure 7.1 shows, the real changes have been significant
increases outside of town centres where there have been increases in A1, A2 and A3
floorspace, with 2854sqm of retail provided.

7.6 The large amount of town centre uses outside centres raises two possibilities — either
policies have been applied ineffectively, or the areas designated by these policies do
not reflect the ‘true’ town centres of Hackney. Employment policies, Core Strategy 17
and DMLP 17 allow for A classes to be included in employment-led development in
PEAS, aimed at ensuring active frontages. As figure 7.3 shows, below this policy has
worked to introduce these types of uses into PEAs, with over 4262 of A1 completed in
FY2015 and FY2016.

Net A1/A2/A3 uses in PEAs vs. Net outside main town centres,
Hackney
FY2015, FY2016
Net Al Floorspace M Net A2 Floorspace M Net A3 Floorspace
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
o~ = .m 1 _I .
-500 Outside
1000 ’;”rte‘;: Homerton ~ Kingsland ;\fraeft S;j:re Shoreditch  Wenlock gjv':
centres
Net A1 Floorspace 0 2467 -388 0 0 1561 622 2854
 Net A2 Floorspace 0 0 -117 0 0 86 95 112
W Net A3 Floorspace 30 129 282 461 0 876 335 2309

Figure 7.3 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, PEAs vs. Not in Town centres 2015
*It should be noted due to net losses from elements not in PEAs or Town centres affecting the Rest
of Borough net figure it shows less than in PEAS.

63
Page 89



7.7

7.8

While this offers an effective explanation for the large amount of ‘A’ uses outside town
centres, it also suggests that there may new town centres emerging due to changing
patterns of work and development. The relative positions and interplay of Employment
and Town Centre policy will be considered going forward through the new Local Plan
2033.

In addition to the impact of employment policies, DM11, covering the nigh-time economy
directs increases in A3 uses, as well as A4 and A5 uses to Town Centres, which may

account for some the increases in A3 floorspace.

The results for the reporting years mirror the trends over the last 5 years (Shown below,
figures 7.4 and 7.5) which show significant increases in A1, A2 and A3 uses outside
town centres. Within town centres, there is a clear trend for loss of A1 in Hackney
Central and Stoke Newington High Street and gains in A1 floorspace in Dalston. There
are gains in A2/A3 space (see for example Hackney Central and Kingsland Road and
Stoke Newington Church Street).

Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Major and District Centres,
Hackney, FY2012-FY2016

12000
10000
8000
6000
4000
2000
0 ] . | ||
2000 Hackney Central Stokg Newington Dalston Outside main town
High Street centres
Net Al Floorspace -312 -825 722 9474
1 Net A2 Floorspace 580 -123 -217 1848
M Net A3 Floorspace 19 407 653 10075

Figure 7.4 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Major and District Centres FY2012-FY2016

64
Page 90



Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Local Centres, Hackney

FY2012-FY2016

400
300
200
100 I
0 a1 1 11
goke rdei\;[;keton Upper
Broadway hatsworth Hoxton Kingsland Lauriston StamfordNewington g PP
-100 . Road  Clapton
Market Road Street Road Road Hill Church .
(Shacklewell Road
Street
South)
Net Al Floorspaf® 164 72 219 -240 129 -10 -118 72 300
[ Net A2 Floorspace 14 72

H Net A3 FIoorspg@@ 50 75 240 93 80 216

Figure 7.5 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Local Centres, FY2012-2016

7.9

7.10

Changes in Local Centres (shown in figure 7.5, above) vary by centre, with provision of
A1 floorspace in Broadway Market increasing by 164sgm, Lauriston Road by 129sqm
and Upper Clapton Road by 300sgm. A3 provision increased in Stoke Newington
Church Street by 216sgm and Kingsland Road by 240sgm. Kingsland Road shows a net
loss of retail and services towards A3, which is likely to be related to its position as a key
night-time activity area in the borough. Furthermore, the impacts of night-time economy

policies could also be accountable for increases in A3 permissions within town centres.

Town Centre Pipeline

The town centre pipeline looks at planning applications for A1, A2 and A3 uses that have
been permitted and are under construction, and are shown in figure 7.6, below. The
pipeline shows a positive position for the major and district town centres with Dalston
expected to gain an addition 2191sgm of floorspace, Stoke Newington to gain 1442 and
Hackney Central to gain 313. The majority of growth in these activities will continue be
focused outside town centres, with an overall growth in all use classes of 37,777sqm, of
which over half, or 21,691sgm is A1 retail floorspace. This outruns the combined
changes within designated centres. As previously stated, this indicates a need to
consider the interoperation of employment and town centre policies to ensure the

objectives set out in core strategy of focusing these uses in town centres are attained —

65
Page 91

Well
Street

-77



this may include consideration of re-designating town centres to consider new frontages
as well as considering the designation of new town centres. The new Local Plan 2033

will consider when preparing new policies.

Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Hackney Pipeline

12000
10000
8000
6000
4000
2000
L m_ mmum_ NN
Stoke . .
-2000 Finsbury Park Hackney Newington Dalston Outside main
Central . town centres
High Street
Net Al Floorspace -400 809 1410 9964
 Net A2 Floorspace 161 894 -86 821 1981
H Net A3 Floorspace 110 682 158 10458

Figure 7.6 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Major and District Centres Hackney, Pipeline

250

200

150

100

50

-100

-150

-200

-250

Net change A1/A2/A3 Uses (sqm), Local Centres Hackney,
Pipeline

232

118
12 55 110 449

70 68
29 I
|

Broadway Chatsworth Hoxton Kingsland Lauriston Lo‘r Manor  Stamford Stle Upper

Market Road Street R Road Claggon  _3iouse Hill  Newington Clapton
Road Chuyrch Road
70 -76 Straet

-112

-233
Net Al Floorspace W Net A2 Floorspace W Net A3 Floorspace

Figure 7.7 Net Change A1/A2/A3 Uses, Local Centres Hackney, Pipeline

66
Page 92



7.11

7.12

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Changes in Local Centres (shown in figure 7.7, previous page) are also positive, with
A1 provision in Chatsworth Road increasing by 232sgm, Lauriston Road by 99sgm and
Lower Clapton Road by 100sgm. Hoxton Street shows the largest loss of 233sgm of A1
floorspace, but a gain of 118sgm of A3 floorspace. Similarly, Kingsland Road shows a
net loss of retail and services towards A3, which is likely to be related to its position as
a key night-time activity area in the borough. Furthermore, the impacts of night-time
economy policies could also be accountable for increases in A3 permissions within town

centres.

Proportion and Vacancy Rates in Town Centres

While overall trends are useful to analyse overall policy implementation, the town centre
policy is engaged through the proportion of units in frontages as opposed to cumulative
change within town centres. A snapshot of the proportion of ground floor units in A1 use
in the Borough’s Major, District and Local Centres is shown below. The DMLP requires
that frontages maintain a minimum proportion of A1 uses (60% in primary and 50% in
secondary), with the rest being acceptable town centres uses. This is to help maintain
footfall and activity and is key to town centres as a whole remaining viable. These

studies are undertaken periodically by the Council, most recently in 2017:

Percentage of uses in primary frontages, Hackney 2017

60
56 55
20
18 16
13
11 9 9 10 10
7
3
2
Dalston Hackney Central Stoke Newington High Street

Al A2 A3 Vacant MW Other

Figure 7.8 Percentages of Uses in Primary frontages 2017

67
Page 93



Count of uses in primary frontages, Hackney 2017

90 84
80

20 66
60
50
40
30

19 18
20 16 14

11
10 5
3 4 3 2 3
| ]

Dalston Hackney Central Stoke Newington High Street
mAl A2 mEA3 Vacant Other

Figure 7.9 Count of Uses in Primary frontages 2017

7.13 All primary frontages in the borough meet or are close to meeting the aims of policy,

60

50

40

30

20

10

sitting at around 60%. In addition to this, all have a good additional mix of A2, and A3

units, and in general very low vacancy levels; this is better demonstrated by figure 7.9.

Percentage of uses, Secondary Frontages & Local Centres,

Hackney 2017
56
51
46
39
3 31 31
27
20 21
17
15 15 15
1 10 10 10 11
7 7 5
Dalston Hackney Central ~ Stoke Newington High Finsbury Park Local Centres

Street (average)

Al A2 mA3 Vacant Other

Table 7.10 Percentages of Uses in Secondary frontages 2017

68
Page 94



7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

However, the results for Secondary frontages were less positive, especially for Hackney
Central and Dalston, which is a major centre and should perform better, recording just
27% of units in A1 use (23% off minimum) and 20% vacant units, the highest proportion
across all town centres. Hackney Central, Dalston and the Local Centres (on average)
have a very large proportion of units in different uses. Stoke Newington High Street

achieved a proportion of 51% of units in A1 use.

By contrast Local Centres, Stoke Newington High Street and Finsbury Park, (shared
with the boroughs of Islington and Haringey), fare well, all exceeding the minimum,
except for the Local Centres (average) which comes close at 46%, and showing low
vacancy rates, which is impressive considering the wide range of sizes - Wick road
contains 17 units, while Stamford Hill contains six times as many units at 122 - and the

broad distribution of locations of town centres across the borough.

Overall, town centre policies work effectively to secure high proportions of town centre
uses. Policies seem to work especially well in smaller units, with greater issues within
the major town centre of Dalston which may threaten its ranking within the London Plan,
and Hackney Central. Core Strategy 1 encourages significant economic growth in both
these areas, which also benefit from AAPs, and the higher proportion of non-retail in
these statistics over time as less effective or unattractive stock is renewed and/or footfall
increases with new developments. The council has, up to 2016 been limited in its ability
to control changes of use between some classes, (for example, A2 to A3) through
permitted development rights however this has changed with the implementation of

Article 4 Directions (see Chapter 2).

Entertainment and night time economy (use classes A4 and A5)

Core strategy policy 11 recognises the contribution of the Night-Time economy to the
borough and aims for a managed expansion of uses, specifically in Hackney Central,
Stoke Newington, Dalston, South Shoreditch and Broadway Market. DMLP policy 11
sets out these uses as restaurants and cafés (A3), drinking establishments (A4)

takeaways (A5) and assembly and leisure (D2).

As is shown in figures 7.1-7.4, A3 uses have increased across the borough, but
increases have been limited within the areas identified by core strategy policy 11.
Considering A3 are not specific to the night-time economy (in the sense pubs or
nightclubs and takeaways are) it is difficult to draw a clear conclusion about the policies
effectiveness in recent years. However, the trend over the last 5 years indicates that
Dalston has gained a total of 653sgqm, and Stoke Newington a total of 407sgm of A3

floorspace, indicating that the policy is having a positive effect. However those same

69
Page 95



7.19

figures also show a total of 10075sgm of A3 has come forward outside of town centres.
The night time economy policy has a particular focus on ensuring that new
developments do not have an effect on residential amenity, and therefore this policy may
need to be reviewed to ensure it is working effectively to counter new night time economy
uses are appropriate. However, it is beyond the scope of the AMR at this time to assess

the licensed hours of new A3 units which make up the development pipeline.

A4 uses are at the core of the night-time economy forming the central attraction,
alongside nightclubs (classed at Sui-generis). Traditionally, A4 use classes were
independent bars and pubs, but increasingly they form part of mixed use schemes or
flexible uses. This makes their monitoring challenging. There have been a
comparatively low number of applications involving A4 uses, with the LDD recording a
total of 78 applications completed in the last five years or within the pipeline. The A4

floorspace changes as a result of these are shown below in figure 7.10

A4 Floorspace change (sgqm), by development status, FY2012-

1000
500
0 — —
-500 I
-1000
-1500 Stoke
Stoke . .
Lower . Newington Stoke Outside
Broadway Newington Well Hackney .
-2000 Clapton Road Newington Dalston town
Market Church Street Central .
Road Street (Shacklewell High Street centres
-2500 South)
completed 60 -283 -103 -155 -595 105 548 -3320
started - 41 -2399
[ | subm_igfs%b 29 57 -768

Figure 7.10 Changes to A4 floorspace, FY2012-FY2016

7.20 Figure 7.10 shows a loss of A4 across the borough, and with significant losses within

Hackney Central (two developments lost totalling 595sgm), although there was a net
gain in Dalston of 548sgm from eight developments. Local centres also registered
losses. However, as with other elements of town centres policy, the majority of changes
to A4 floorspace happened outside town centre designations. A total of 3,320sqm of A4

floorspace has been lost outside town centres. Within the pipeline, the same trend is

70
Page 96



seen with a loss of A4 floorspace within the town centres (on average) and an even

greater loss outside of town centres.

7.21 An important external factor effecting the night time economy are the Special Policy
Areas (SPAs) established by Hackney Council. These areas, in Shoreditch?and
Dalston? strictly limit the grant of licences for late night opening of bars and restaurants.
They have a double impact of both reducing the provision of these uses within Dalston
Town Centre and Shoreditch (which is not designated as a town centre) and overall
provision in the borough. While SPAs are compatible with planning policy which, by
conditions on an application can limit opening hours to maintain neighbour’s amenity
and impact on town centres, greater consideration may need to be given to the future

strategy of directing these uses into town centres or areas covered by SPAs.

7.22 Overall, all new A4 floorspace has been permitted outside of existing town centres, much
of which is in Shoreditch and the Central Activities Zone, and largely based around
flexible consents and therefore its usage uncertain. The new Local Plan 2033 and
Shoreditch AAP will seek to manage this growth effectively. Considering trends, it may
be that A4 uses may be more effectively managed through licensing policy (such as
special protection areas) so as to achieve the objectives of promotion while protect

amenity.

7.23 A5 uses are at a similarly low level to A4 uses, with a limited set of completions and
pipeline, which are outlined below in figure 7.11. Planning for A5 uses promotes them

within town centres.

Net change, A5 floorspace (sqm), Hackney, FY2012-FY2016

600
500
400
300
200
100 I
0 — - —
-100 i St.oke Stoke Outshlde
200 Broadway Hoxton Manor ShacklewellNewington Hackney Newington Dalston main
. Market Street House Lane Church Central . g town
High Street
Street centres
Completed 60 -56 -30 -74 46 44 -65 145 507
Started 0 0 0 0 0 193
W Submitted 10 0 33 0 0 0 12 180

Figure 7.11 Changes to A5 floorspace, FY2012-FY2016

2 http://www.hackney.gov.uk/media/2224/Shoreditch-special-policy-area-map/pdf/Shoreditch-Special-Policy-Area-Map
3 http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/documents/s35028/Dalston%20SPA%20Report%20to%20Council%20290114.pdf

71
Page 97



7.24 As figure 7.11 shows, there has been a net increase in A5 floorspace in Dalston, with
the provision of 4 new units in total, and Hackney Central gained a single unit. Again,
as with other town centre uses, although to a lesser degree, changes have happened
outside of town centres, where 507sqgm of A5 floorspace has been gained. Overall there

is 385sgm of additional A5 floorspace in the pipeline.

Analysis

72
Page 98



7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

Overall, provision of retail floorspace in Hackney’s town centres has been mixed in the
reporting years but overall there has been a net loss of A1 in town centres in recent
years. Hackney Central has gained 257sqm, Stoke Newington lost 243sgm, and
892sgm gained in Dalston in the reporting years. Local Centres have seen an overall
increase of 111sqm, with Broadway Market and Lauriston Road gaining the
greatest in the reporting years. Over the last 5 years there was an overall net loss of
A1 of 415sgm in major and district town centres, with an increase of 722sqm in Dalston
and losses in the others. The pipeline for town centres going forward is more
positive with Dalston expected to gain an additional 1410sgm of retail floorspace
and Stoke Newington to gain 809, however a loss of 400sqm is expected in
Hackney Central. It is less positive within Local Centres, with only a slight gain in A1
floorspace expected an over 200sgm of A2 floorspace expected to be lost. This
indicates that the policy appears to have been somewhat ineffective at safeguarding
existing retail, in major town centres, more so in Local centres. In contrast in the future

it appears to be overturned, and may need to be reviewed in relation to local centres.

It is important to note that outside of town centre designations there has been an
increase of 2854sqm of new retail space in the reporting years, as well as increases in
A2 and A3 floorspace, with provision increasing by 9474sqm retail outside town centres
between FY2012-FY2016, and this is expected to increase further, with the pipeline
showing a delivery of 9964sqm.

This is likely the result of employment policies supporting employment-led mixed use
schemes under core strategy 17 and DMLP 17. While this offers an effective explanation
for the large amount of ‘A’ uses outside town centres, it also suggests that the
interoperation between Employment and Town Centre policy needs to be
considered, especially in light of the changing modes of work going forward which could
see town centres and PEAs sharing more characteristics, and the potential for

designations to reviewed.

The key trigger for policy DM9 is a 60% of primary (50% of secondary) frontages in use
for A1 uses. Stoke Newington High Street performs well, sitting at 60%, and with very
low vacancy levels. Dalston and Hackney Central on the other hand fall just short
with 56% and 55% of the primary frontage in A1 use. Secondary frontages are less
positive - Dalston, which is a major centre recorded 27% of units in A1 use (23% off
minimum) and 20% vacant units, the highest proportion in a frontage across all town
centres. These performance results, which are similar to the previous 2014 report, may
bring into question Dalston’s position in the London Plan town centre hierarchy.
Finsbury Park performed well, exceeding the minimum and showing low vacancy rates

73
Page 99



7.29

7.30

at 7%, which was an increase of two vacant units only. Local Centres are close to the
50% requirements at 56%. This indicates that town centre policy has been broadly
effective in protecting the provision of A1 uses and therefore maintaining amenity
as intended, even in the face of increasingly liberalised change of use legislated by the
government. Hackney is presently working to adopt new exemptions to this right. See

chapter 2.

Planning policies for the night time economy have had mixed results over the last five
years. Broadly, A3 uses have increased in the centres of Dalston (653sqm), and Stoke
Newington High Street (407 sgm). Over the same period 10075sgm of A3 has come
forward outside of town centres. This provision mirrors paragraph 7.27 in forming
part of new mixed-use developments and a similar conclusion can be drawn that it may
by prudent to review if these policies are effective and whether new units are having an

impact on amenity.

A4 and A5 uses share a low level of activity and are reported on over the last 5 years.
Within A4, there has been a general loss across town centres, although the
greatest loss has been outside town centres with a loss of 3320sqm. This could
be due to the adoption of Special Policy Area (SPA) in 2015 which limits licences for
these uses within Dalston and Shoreditch, and is likely to have prevented developments
coming forward in these places. Future local plan policy will further consider the role of
night time economy in Hackney. The future outlook does not reflect well on policy, with
a projected loss of 3167sgm of A4 floorspace outside of the town centres. It should be
noted the majority is from flexible consents i.e. A1/A3/A3/A4 permitted which will
make this increasingly difficult to monitor. A5 floorspace changes have varied
across all centres but significant changes have not been recorded in any particular

centre, expect outside town centres which have seen an increase of 500sgm.

74
Page 100



8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

Communities, Culture, Education &
Health

The first objective of the Core Strategy is to tackle inequality and contribute to enhancing
community cohesion by improving the quality of the borough. One of the most important
functions of planning policy is at the strategic level, supporting both the funding and

development of new social, educational and health facilities to benefit the community.

Planning Obligations and the Community Infrastructure Levy are mechanisms for
deriving planning gain from developments which can then be used to benefit the

community.

Hackney sets out its infrastructure need in its Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which is
updated in a regular basis. This chapter reports on the amounts of S106 contributions
received and agreed during the two financial years of 2015/16 and 2016/17 and also
reports on the collection and spend of the community infrastructure levy for these two

periods in accordance with government regulations.

Section 106 Planning Obligations in 2015/16

8.4

8.5

Section 106 are a contract signed between developer and Hackney, with agreed heads
of terms and financial amounts. The amounts agreed and received in 2015/16 are set

out in table 8.1 below:

2015/16 Agreed 2015/16 Received
General Heads of Term £3,374,464 £4,764,006
Affordable Housing £10,200,000 £440,936
Highways £875,041 £2,141,829
Total £14,449,505 £7,346,772

Table 8.1, S106 Contributions received in 2015/16 excluding S106 contributions for
Crossrail

The overall amounts (general heads of term) received can be further broken down to

indicate their broad purpose, as set out below in table 8.2.

Heads of Terms 2015/16 Agreed 201.5 e

Received
Children’s Play Area £0 £0
Community Facilities £187,500 £720,692
Ecological Management £0 £0

75
Page 101



Education and Training £66,078 £1,585,978
Employment and Job Creation £1,754,082 £300,798
Environmental Improvements £425,500 £1,077,411
Open Space & Nature

anser\?ation £1,254 £142,341
Public Arts £0 £0
Sustainability £230,700 £0
Town Centre Management £312,500 £0
Sustainable Transport £396,850 £936,787
Health Facilities £0 £0
Total £3,374,464 £4,764,006

Table 8.2, S106 Contributions received in 2015/16

8.6 Education and Training and Sustainable Transport form the majority of all S106
contributions received. Contributions for Open Space and Nature Conservation
contributions are low however the Council can no longer seek S106 contributions
towards type of infrastructure as this is included on Hackney’s 123 List and therefore

CIL is used to fund green infrastructure.

8.7 In 2015/16, there was approval to spend 53 projects were approved worth £3.2 million.

A summary of the areas with spending can be found in the table 8.3, below:

Number of DL
Head of Term . contribution

Projects

value

Environmental improvements 3 £460,592.00
Highways 37 | £1,809,089.00
Open space and nature 1 £4.868.00
conservation
Affordable Housing 1 £133,000.00
Community Facilities 5 £661,010.00
Sustainable Transport 6 £206,167.00
Total 53 | £3,274,726.00

Table 8.3, S106 spending in 2015/16

76
Page 102



8.8 Completed projects in 2015/16 include:

- Improvements to Allens Gardens, aimed at improving biodiversity. The works include

Owl Boxes, bat detectors, wildflower pollinators and additional seating as well as an

educational program.

- Work has completed on renewing the interior of Stoke Newington library and on

improvements to Shoreditch library.

Section 106 Planning Obligations in 2016/

17

8.9 The S106 amounts agreed and received in 2016/17 are set out in table 8.1 below. These

totals have increased since the previous financial year (2015/16).

8.10 2016/17

2016/17 Agreed Received
General Heads of Term £7,255,450 £9,869,655
Affordable Housing £13,212,480 £5,970,371
Highways £2,714,287 £1,452,451
Total £23,182,217 £17,292 477

Table 8.4, S106 Contributions Agreed and Received in 2016/17 excluding S106

contributions for crossrail

8.11 A further breakdown of the overall amount (General Heads of Terms) is provided below

in table 8.5 below.

Heads of Terms 2016/17 Agreed Rig;inI;Z
Children’s Play Area £0 £0
Community Facilities £12,207 £12,207
Ecological Management £0 £0
Education and Training £655,381 £6,807,990
Employment and Job Creation £4,163,598 £1,260,374
Environmental Improvements £475,123 £1,233,488
ggﬁ's‘e?:t‘i’g:‘ Nature £1,584 £32,755
Public Arts £0 £71,282
Sustainable Transport £1,389,425 £70,050
Sustainability £536,457 £83,057
Town Centre Management £21,675 £111,831
Health Facilities £0 £186,621
Total £7,255,450 £9,869,655

Table 8.5, S106 Contributions Agreed and Received in 2016/17

Page 103

77



8.12 Employment and Job Creation, Environmental Improvements and Education and

Training form the majority of all S106 contributions received.

8.13 In 2016/17, there was approval to spend £6 million on 47 projects. A summary of the

areas with spending can be found in the table 8.6, below:

Number of 3106. .
Head of Term Projects contribution
value

Education and Training 3 £1,019,500
Employment and Job creation 1 £126,201
Environmental improvements 3 £1,371,263
Community Facilities 3 £207,015
Town Centre Management 1 £124,435
Highways 26 £1,898,210
Open space and nature conservation 8 £226,199
Sustainable Transport 2 £1,051,104
Total 47 £6,023,927

Table 8.6, S106 Spending in 2016/17

8.14 Completed projects in 2016/17 include:

Cardinal Pole Roman Catholic School received a much needed internal work to
consolidate 3 small areas into one large fit for purpose library. S106 contributions were
allocated to free up three existing rooms for future curriculum delivery and transform
the delivery of the library function. An addition, an extension was built to the existing
school estate.

Due to increasing demand for school places, S106 contributions were allocated for the
expansion of Woodberry Down Primary School from two to three forms of entry. This
work was completed in April 2017.

S106 contributions went towards improving De Beauvoir Square’s play area. A second
entrance was added to the play area to provide an alternative exit point from the
enclosed space. The wooden edges to the squares rose beds have been replaced with
a metal edging eliminating future maintenance issues.

The London Fields outdoor gym equipment had reached the end of its life and was
located in the children’s play area. Contributions went towards replacing and expanding
outdoor gym equipment in a new more accessible location in London Fields.
Contributions went towards improving and replacing play equipment which had come

to the ends of its life in Haggerston Park.

78
Page 104



8.15 Overall there has been more activity on the spending side of S106 in 2016/17, with a
higher number of agreements signed and amount of money in heads of terms. Overall

there has been significant spending on improvements to the borough through S106.
Hackney’s Community Infrastructure Levy

8.16 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a mechanism to allow local planning
authorities to seek to raise funds from new development, in order to contribute to the
cost of infrastructure that are necessary to support new development. Hackney adopted
its CIL in April 2015. The CIL will directly contribute to the provision of new community

infrastructure in Hackney through the Infrastructure Deliver Plan

8.17 CIL income and expenditure in 2015/16 is detailed in the table below.

Amount
Details Amount (£) (%)

CIL receipts in 2015/16
Total CIL received 122,575 100

No 'in-kind' infrastructure or land was
received in lieu of CIL payments n/a

Expenditure on Infrastructure (Regulation
123 List) 0
Amount of CIL applied to repay money
borrowed and items of infrastructure

funded 0

Amount of CIL applied to administrative
expenses (in accordance with Regulation
61 of the CIL Regs) 6,129 5

Amount of CIL applied to neighbourhoods
(in accordance with Regulation 59C of the
CIL Regs) 0

CIL receipts retained for expenditure in future years

Amount of Hackney CIL which has been
retained to be applied to infrastructure
items on Hackney's Regulation 123 list in
future years 98,060 80

Amount of Hackney CIL which has been
retained to be retained for expenditure on
neighbourhoods in future years 18,386 15

Table 8.7: CIL income and expenditure 2015/16

79
Page 105



8.18 Hackney received £122,575.19 in Hackney CIL receipts from development in the

2015/16 financial year. Payments were received from the following schemes:

Planning Financial
reference | Site Address

Value (£)
number
2015/1610 | Shacklewell Lane 1C, E8 2DA 5,074
2014/2591 | Shepherds Lane 9, E9 6JJ 30,448
2015/0861 | Broadway Market 12, E8 4QJ 9,025
2014/3111 | Woodmill Road, Block 5, London E5 9BQ 52,003
2015/1118 | Evering Road 160, E5 8AH 3,195
2015/2005 | Thistlewaite Road 59, E5 0QG 373
2015/1019 | Hackney Road 43 - 47, E2 7NX 22,458
TOTAL 122,575

Table 8.8 Developments from where CIL was received in 2015/16

80
Page 106



8.19 CIL income and expenditure in 2016/17 is detailed in the table below.

Amount
Details (£) Amount (%)

CIL receipts in 2016/17

Total CIL received £6,637,037 100

No 'in-kind' infrastructure or land was
received in lieu of CIL payments n/a

Expenditure on Infrastructure
(Regulation 123 List) 0

Amount of CIL applied to repay money
borrowed and items of infrastructure
funded 0

Amount of CIL applied to administrative
expenses (in accordance with
Regulation 61 of the CIL Regs) 331,852 5

Amount of CIL applied to
neighbourhoods (in accordance with
Regulation 59C of the CIL Regs) 0

CIL receipts retained for expenditure in future
years

Amount of Hackney CIL which has been
retained to be applied to infrastructure
items on Hackney's Regulation 123 list
in future years 5,309,630 80

Amount of Hackney CIL which has been
retained to be retained for expenditure
on neighbourhoods in future years 995,555 15
Table 8.9: CIL income and expenditure 2016/17

8.20 Hackney received £6,637,037 in Hackney CIL receipts from developments in the
2016/17 financial year. A detailed breakdown of contributions received from

development is provided in the table below.

Planning

reference | Site Address Financial Value (£)
number

2015/3916 | 10-14 Crossway Stoke Newington London £615,075
2015/3432 | 109 Graham Road £9,002
2016/1054 | 115 Stoke Newington Road £9,020
2014/4101 | 127 Richmond Road £5,549
2015/1144 | 127a Shacklewell Lane London £3,686
2016/0824 | 15 King Edwards Road £15,300
2015/4622 | 169 Blackstock Road £204

81
Page 107



2015/3347 | 1a West Bank £38,180
2016/3452 | 20 Beatty Road £4,395
2016/0867 | 23 Kyverdale Road £1,975
2015/0014 | 233 Well Street £6,064
2014/3644 | 241 Evering Road £2,607
2015/1840 | 28 Amhurst Road £9,880
2015/3945 | 28 Fountayne Road £3,850
2015/3254 | 2a Median Road London £1,940
2015/1695 | 3 Clifden Road £1,820
2014/3405 | 3-5 Kingsland High Street £78,090
2016/0831 | 37 Mildenhall Road £604
2015/1895 | 39-45 Gransden Avenue £318,514
2016/2328 | 46 Reighton Road £2,100
2015/2745 | 47 and 49 Chatsworth Road £469
2015/1250 | 4-8 Defoe Road £15,029
2014/4207 | 501-505 Kingsland Road London £28,738
2015/2278 | 51 Darnley Road £1,858
2015/2184 | 61 Alkham Road £1,601
2016/2309 | 71 Mount Pleasant Lane £1,497
2016/0866 | 71 Reighton Road £1,733
2016/0231 | 72 Southgate Road £10,975
2016/1578 | 73 Great Eastern Street £12,760
2014/4209 | 92a Chatsworth Road £1,476
2015/2643 | Eagle Wharf Road 32-34 London N1 7EG £240,354
Great Eastern Buildings, Reading Lane E8
2014/1460 | 1DR £73,629
Great Eastern Street 21-33 (odd), Holywell
Lane 36-41, Holywell Lane 34-39 London
2015/2762 | EC2A 3EL £166,870
2015/1700 | Holywell Centre Phipp Street 1 EC2A 4PS £190,043
2015/0627 | Hoxton Street 44-76 £146,859
2016/1349 | Lower Clapton Road 131 and 133 £17,591
Maitland House 25-31 Mothers Square
2015/0843 | London £19,087
Mare Street 371 and 371a Brett Road 14
2015/3504 | E8 1JP £21,350
2015/2277 | Millfields Road London £18,462
New Regents College Upper School, Nile
2016/0300 | Street, London £837,699
Site bound by Corsham Street, Brunswick
2015/1717 | Place and Baches Street London £389,735
Sun Street 5-29, Crown Place 1-17, Earl
Street 8-16, Wilson Street 54 (One Crown £3,311,367
2015/0877 | Place)
TOTAL £6,637,037.00

Table 8.10: Developments from where CIL was received in 2016/17

Page 108

82



Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy

8.21 In addition to the Hackney CIL, Hackney has been collecting the Mayors CIL since 15t
April 2012. In the FY2015/16 Hackney contributed £6.4 million. Over the same period,
Hackney reported demand notices for £2,418,215.79 to developers. In the FY2016/17,
Hackney contributed over £4.3 million. Over the same period, Hackney reported demand

notices for over £5.3 million to developers.

Mavyoral CIL Receipts FY 2015/16 & 2016/17

£2,800,000 2,594,444.00
£2,600,000

£2,400,000
£2,200,000
£2,000,000
£1,800,000
£1,600,000
£1,400,000
£1,200,000

2,146,377.00

1,585,351.00
1,434,506.00

1,104,062
975,75Q1,017,097

£1,000,000 808%71.00

£800,000
£600,000 434,200

328,338/
£400,000

3.00

£200,000 0 18,446,243 0
£0

Figure 8.1, Mayoral CIL receipts 2015/16 — 2016/17

8.22 Figure 8.1 shows that rates of Mayoral CIL have increased steadily over time, peaking
at 2.59 Million in the second quarter 2015-16. As CIL is charged on new floorspace, CIL
receipts will track the pace of development in the borough, and help to support its

provision in a sustainable way.

83
Page 109



D1 — Community Uses - Non- residential institutions

8.23

The D1 Use Class refers to non-residential institutions which encompasses a range of
uses including schools, nurseries, education and training centres and health centres
among others. During the 2015/16 year 15,020sqgm of D1 floorspace was completed
in the Borough. A further 364sqm was completed in the 2016/17 year.

Education Floorspace

8.24

8.25

8.26

The additional floorspace delivered for education purposes specifically is also very
positive. During the 2015/16 and 2016/17 years an additional 14,975sgm and
1,207sgm respectively, of education floorspace was delivered. Over the last five years
an additional 36,864sqm of D1 floorspace for education use was delivered in the
Borough as figure 8.2 shows.

Some notable developments include:

the net gain of 6,345sqm of D1 floorspace at Holy Trinity Primary School in Dalston
(application ref: 2013/0457); and

the net gain of 5,557sgm floorspace for a new secondary school on Kingsland Road
(2013/1895).

Over a five year period, 28,273sgqm of D1 floorspace for education use was given
planning permission, 18,343sgm of which has been completed. This is captured in
figure 8.3. Figure 8.3 also shows that there is currently 8,572sgm in the pipeline for
development, 4,632sgm of which has started.

Net Education Floorspace (sgm) completed in Hackney,

16000
14000
12000
10000
8000
6000
4000

2000

FY2012-FY2016

14975
11395
4320 4957
I 1207
FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Figure 8.2: Net D1 floorspace for education purposes completed in Hackney, FY2012-FY2016

84
Page 110



Net Education Floorspace (sgm) approved in Hackney by
permission status, FY2012-FY2016

20000 18343
18000
16000
14000
12000
10000

8000

6000 3940 4632

4000
-~ m B
0 [

Completed Lapsed Not started Started
Figure 8.3: Net D1 floorspace for education purposes approved in Hackney, FY2012-FY2016

8.27 Some notable planning permissions for educational uses in the pipeline include:
o Development of 1,972sqm D1 floorspace for a new primary school and nursery at Tiger
Way, Hackney Downs (2016/0307).
o Development of 1,889sgm of D1 floorspace for a new school and college at Nile Street,
Hoxton (2016/0300).

85
Page 111



9.1

Transport

Core Strategy Policy 6 aims to reduce the need to travel, with an emphasis on car travel,
as well as promoting public transport improvements. Planning works closely with

transport planning to achieve these outcomes.

Public Transport developments in Hackney in 2016/17

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

The Council is committed to upgrading its local transport network in order to facilitate
higher levels of walking and cycling, promote better access to public transport, and make

our streets and public spaces more attractive to live, work visit and invest in.

The purpose of Hackney’s Transport Strategy 2015-2025 is to encourage more walking,
cycling and use of public transport for those who live, work and visit the Borough and to
continue to reduce the need for private car use. The Strategy supports the objectives

set out in the Mayor of London’s Draft Transport Strategy 2017.

Car ownership levels in Hackney fell between 2001 and 2011 with the proportion of
households with a car dropping from 44% to 34%.Hackney has seen an 8% reduction

in motor traffic levels between 1994 and 2011.

Walking levels in Hackney have been increasing over the years; 39% of people in
Hackney use walking as their main mode of transport over a seven day period,

compared to the Greater London average of 32%.

Cycle space provision in approved developments almost quadrupled between 2015/16
and 2016/17.

In 2015, Transport for London (TfL) and Hackney Council announced improvements to
- Cycle Superhighway Route 1 (CS1) in Hackney. Initial improvements were completed
in April 2016.

Cycle Superhighway Route 1 (CS1) runs largely on roads parallel to the A10 between
Tottenham and Liverpool Street station, forming part of the London-wide network of
Cycle Superhighways. Following a public consultation in 2015, further improvements to
areas around De Beauvoir and Wordsworth Roads were identified (through traffic at five
junctions in the De Beauvoir Road and three junctions around Wordsworth Road areas

were to be restricted). Improvement works on these junctions started in October 2016.

The pedestrian interchange between Hackney Downs and Hackney Central stations
was completed in August 2015. The fully accessible route makes travelling between the

two stations much easier. The Council continued to promote sustainable transport by

86
Page 112



refreshing its network of on-street electric charging points and the installation of more

cycle hangars on the public highway.

Passenger usage at Hackney’s Main Stations

9.10

9.11

9.12

Passenger usage at railway stations in the borough primarily reflects the levels of growth
at a station which is either economic or housing driven. This growth is an important
indirect indication of the effectiveness of planning policy in both encouraging public

transport usage and providing access to these services.

% Change, % Change Passenger

Passengers 2015-16
Station Name 2014-15
Haggerston 24 35
Hoxton 17 43
Hackney Wick 10 26
Hackney Central 5
Homerton -1
Dalston (Kingsland) -7
London Fields 16 64
Clapton 4 2
Dalston Junction 16 38
Shoreditch High Street 20 57
Stoke Newington 4 19
Rectory Road -2 12
Stamford Hil 13 1
Hackney Downs 6 5
Old Street 16 115

Table 9.1, Station Passenger Numbers 2014/15 and 2015/16, Hackney

Table 9.1 shows that there has been significant increases in station usage over the last
one year, with London Fields, Shoreditch High Street and Old Street registering an
increase in passenger numbers of more than 236%, with a total of 12.5 million entries
and exits in 2015/16 across the three stations. In the same period, overall station use
within Hackney increased from 40.5 million to 48.8 million passengers — an increase of
more than 8 million (17%). However growth appears to be decelerating some centres
including Hackney Central and Dalston Kingsland/Junction, with passenger numbers
decreasing by an average of 2% and 10% respectively at these stations between
2014/15 and 2015/16. It is too early to say if this is a trend. Usage at these stations will

continue to be monitored.

Overall, the Overground lines in Hackney have been highly successful, though are near

to capacity at peak times in the borough. TFL is working to improve capacity, primarily

87
Page 113



through the addition of an extra car to all services presently operating on the Overground
Network, increasing capacity by 25% by 2018. In addition, the connection via walkway
of Hackney Central and Hackney Downs stations has helped in spreading increases in

demand by providing a more direct route to the city centre.

Net Car and Cycling Spaces

9.13 Car parking standards are established by the London Plan, which aims to reduce their
provision. Car and Cycle spaces in developments are a key indicator of the effectiveness
of policy by directly reducing the supply of space in which new residents can place

vehicle — though some spaces, for example those for disabled users.

Schemes Net Car Net Net Cycle Cycle Space Percentage
Spaces spaces Spaces Per Scheme car free
(inc.. Per
disabled) | scheme
Approvals 2014/15 68 0.3 4413 23 88%
Completions 2014/15 | 196 3.1 963 16 88%
Approvals 2015/16 38 2.11 1803 22 94%
Completions 2015/16 | 59 2.03 1349 31 87%
Approvals 2016/17 153 8.5 5763 99 93%
Completions 2016/17 | 363 14.5 1993 46 87%

Table 9.2, Net Car and Cycle Spaces, 2014, 2015 and 2016, Hackney

9.14 Figure 9.2 shows that overall, the policy has been effective at delivering car free
development; 87% of completed development were car free in 2015/16 and 2016/17
and on average; 2.03 car parking (disabled included) spaces were delivered per scheme
in 2015/16, a decrease of 1.07 per scheme since 2014/15. However, this figure went up
by to 14.5 car parking spaces (including disable) per scheme in 2016/17, and this was
mainly due to the completion of two large projects (Woodberry Down Estate and the
International Broadcast Centre (IBC) on Waterden Road) which between them delivered
971 car parking spaces. Cycle space provision has gone up by almost 27% from 963 in
2014/15 to 1349 in 2015/16, and by almost 33% to 1993 in completed developments in
2016/17.

Analysis

9.15 The Core Strategy sets out an overarching aim of planning policy as to promote healthy
and active lifestyles encouraging a shift from car usage to public transport, walking and
cycling. Planning works closely with the transport planning team to achieve this.

Between 2015 and 2017, transport improvements were delivered for improved

88
Page 114



9.16

9.17

9.18

accessible bus stops and increased cycle hangers as well as completion of the

Hackney Downs/Central link and cycle superhighway.

Hackney’s railway stations continue to improve year on year, with a total of 48.8 million
entries/exits at stations in 2016. The key growth areas of Old Street and Shoreditch
High Street stations recorded growths of 115% and 57% in 2015/16. On these statistics
Dalston Kingsland station is busier than Nottingham, Hackney Central than Ealing
Broadway and Shoreditch than Stanstead Airport. These statistics reflect access
levels to key services in the borough being better than surrounding boroughs as
well as the inner London average, with key services being an average of 8.2 minutes
by bike, the third best times for cycling in London, and 9.1 minutes by walking or public

transport. Therefore planning policy has performed well in light of core strategy policy 6.

Core strategy policy 6 also aims to reduce car usage in the borough, by encouraging car
free developments. This is secured through DMLP DM47 which expects the majority of
developments to be car free or car capped. Overall, in 2015/16 and 2016/17, 87% of
completed development were car free, as were 94% and 93% of approved
developments respectively. Cycle space provision almost quadrupled from 1803 to
5763 in approved developments between 2015/16 and 2016/17. Policy may need to
consider how it can ensure larger schemes are not exempt from car free development

in order to continue the net loss of parking spaces achieved in recent years.

Hackney Council will continue to seek to develop policies of re-prioritising the needs of
road users away from the car and more towards pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport users in line with National Guidance. At a local level, Hackney has sought to
improve conditions through a variety of interventions including upgrading the public
realm, managing parking demand through controlled parking zones, removing gyratories

and one way streets, and introducing traffic calming measures.

89
Page 115



10. Open Spaces

10.1 One of the objectives of the Core Strategy is to ensure that hackney’s natural

environment, including wildlife habitats and landscape character is protected and
conserved and that new development identifies protects and enhances important assets.
Core Strategy policy 26 requires that there be no loss of open space within the network
of designated open spaces, and DMLP DM32 requires new developments to provide
new open space in developments. Hackney has green space totalling about 400 acres,

almost all of which is protected by planning designations which seek to restrict loss.

Changes to Open Space in the Borough

10.2 Core Strategy policy 26 seeks to safeguard existing open space in Hackney, by

10.3

10.4

preventing the loss of designated open space. There was a loss of 0.136 Ha of

designated open space in Hackney from schemes completed in 2016.

Open Space Delivery, Hackney 2012 - 2016

0.28 0.247

0.23
0.194 0.185

0.18

0.13

Hectares (Ha)

0.08 .049

0.03
-0

002 k3012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

=@=Series 1 -0.02 0.194 0.247 0.185 0.049

Financial Year

Figure 10.1, Open Space Delivery 2012-16, Hackney

Figure 10.1 indicates that there has been a net loss of open space in Hackney in 2016
of around 1360sgm.

Overall, the policy seems to be working. The decline in open space delivery in 2016
could be to lack of big projects delivery within the year. However, the current acute
development pressures in the borough (all new development was developed on
brownfield) and lack of any Greenfield developable land may negatively impact on future
open space delivery within the borough.

90
Page 116



Green flag Awards for Parks

10.5 Green Flag awards are given for a high level of environmental quality, and are awarded
based upon 5 year plans for the improvement of parks. In 2016/17, 21 parks in Hackney

achieved green flag status. These were:

- Albion Square, N1 (Bold indicates new awards)
- Aske Gardens, E8

- Butterfield Green, N16

- Cassland Road Gardens, E9

- Clapton Pond, E5

- Clapton Square, E5

- Clissold Park, N16

- De Beauvoir Square, N1

- Hackney Downs, E5

- Hackney Marshes, E9

- Haggerston Park, E2

- Hoxton Square, N1

- London Fields, E8

- Mark street gardens EC2A

- Millfields Park, E8

- Shoreditch Park, N1

- Springfield Park, E5

- StJohn's Churchyard Gardens, E5
- Well Street Common, E9

- West Hackney Recreation Ground, N16
- Woodberry downs park N4

10.6 This is an increase of 2 new awards over the previous financial year, with Woodberry
Down and Mark Street Gardens being the additional parks awarded Green Flags,
indicating that the quality of parks is growing. In 2015/16 we had 19 Green Flag Awards
(Millfields and West hackney Recreation Ground were the new ones). Hackney currently
has 23 Green Flag Awards, which includes all of those listed above plus Stonebridge
Gardens and Kynaston Gardens. All of Hackney’s District and Regional Parks are

designated along with many local spaces.

Planning Obligations for open spaces
10.7 Planning obligations are a direct result of planning for new development and are tailored
to the needs of the area on an agreement basis, contributing to the improvement of
existing open spaces. Several projects were funded out of S106 in Hackney for Open
Space in 2016. These were:
- Clissold Park pathway and fencing improvements

- De Beauvoir Square Play area infrastructure
- Hackney Road Recreation Ground Improvements

91
Page 117



- Haggerston Park Play Area

- London Fields outdoor gym

- Shepherdess Walk Play Area
- Daubeney Fields Play Area

- Clapton Square Improvements

Analysis

10.8 As the inner London Borough with a largest amount of green space, Hackney has been
historically successful at protecting green spaces for its citizens. Core Strategy policy
26 looks to protect and improve the existing open space network, and covered by DMLP
policies 31 and 34 which protect open space as well as biodiversity. Although there has
been a net loss of 1360sgm of open space in Hackney 2015/16, but overall, the policy

has been effective given the positive trends in open space delivery for the last 5 years.

92
Page 118



11. Design and Heritage

11.1 One of the overarching objectives of the Core Strategy is to Protect and enhance the
quality of hackneys historic environments through a sensitive approach to existing
character. Core Strategy policy 24 requires that all development should enrich and
enhance the built environment that developments make a positive impact, with special
reference to historic buildings and landscapes under policy 25. These are further
codified through DMLP policy DM1 which places design at the centre of the planning
process. Performance of these policies is difficult to measure, as design quality is a
subjective matter. However, there are a range of statistics around heritage. These
primarily relate to protection of historic buildings or areas are regulated by Historic

England in collaboration with the borough.

Heritage at Risk

11.2 The Heritage at Risk Register is operated by Historic England and, as the name
suggests identifies historic buildings, structures and areas at risk if maintenance or
restoration is not carried out. There has been a reduction in the number of listed
buildings at risk in the borough by 3 sites, or around 9%, from 34-31 sites. This overall
figure hides the churn in the register: more than 3 sites were removed, but then others

were added.

11.3 It is likely that more buildings will be taken off of the register in coming years, with
planning policy helping to bring forward sensitive redevelopment of these sites. Of the
buildings on the October 2016 register, 11 are the subject of development schemes or
restoration proposals at various stages and/or enforcement action which should see

them removed from the register in the coming years.

11.4 Three Conservation Areas (Dalston Lane (West), Mare Street and Sun Street) are at
risk. Dalston Lane (West) has recently had its Conservation Area Appraisal and
Management Plan revised and renewed and it is hoped that once a single large
development project is complete, it can be removed from the register. Mare Street and
Sun Street will be subject to review in the proposed Conservation Areas Review and this

review will address their boundaries and other issues.

Conservation Areas

11.5 Hackney contains a large number of conservation areas which protect the historic

character of areas such as De Beauvoir Town and Mare Street, the total number of

93
Page 119



conservation areas in the borough currently stands at 30. Conservation areas limit
permitted development rights, meaning that applications must be made for external

alterations and extensions, to ensure they are in keeping with the character of the area.

11.6 Two conservation area were designated in July 2016, these comprised the designation
of a new conservation area in Dalston and a small extension and review of the existing
Albion Square Conservation Area. The Dalston Conservation Area runs from Dalston
Junction north to Stoke Newington Road and comprises many Victorian and Edwardian
buildings that flank the linear route of the Roman Ermine Street. The conservation area
also includes several mews style streets of former workshops that run parallel to the
main roads. In Albion Square, the conservation area was extended eastwards to include
the Victorian Queensbridge Primary School and a full character appraisal of the

conservation area was also produced, which sets out its important qualities.

11.7 In late 2016, the Council consulted local residents and stakeholders on a westwards
extension to the existing Dalston Lane (West) Conservation Area. This conservation
area was originally designated in 2005 and comprised early ribbon development along
Dalston Lane dating from the Georgian and Victorian eras. The westward extension
brings in many buildings from Hackney’s industrial past including the former Reeves
Colourworks Building in Ashwin Street and the former Shannon Factory (now Springfield
House) in Tyssen Street. The extended conservation area was formally adopted on 23

January, 2017.

Tall Buildings

11.8 Tall buildings are of particular interest primarily as they represent some of the largest
and most complex planning applications the borough deals with and they significantly
test the strength of planning policy. Hackney takes a case-by-case approach to Tall
Buildings in the borough, in line with the Hackney Tall buildings strategy (2005) and
RTPI guidance (2007), within the context of the London Plan (with amendments, 2016).

11.9 A total of 6 tall buildings of 10 storeys or greater with an average height of 23 storeys
were approved between 2015 and 2017. During the same period a total of 7 tall buildings
were completed with the average height of 14 storeys. These developments have
predominantly taken place to the south of the borough. It is interesting to note that 4 of
6 buildings approved between 2015 and 2017 are in schemes containing residential
units, indicating that tall buildings are primarily supported by high residential values as

opposed to office space.

94
Page 120



Hackney Design Awards

11.10The Council first ran the Hackney Design Awards (HDAs) programme in 2004 and has
been run successfully every two years since then. It is widely acknowledged that the
HDAs are an established part of Council’s programme of events that enhances its
reputation and promotes good architectural and urban design in Hackney. The Hackney
Design Awards are one way to ensuring development in Hackney is delivered to the
highest possible standard and to enable high quality development through a range of

initiatives (Design Review Panels etc) and partnerships.

11.11Hackney Design Awards celebrate the rich and diverse new high-quality architecture
and open spaces that contribute to the borough's reputation as a hub of some of the

best buildings and places in London.

11.12The 2016 Hackney Design Awards were run on a similar basis to previous years. We
received 50 project nominations and the Judging Panel was convened in August to
determine a shortlist of 16 schemes. In September 2016, the Judging Panel crowned
Woodberry Wetlands the people’s choice winner. The winners were announced in late

November 2016 in Hackney Today and on the Council’'s website.

The Awards:

e Acknowledges, promotes and rewards buildings and public spaces throughout
Hackney that make a positive contribution to the lives of people and places
throughout the borough — this in turn raises the awareness of the built

environment across Hackney’s diverse communities.

¢ Reward the client for having the vision, the highly skilled architects and designers
who bring the vision to life, and the competent contractor for constructing

buildings to a high standard of finish.

¢ Send a positive message to the design and development industry that Hackney
is serious and committed to achieving high quality design for its residents and

businesses.
Analysis

11.13 Overall the situation has been positive for heritage and design in Hackney, with a
reduction in the number of buildings at risk. Importantly, this has been due to efforts to
regenerate these buildings into ways which safeguard the character while setting them
on a sustainable footing. These show that policy 24 and 25 of the DMLP are working
effectively, especially with other policies in the plan which look to secure new housing

and employment uses.

95
Page 121



11.14Design is a highly subjective exercise, with planning policy having a minor role to play
in ensuring that new developments are of the highest quality and in keeping with their
context and character. This is exemplified through the Hackney Design Awards, which

were concluded in November 2016 with Woodberry Wetlands emerging the overall

winner.

96
Page 122



12. Planning Performance

12.1 The performance of Development Management is important to both the Council and

12.2

12.3

Central Government, who measure performance. It should be noted that these statistics

reflect the most recent dataset. Performance is measured by speed of decision making

and quality:

- Speed: 70% of Major applications must be determined within 13 weeks of
validation; 75% of minor applications must be determined within 8 weeks of

validation. 80% of all other applications completed within 8 weeks,
- Quality: 70% of appeals to planning applications must be dismissed.

Hackney also has its own performance targets which cover a broader range of subjects:
- Customer Satisfaction: 60% of customers satisfied with planning service

- Speed: 80% of planning applications validated within 5 working days; 80% of
planning searches carried out within 10 working days;

As shown in table 12.1, below, the speed at which applications were processed was
maintained throughout 2015/16 and 2016/17, and exceeded targets, despite a record
number of planning applications being received., Processing of other applications was

consistently above target, averaging 87.5%.

12.4 Quality has also been maintained despite the increase in the number of appeal cases in
2016/17. A total of 128 appeal cases were submitted in 2016/17, of which 63% were
dismissed.

Indicator Target 2015/16 2016/17
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Percentage of major . o o | 86% | 74% 92%
planning applications 46% 67% | 100% (6 (25° 67% (12 80 % | 100% | 84%
determined within 13 70% | (6out | (20f | (11of | (o1 e [ (8of | = | (8of | (9of | (37 of
weeks of 13) 3) 1 1) of 7) 34) 12) 13) 10) 9) 44)
Percentage of minor
applications 0 o 0 0 0 )
determined within 8 75% 73% 78% | 78% | 80% | 79% | 80% | 83% | 83% | 74% | 80%
weeks
Percentage of other
applications o 0 o o 0 0
determined within 8 80% 84% 86% | 85% | 86% | 87% | 90% | 88% | 91% | 85% 88%
weeks
66% | 590, | 83% | 709 [52% |73% | 68% | 0, | 63%
. 62% | (10 (25 64%
Percentage of planning 70% (10 (60 | (21 (22 | (17 (81 of
o 6 | (150ut | out out (21 of
appeals dismissed of 24) of out of of of of of of 33) 128)
15) 17) 30) 86) | 40) 30) | 25)

Table 12.1, General Planning Performance, 2015/16 and 2016/17, Hackney

12.5 Internal targets are more varied in areas covered but are largely focused on speed of

decision making. Validation services undershot its target (80%) by a small amount of

8% in 2015/16. However, the gap between the target and performance grew bigger in

97
Page 123



2016/17 (52%). Planning searches on the other hand performed better, with a 64% in
2015/16 and 87% for the first 3 quarters of 2016/17 of the searches being processed
within 10 working days.

Indicator Target 2015/16 2016/17

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2015/16 Q1 | Q2 Q3 Q4 2016/17
% Applications 64
validated within 5 days 80% 70% 75% 79% | 63% 72% % 55% 50% | 57% 52%
% planning searches 70
processed in 10 days 80% 73% 58% 75% | 64% 64% % 94% 98% | TBC TBC

Table 12.2, Planning Performance, Local Indicators, 2015/16 and 2016/17, Hackney

12.6

12.7

Building control also accords to targets. The Building control team work to inspect new
properties and assess their compliance with buildings regulations. Their performance
targets are based around speed as well as well as aiming to build their market share

versus private companies which provide the same service.

Over 2015/16 the team increased their market share by 3%, from 34-37%, though it
slightly went down to 34% in 2016/17. Still below the target of 50%. The percentage of
chargeable applications processed within 3 working days improved over the year,
averaging 77%, or 3% below target. 86% in 2015/16 and 87% in 2016/17 of full plan
pre-decisions were given within 15 days, 4% and 3% below target respectively. The
number of site investigations undertaken within one day of request was significantly
above (13%) (11%) target, with 93% and 91% of visits being undertaken in these two
periods. Finally, the number of completions certificates issued within 5 days of an
inspection was slightly below target, at 83% versus a 90% target in 2015/16, but it
bounced back to 96% versus a 90% target in 2016/17.

Indicator

Total Total
Q1 Q2 |Q3 | Q4 15/1 | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 | 16/1
6 7

Targe
t

Percentage
market share 33% 36% 34% 32 34%
of building
regulations % % %
working

applications

34 |41 35 %

50% 38% | 37%

Percentage of | 80% 70 76 73 86% | 7T7%
Building % % %
Regulations
chargeable 61% |67% | 65%
applications
acknowledge
d within 3
working days
(Full Plans,
Building
Notices,

98
Page 124




Regularisatio
n&
Demolition
Notice
applications).

% of Building
Control Full
Plans Pre
decisions
given within
15 days

90%

88
%

71
%

88
%

100

% 86%

77.5
%

91.3
%

92.3
%

87
%

87%

% site
inspections
undertaken
within 1
working day
from request
(service
standard)

80%

90
%

95
%

94
%

88% | 93%

94.5
%

93.3
%

83.2
%

86
%

91%

% of
completion
certificates
issued within
5 days of an
approved
inspection
subject to
receipt of
appropriate
documentatio
n (service
standards)

90%

78
%

86
%

85
%

98% | 83%

96.5
%

96
%

96%

12.8 Building control have also been engaged with resolving several dangerous structures

in the borough:

- Former ‘Ship Aground’ pub in Lea Bridge Rd: building shell was left unsupported
following the removal of the shoring system due to a dispute between the builder

and the owners.

- 185 Graham Road: Unsafe building is currently held up by shoring scaffold. Case
has been complicated due to ownership.

Analysis

Page 125

99



12.9 Overall, the performance of planning has improved over the past year, with targets
across development management exceeded; 84% of Major Planning Applications were
determined in accordance with agreed timescales, beating a target of 70%. A total of 37
major applications were processed. 80% of minor applications were determined within
8 weeks, also beating the target of 75% and 88% of other applications were processed
within their 8 week deadline, beating a target of 80%. The quality of decisions slightly
suffered, with only 63% of cases taken to appeal being dismissed. Validation was also
below target, with 52% of applications processed in 5 days against an 80% target. This

may be accounted for by very large or complex applications being received.

12.10 Building control performance has remained consistent though it is still below the 50%
target, but an increase of 4% in the market share 2015/16 is an indicator that
performance is moving in the right direction. Chargeable applications processed within
3 working days improved in 2015/16 to 77%, or 3% below target, however the trend
shows a decline in the chargeable applications processed within 3 working. The number
of site investigations undertaken within one day of request was significantly above (13%)
target, with 93% of visits being undertaken in 2015/16. The percentage (91%) was still
significantly higher than the target of 80% in 2016/17. Overall, the service looks to be

continuing to improve.

100
Page 126



13. Appendix - Site Allocations in the SALP

13.1

13.2

and Area Action Plans

The Hackney Local Plan contains a suite of Local Development Documents, some of
which, allocate sites for development at different scales. The Site Allocations Local Plan
allocates sites across the borough for development and is the key provider of new sites
to meet objectively assessed housing needs. In addition to this document the borough
has three area action plans which designate sites and prescribe specific policy for Manor

House, Dalston and Hackney Central.

The status of these sites is important as is constitutes a practical measure of the
performance of these plans in regenerating Hackney and achieving the overarching

objectives of the core strategy.

101
Page 127



Status of Sites in the Site Allocations Local Plan

=iz Known As Status Permission
Reference
. Permission Granted (CPO) -

6 Colville Estate Hyde Phase 1 and 2 under 2014/0621

Road N1 5PT .
Construction

Kings Crescent, Green Permission Granted - Started

¥ Lanes, N4 2XG on site. 2013/1128
Marian Court, Homerton Permission Granted - Not

¢ High St, E9 6BT Started 2012/1731
Bridge House, Homerton | Permission Granted - Phase 2

. High St, E9 6JL Started 2012/1731
Tower Court, Clapton Permission Granted - Not

[e Common, E5 9AJ Started 2016/1930

15 g‘f’ Edwards’s Road, B9 | o icsion Granted - Started | 2013/2159
St Leonard's Court, New .

16 North Road, N1 6JA Permission Granted - Started 2012/2915
213-215, New North

27 Road, N1 6SU Development Completed 2009/2102
337 Kingsland Road and . .

84 Adjacent Car Park, E8 | ormission Expired - Not 2011/2876

Started

4DA
12 — 20 Paul Street,

95 EC2A 4JH Development Completed 2011/1922
102 — 110 Clifton Street, | Permission Granted —

2 EC2A 4HT Development completed 2008/2333
64 - 80 Clifton Street and

100 4 - 8 Holywell Lane, No Permission Granted N/A
EC2A 4HB
Holywell Row EC2 at

101 Junction of King, EC2A Permission Granted - Started 2014/3268
3NT
35 — 45 Great Eastern .

103 Street, EC2A 3ER No Permission Granted N/A
Telephone Exchange,

107 Shoreditch High Street, No Permission Granted N/A
E2 7DJ

102

Page 128




Bishopsgate, Shoreditch

Planning application called in

L High Street, E1 6JU by Mayor of London 2014/2425
EDF Energy, 10 Appold o

115 Street, EC2N 2BN No Permission Granted N/A
Telephone House, 110

121 Tabernacle Street, EC2A | No Permission Granted N/A
4LE
Land Bounded by Sun

124 Street, Crown Place Permission Granted - Started 2015/0877
EC2A 2AL
Street block bounded .

125 Curtain Road, EC2A 2BF No Permission Granted N/A

126 fﬁg City Road, EC1V Planning Permission - Pending | 2016/1814
Crown House 145, City

127 Road and 37 East Road Permission Granted - Started 2012/3259
EC1V 1LP
Land bounded by Curtain o

128 Road, EC2A 3LP Permission Granted - Started 2012/3871
London College of

129 Fashion, 100-102 Curtain | No Permission Granted N/A
EC2A 3AE
Site at Junction of

130 Shoreditch High St, E1 No Permission Granted N/A
6PG
London College of

133 Fashion 182 Mare Street | No Permission Granted n/a
E8 3RF
Hackney Police Station, . .

134 2 Lower Clapton Road :e”e“:ls"’” Refused - Pending | »15/3316
E5 OPA PP
Wilmer Place, Stoke Permission Granted - Not

135 Newington, N16 OLH Started 2013/3186
Anvil House, 8-32 -

136 Matthias Road, N16 8NU No Permission Granted N/A
84-90 Great Eastern .

137 Street, EC2A 3DA Permission Granted - Started 2016/4054
Site bounded by

138 Tabernacle Street EC2A | No Permission Granted N/A
4EA

103

Page 129




Site of 5-13 (9consec.)

139 Holywell Lane and EC2A | Permission Granted - Started 2012/3792
3PQ
Ash Grove Bus Depot, -

143 Andrews Road E8 4RH No Permission Granted N/A

166 Land bounded by Multiple Permissions - Started and Completed.
Warburton Rd, E8 3RH North West Side of Site has no Planning.

190 ﬁ:r’]zes 189 -222 Moming | 1 elopment Completed 2009/0445
10-50 Willow Street, .

204 EC2A 4BH Permission Granted - Started 2012/0123
Wakefield House, Chart L

206 Street, N1 6DD No Permission Granted N/A
27-37 Well Street L

223 London, E9 7QX No Permission Granted N/A
Works Andrews Road, .

225 E8 4RL No Permission Granted N/A
113-137 Hackney Road, .

233 E2 8ET Permission Granted 2015/3455

244 ;JS Long Street, E2 Permission Granted - Started | 2012/2013
ARRIVA / Stamford,

251 Rookwood Road, N16 No Permission Granted N/A
6SS
Tram Depot, 38-40

256 Upper Clapton Road, E5 | No Permission Granted N/A
8BQ
Britannia Leisure, Hyde .

268 Road N1 5JU No Permission Granted N/A
Former Rose Lipman -

270 Downham Road N1 5TH No Permission Granted N/A

271 164-170 Mare Street, E8 No Permission Granted N/A
3RH

272 41-45 Stamford Hill, N16 No Permission Granted N/A
5SR

273 25('894 Stamford Hill, N16 | 5. ission Granted - Started | 2013/3856
71-73 Lordship Road, Permission Granted - Not

i N16 0QX Started 2011/2526

104

Page 130




Telephone Exchange,

281 Upper Clapton Road, E5 | No Permission Granted N/A
9JZ

283 Nightingale Estate, Permission Granted for some N/A
Downs Road, E5 8LB elements.

285 151 Stamford Hill, N16 No Permission Granted N/A
5LG

286 Woodberry Down, Seven | Permission Granted - Phase 3 2010/2427

Sisters Road, N4 1DH

Started and Kick Start Site 4

Page 131

105




Status of Sites in the Manor House AAP

Site Known As Status Permission
Reference
Ivy House North East Corner - lvy House No N/A
Permission
Granted
318 Green 318 Green Lanes 2016/0734 | Current
Lanes Application
320 Green 320-324 Green Lanes No N/A
Lanes Permission
Granted
Yard Building | North East Corner, Manor House No N/A
Permission
Granted
Manor North East Corner, Manor House No N/A
House/lvy Permission
House Infill Granted
SE4 Boys Club and Deaf Centre No N/A
Permission
Granted
SE3 Prospective buildings SE1-SE5 No N/A
Permission
Granted
SE1 Marlborough Parade and Marlborough No N/A
House/Prospective buildings SE1-SES Permission
Granted
SE2 Marlborough Parade and Marlborough No N/A
House/Prospective buildings SE1-SE5 Permission
Granted
Hotel Site South West Corner, Manor House 2015/0844 | Granted

Page 132

106



Status of Sites in the Dalston AAP

Sl Known As Status Permission
Reference
130 Kingsland Road and site to i
A the rear 130A Kingsland Road Current Application 2017/3600
B Dalstqn Kingsland Station and | Permission Granted - 2014/222
associated works Completed
c 51-57 Kingsland High St Permission Granted - 2013/2042
Completed
25-33A, 2-8 & 10-34 Kingsland | Permission Granted -
=l High Street Completed 2013/1039
1, 3, 5, 7 Dalston Lane,
D2 (Dalston Western Curve), & 1- | No Permission Granted N/A
7 Ashwin St
2-34 Kingsland High Street Permission Granted -
D2 (Dalston Western Curve Site) | completed 2013/1039
E 36-42 Kingsland High Street No Permission Granted N/A
(currently McDonalds)
F-F12 Kingsland Shopping Centre No Permission Granted N/A
G1 Birkbeck Mews/Road No Permission Granted N/A
G2 Ridley Road Market No Permission Granted N/A
G3 Ridley Rd/St. Mark’s Rise No Permission Granted N/A
Ridley Road Market — south
G4 side abutting northern edge of | No Permission Granted N/A
railway
G5 Land t(.) Rear of Kingsland No Permission Granted N/A
Shopping Centre
2-16 Ashwin St, 11 -15
H Dalston Lane, southern end of | No Permission Granted N/A
‘eastern curve’.
1 17-25 Dalston Lane No Permission Granted N/A
Thames House and corner of
J1 Hartwell Street and Dalston Temporary use on site. 2015/0171
Lane to 27 Dalston Lane
J2 Former Tyssen Arms public Permission Granted - 2012/1695
house. Completed
K Grampul House, Tyssen Street | No Permission Granted N/A
L Stamford Works and Gillett Sq No Permission Granted N/A
Phase 2
- . Permission Granted -
M Holy Trinity Primary School Completed 2013/0457
67A-73 Dalston Lane and Permission Granted -
b] frontage onto Tyssen Street Completed 2012/3558

Page 133

107



Dalston Lane terraces — 46 —
(0] 86a Dalston Lane and 457/459 | Permission Granted - Started | 2014/0323
Queensbridge Road
CLR James Library, 16-22
P Dalston Lane, 62 Beechwood No Permission Granted N/A
Road
Former Roseberry Cottages, Permission Granted -
Q Roseberry Place Completed 2011/0737

Status of Sites in the Hackney Central AAP

Site Site address/name Status

reference

A1 Tesco east, Morning Lane north side No planning applications received
however informal discussions have
taken place.

A2 Tesco west/ Mare Street backs, Morning | No planning applications received

Lane however informal discussions have
taken place.

A3 5-13 Morning Lane No planning applications received.

A4 Clapton Bus Depot No planning applications received
however informal discussions have
taken place.

A5 Retail frontage west of Clapton Bus No planning applications received.

Depot fronting Mare Street

A6 Railway Arches, Bohemia Place No planning applications received
however informal discussions have
taken place.

A7 2-20 Morning Lane and Hackney Trades | No planning applications received.

Hall

B1 7-19 Amhurst Road and Council owned Planning permission (Reference

station car park 2011/2209) granted.

B2 Hackney Central Station ticket hall Several planning permissions have
been granted and completed in
connection with refurbishment of
the station.

C1 The Rectory, 356 Mare Street, Land rear | Planning permission (Reference

of 392-396 Mare Street and Learning 2012/3345) granted.
Trust site

Page 134

108



D1 1-17 Lower Clapton Road, Clarence No planning applications received.
House and 2-12a Clarence Road

D2 302-304 Mare Street No planning applications received.

E1 Florfield Road depot, Maurice Bishop No planning applications received.
House and 13 Reading Lane

F1 7a Sylvester Road and ‘the wash-house’, | Planning permission (Reference
117 Wilton Way 2009/2673) granted and

development completed.
F2 1-10 Great Eastern buildings and land to | Planning application (Reference

the rear of 29-39 Horton Road

2014/1460) lodged.

Page 135

109



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

& Hackney

REGULATORY SERVICES - Regulatory Services’ Service Plan Update

CORPORATE COMMITTEE CLASSIFICATION:
MEETING DATE 2016/17
Open
12 December 2017

If exempt, the reason will be listed in the
main body of this report

WARD(S) AFFECTED

All Wards

GROUP DIRECTOR Kim Wright, Neighbourhoods and Housing

Page 137



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.

GROUP DIRECTOR'’S INTRODUCTION

The Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 2016/17 was presented to the
Corporate Committee in July 2016 (see Appendix 2). The report was
noted. The report now being presented;

provides an update on the performance of the Food Safety and Trading
Standards against the Plan to the end of Q4 2016/17 and the work
undertaken to improve the quality of food premises in Hackney to
protect the health of the public and also assist businesses to comply
with their legal requirements.

shows the impact of the service in managing and reducing the numbers
of ‘not’ broadly compliant premises and those not yet rated, in order to
improve the percentage of broadly compliant premises in the Borough;

notes the greater emphasis placed on driving up compliance through
advice, education, inspections of establishments considered to be
flouting the law, and the necessary interventions undertaken.

This report also highlights the work of Hackney Trading Standards
during 2016/17(see Regulatory Services Service Plan, Appendix 2).
The report sets out the Service’s performance against the 2016/17
priorities (see Appendix 1) and identifies areas of interest for the
future.

In fulfilling its duties, the service provides support to individuals,
communities and businesses in the borough to enable people to buy
goods and services with confidence and security, and by offering
advice to businesses to help them to comply with the law.

The Service also fulfils an important role in relation to public safety
and health, for example through ensuring safe storage of dangerous
items and by preventing the sale of dangerous products including the
supply of age-restricted products to minors.

The Service also seeks to ensure there is a fair trading environment
and helps businesses comply with legislation in order to protect
consumers from unfair trading practices.

While this report sets out performance in 2016/17 it is the first report
presented to the Corporate Committee since the implementation of a
new Community Safety, Enforcement and Business Regulation
Service, which was introduced on the 3 of May 2017.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Corporate Committee is recommended to:

Note the level and scope of work being carried out to meet the
requirements of the plan.
Note the level and scope of work being carried out to meet the
requirements of the plan.

Page 138



3.

3.1

3.2

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

REASONS FOR DECISION

The Food Standards Agency recommends that food service plans are
submitted for Member approval to ensure local transparency and
accountability.

Trading Standards have a duty to ensure consumer protection law is
enforced fairly and proportionately.

BACKGROUND

Food Safety: The Food Law Enforcement Service Plan (FLESP) is a
statutory plan which sets out how the Council will undertake
enforcement of food safety legislation.

The Plan is prepared in accordance with the Food Standards
Agency’s (FSA) Framework Agreement (2000), issued 1 April 2001,
and is an important part of the process to ensure that national food
safety priorities and standards are addressed and delivered locally. It
also focuses on key deliverables, provides an essential link with
financial planning, provides objectives for the future including
identifying major issues that cross service boundaries and provides a
means of managing performance and making performance
comparisons.

The performance of the Food Safety Service is measured against its
fulflment of the Plan and the percentage of broadly compliant
premises within the borough.

Trading Standards: In fulfilling the Trading Standards service provides
support to individuals, communities and businesses in the borough to
enable people to buy goods and services with confidence and
security, and by offering advice to businesses to help them to comply
with the law.

The service also fulfils an important role in relation to public safety and
health, for example through ensuring safe storage of dangerous items
and by preventing the sale of dangerous products including the supply
of age-restricted products to minors.

The service also seeks to ensure there is a fair trading environment
and helps businesses comply with legislation in order to protect
consumers from unfair trading practices.

FOOD LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE PLAN UPDATE

The FSA’s Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS)
data shows that 85% of Hackney’'s food premises were broadly
compliant as of 31st March 2016. The data recently released by the
FSA provides a comparative performance data for each local authority
in the country.

Page 139



5.2

5.3

5.4

Tables 1a+b below show food hygiene performance data across North
East (NE) London Food Sector boroughs to the end of Q4 2016/17.
The tables highlight that Hackney has the third highest number of food
premises across the sector and is also ranked third in terms of broad
compliance. The two Boroughs with the higher number of food
premises, the London boroughs of Camden and Tower Hamlets have
lower broadly compliance figures respectively (71% and 81%
respectively).

Table 2 demonstrates the level of enforcement action taken across the
NE London Food Sector boroughs. It shows that Hackney served the
third highest number of hygiene improvement notices, the fourth
highest number of Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notices and has
the 6™ highest number of voluntary closures.

Table 3 highlights that Hackney is the only one of five NE London
Food Sector boroughs to have completed 100% inspections of high
risk premises for food standards.

Table 1a — Broadly Compliant

% Broad % Broad % Broad % Broad % Broad % Broad
Local Compliance Compliance Compliance - Compliance - Compliance - Compliance % Unrated

Authority (inc. unrated) (excl. unrated) category A category B category C (Cat A-C) Premises
S 49% 54% 100% 31% 59% 56% 10%
Camden 71% 86% 2% 32% 87% 73% 18%
Enfield 52% 55% 11% 30% 76% 62% 5%
Hackney 85% 88% 0% 41% 84% 73% 3%
Havering 87% 88% 17% 59% 79% 74% 1%
Islington 78% 84% 11% 40% 77% 69% 7%
Newham No results submitted
Redbridge 92% 97% 50% 70% 95% 93% 5%
Tower Hamlets 81% 87% 0% 25% 83% 67% 6%
Waltham Forest 66% 76% 10% 32% 85% 75% 13%

Page 140




Table 1b — Breakdown of Premises

Total No. No. No. No.
Total No. of Broadly Broadly Broadly Broadly

Local of Total No. Compliant No. of Compliant No. of Compliant No. of Compliant

Authority Premises of Unrated Premises Category A | category A | category B | category B | Category C | category C
Do | 1335 130 653 1 1 52 16 554 325
Camden 3761 672 2669 63 1 240 76 1079 938
Enfield 2628 128 1373 19 2 179 53 501 379
Hackney 2778 72 2371 12 0 202 82 713 598
Havering 1860 20 1621 6 1 116 69 452 356
Islington 2345 167 1825 19 2 193 78 830 642

Newham No results submitted

Redbridge 1877 85 1730 8 4 70 49 768 731
fower 2973 193 2414 35 0 208 51 739 610
Lraltham 1971 256 1306 10 1 98 31 451 385

Table 2 - Enforcement

Authority Total number of | Total number of | Total number of | Total number of | Total number of | Total number of Total
Name Voluntary Seizure, Hygiene - Simple Hygiene Written number of
closures detention and Emergency Cautions Improvement Warnings Prosecution
surrender of Prohibition Notices s
food Notices
Barking and 1 0 1 0 10 310 0
Dagenham
Camden (2) 33 4 6 0 36 746 0
Enfield 17 0 0 7 65 1,132 15
Hackney 4 1 4 0 39 612 0
Havering 1 0 0 0 16 874 2
Islington 14 0 1 7 14 361 4
Newham 19 4 2 16 74 963 0
Redbridge 7 0 0 0 8 19 0
Tower 1 5 10 0 36 1,309 5
Hamlets
Waltham 1 1 7 0 16 444 5
Forest

Page 141




Table 3 - Food Standards

Authority Total % of interventions - Total number of Total number of Written Total number of
Name premises rated A Improvement Notices Warnings Prosecutions

Barking and
Dagenham 62.50 0 1 0
Camden (2) 100.00 0 0 0
Enfield 100.00 0 332 0
Hackney 100.00 0 437 0
Havering 100.00 0 763 0
Islington 71.43 0 25 0
Newham 16.67 0 7 0
Redbridge NR 0 0 0
Tower
Hamlets 40.00 1 0 0
Waltham
Forest 100.00 2 0 0

5.5

5.6

100%

The graph below shows Hackney’'s broad compliance percentage
performance data direction of travel since 2011. It can be seen that
there has been a year-on-year improvement with the percentage of
broadly compliant increasing by 28% since 2011. This is a direct
reflection of the efforts officers have made to raise the compliance of
the food businesses in Hackney using a range of interventions
including providing food hygiene training through the Environmental
Health Training Centre; undertaking inspections of unrated premises
in a timely manner; and taking enforcement action where appropriate
thereby ensuring the public are protected.

The broadly complaint figure is a key performance measurement for
food establishments in the Borough. A broadly compliant business is
one that achieves a food hygiene rating score of 3, 4 or 5. The number
of unrated premises also has an adverse effect on the broadly
compliant score as such businesses are deemed to be non-compliant
until they have been inspected. Unfortunately, the Service has no
control of the number of new business registrations that it receives.

Please see graph in para 5.10.

% Broadly Compliance

‘h 85%

50%
° 57% 1% 73% a0 79% 83%
0%

April .

pril Aopril ]
2011 5012 br April April
2013 5014 o April
2015 e Apr-17

Page 142

[ % Broadly Compliance




5.7 Food Hygiene Inspection Programme — This concentrates on the
handling, preparation, and storage of food in ways that prevent
foodborne illness. Members will be aware from the FLESP that
premises are categorised and the frequency of inspection depends
primarily on their category as specified in the Food Law Code of
Practice. The table below shows the progress with inspections.

Inspection Rating Number of Number of | RAG The frequency of inspection
food hygiene inspections is for Category:
inspections completed A: every 6 months (2 insp/yr)
due 2016/17 B: every 12 months
A 21x2=42 42 [ C:every 18 months
B 331 331 D: every 2 years
C 648 (114 NBC**) 266 E: every 3 years
D 745* (60 NBC**) 199
E 358* 90
New/Unrated premises 24
carried over from 2015/16 -

5.8

5.9

5.10

*relates to those premises subject to non-official interventions
**NBC = Not Broadly Complaint premises, which are not broadly compliant with
food hygiene legislation (see 5.6 above)

Category D & E premises are subject to the alternative enforcement
strategy (AES) and are therefore subject to interventions other than
inspections. Every Competent Authority must devise an AES to
determine how they will conduct official controls duties at premises
rated as low risk i.e. those rated category D and E. This can include
sending a self-assessment questionnaire for example.

It should be noted that the number of inspections due above includes
a considerable backlog from the previous year. Category D and E are
not considered a priority by this Service as resources are directed to
the highest risk premises. A category D project was commissioned in
Q4 2015/16, however the contractor employed to complete the project
left part way through the project and the project was not completed. In
order to address the back log of food premises rated D a project
commenced in 2017/18 to re-inspect and re-rate these businesses.
The same will also apply to premises rated E where the AES applies.

Inspection rates are acceptable; and the numbers of unrated premises
i.e. those premises not yet risk rated because they have not been
inspected are being maintained at a low level. The service has a
target of 70 unrated premises as at 315t March 2018.

Page 143



5.11

100
80
60
40

20

The graph below shows the variation in numbers of unrated premises.

Total Number of Unrated Premises

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 lan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

Total Number of Unrated Premises

Food Hygiene Rating Scheme (FHRS)

The FHRS is key to the Food Standards Agency’s strategic objective:
safer food for the nation. Restaurants, takeaways, cafés, sandwich
shops, pubs, hotels, supermarkets and other retail food outlets in the
Borough, as well as other businesses where consumers can eat or
buy food, are given a hygiene rating as part of the scheme.

Table 4 below shows the number of O - 5 rated business in 2016/17.

Zero rated premises increased by three from 8 to 11 in the period from
1st April 2016 to 31t March 2017. However, the number of zero rated
premises is lower than the London average which is encouraging
(0.47% for Hackney compared to 0.69% for London). Premises rated
1 and 2 actually fell in the same period (18% and 11% respectively).

Currently, business that are rated 0-2 are encouraged to request a
rerating once the improvements highlighted during the initial
inspection have been completed. The same businesses are also
contacted by the business consultant to support the business through
these improvements.

The number of premises in Hackney with a FHRS of 3 remains high
when compared to London and nationally (see graph below) and
further work is planned with these businesses through the business
consultancy process to assist businesses to improve hygiene and
achieve a higher rating. There has been an increase of 18 in the
period 18t April 2017- 31st March 2017 in premises rated FHRS 3.

In 2017/18 the Service is charging businesses who request to be re-
rated following improvement works. Prior to this the business had to
wait between 3-6 months from the date of application for a re-rating
inspection. The business can apply at any time and more than once.

Page 144



This service will encourage businesses to adopt this new way of
working as a means of raising standards.

5.19 Business rated 4 and 5 are those business that are compliant across a
range of food hygiene parameters in terms of hygiene in the business,
the structure of the business and the confidence in management
demonstrated at the time of the inspection. In the period 1t April 2017-
31st March 2017 the number of premises rated FHRS 4 increased by
84 and those with a rating of 5 increased by 85.
Table 4
Apr- | May- | Jun- | Jul- | Aug- | Sep- | Oct- | Nov- | Dec- | Jan- | Feb- | Mar-
16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 17 17 17
0 8 10 11 12 12 13 16 16 17 13 12 11
1 143 145 | 146 | 136 | 133 | 129 | 127 | 118 | 1117 | 122 | 117 | 117
2| 201 203 201 | 204 | 191 193 | 182 | 183 | 186 | 180 | 174 | 179
3| 608| 601| 606| 609 | 580 | 623 | 626 | 626 | 624 | 622 | 624 | 626
4| 576 | 577 | 584 | 596 | 562 | 597 | 605| 608 | 608 | 613 | 619 | 630
5| 669| 671| 677 | 687 | 640 | 698 | 705 | 723 | 718 | 725 | 737 | 754

The graph below shows the distribution of premises by month (as a %) in
Hackney compared to local (London) and national trends.

70.00
60.00
50.00
40.00
30.00
20.00
10.00

0.00

5.20

% Distribution in Month

65.48

48.87

32.5
27.01 27.19
05932 i—- (=1 i'l .-‘

m Packney mLordlon mEnglandl

Food Standards Inspection Programme — This concentrates on
compliance with composition, presentation, labelling requirements and
management controls. Food standards inspections are also carried
out on a risk based programme. The Code of Practice specifies the
frequency of inspection. Premises that fall under a category A rating
may be dealt with via the alternative enforcement strategy. The table
below shows progress for food standards inspections. Similarly the
inspections due include a considerable backlog.

Page 145




Number of food Number of | RAG
Inspection Rating standards inspections
inspections due completed
A 19 19
B 558* 304
C 156* 199
New/Unrated premises 24 24
carried over from .
2015/16

The frequency of inspection
for Category:

A: every 12 months

B: every 2 years

C: every 5 years

*relates to those premises subject to non-official interventions

5.21  There has been an overall decrease in enforcement activities mainly
due to improved engagement with businesses and the positive effects
of face-to-face contact and support by ward officers out on the district.
The table below shows a comparison of enforcement activities
undertaken since 1st April 2016:

Enforcement action 2015/16 2016/17
(end of | (end of yr)
yr)

Total number of Food Hygiene Written warnings 973 580
issued
Hygiene Emergency Prohibition notices (formal 0 4
closure)
Voluntary Closures due to Food Hygiene imminent 4 3
risk
Premises receiving a Hygiene Improvement notice 43 39
Seizure/detention of food 7 0
Prosecution of food premises 3 0
Total 1030 626

Page 146




5.22  The table below shows level of other activities undertaken by the team
are shown in the tables below:

Types and Numbers of Service Requests received 2016/17

Type of Service Request Total
Food Registrations 229
Licensing Consultations 218
Business requests for advice/information 201
Food hygiene complaints 137
MST applications 98
Alleged food poisoning 94
FHRS enquiry 64
H&S complaints 65
Pest complaints 53
Food premises complaints 39
Food standards complaints 37
Foreign body complaints 29
Food labelling complaints 20
Smoking complaints 9
Drainage complaints 9
FOI 6
Food hazard warning 6
Miscellaneous 17
Other 9*
Grand Total 1336

* Others include: - singular enquires on accumulation of rubbish, trading on the
highway, bereavement, stray animals, non-defined enquires etc.

6. TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE PLAN UPDATE

6.1  The Trading Standards service delivers on both statutory and Mayoral
priorities as well as delivering targeted project work of National and local
importance. These projects are determined by the Chartered Trading
Standards Institute, by monitoring trends and fulfilling local priorities.

Statutory Priorities

6.2 Inspections

6.3 Table 1 below sets out the number of proactive enforcement visits
undertaken by the service with 151 high risk visits being undertaken and
the target 100% inspection rate being achieved.

Page 147



6.4

6.5

6.6
6.7

6.8
6.9

Table 1

High Upper Lower Low Total
Med Med
151(100%)* 179(88% )* 30(5%)* 66(1%)** 426

* a high risk premises is described as selling products subject to safety and age restricted legislation e.g.
knives

#an upper medium risk premises is described as selling high value goods e.g. a car dealer

* a lower medium risk premises is one that that is subject to pricing compliance e.g. a newsagent or similar
commercial outlet

** a low risk premises is a business subject to compliance with the Companies Act 2006

The service plan for 2016/17 made a commitment to inspect all high
risk premises and this was achieved.

The Consumer Rights Act 2015 amended the powers of entry of for
Trading Standards officers. The Act requires the Service to give 24-
hours’ notice before visiting a business to undertake a formal
inspection. This has resulted in risk based inspections as well as
carrying out intelligence led projects. The amended powers of entry
and has led to a reduction in the overall number of visits conducted
and reduced the ability to pick up potential infringements as prior
warning has to be given.

Weights and Measures

Officers conducted 84 visits in relation to weights & measures and
pricing. This work is undertaken to ensure that customers are not
defrauded in terms of short measure. Traders have been advised to
ensure the weighing indicators of the scales are visible to customers
to help ensure weights are clearly understood.

Animal Feed

The service has 23 registered animal feed premises. In 2016/17
seventeen premises were visited. The Service will ensure that 100%
inspections due will be completed in 2017/18.

Mayoral Priorities

6.10

The Service delivered on two of the Mayoral priorities as set out
below.

e Mayor’s priority 1 - The service tackles inequality by protecting
vulnerable groups such as the elderly and young by investigating
doorstep crime complaints and conducting age restricted test
purchases.

e Mayor’s priority 2 - The service processes a large number of
complaints and service requests and specialises in Proceeds of
Crime (POCA) work that delivers an income to the council whilst
removing the financial benefits for criminals.

Page 148




Age Restricted Interventions

6.11

The service has met the target of a minimum of 20 test purchase visits
for knifes, alcohol, fireworks for the year. Eight-five premises were
visited during this period and some of the outcomes are set out in
table 2 below.

Table 2

Product No of Sales Outcome

Alcohol 6 6 penalty notices

Fireworks 0 N/A

Knives 8 5 Warning letter
2 BTEC training course
1 prosecution — the trader was fined

£375 plus a victim surcharge of £37
and costs of £1946.

Acid 12 8 premises signed up to voluntary
agreement.

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

It is illegal to sell an age-restricted product to someone under 18 years
of age and the Service will take enforcement action against those
businesses and traders that break this law. In addition the protection
of children from harm is one of the Licensing objectives, supported by
Service in its capacity as a Responsible Authority.

Trading Standards hosted the first “Knife Sales Seminar” in June
2016, and retailers from the Victoria & Homerton wards were invited to
attend. The presentation covered a wide range of topics, including an
explanation of the legislation around knives, best practice, and the role
of the Metropolitan Police and Trading Standards.

Warning letters were also issued to the traders that had sold knives
during test purchase operations.

An education package has been introduced to support small
businesses offering them a BTEC Level 2 Award in “Preventing under
Age Sales”. The option to participate in this scheme is given to a
business if it is their first offence.

The service carried out a series of action days in search of illegal
tobacco. On the first day foreign cigarettes and 0.15 kg of hand rolling
tobacco was seized.

Page 149




6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

During the second action day five premises were visited focussing on
counterfeit and/or non—duty paid products. Three premises were found
in possession of illegal products which were subsequently seized.

A third action day was arranged to establish the supplying of illegal
tobacco. Premises were selected using intelligence available to the
service. Officers were assisted by trained sniffer dogs. Six premises
were visited and one premises in Hoxton was found to have illegal
product. Twenty six packets of cigarettes were seized.

To address the increase in activity window stickers for traders that sell
alcohol and tobacco have been developed to display in shops to deter
both customers asking for and the traders supplying illicit alcohol and
tobacco. Traders are being asked voluntarily to display the window
sticker saying ‘'we don’t buy illegal alcohol and tobacco’.

To further develop this area of work the North East London lllegal
Tobacco group met in June 2016 to discuss communication strategies
for promoting the enforcement against illegal tobacco.

Reducing the impact of scams on vulnerable groups

6.21

6.22

Trading Standards continue to support vulnerable adults who are fall
victim to scammers. Officers provide and fit call blocking devices
which block certain unsolicited calls from the receiver.

The Service also returns cheques which have been sent by
consumers to rogue traders but intercepted by the Scambusters
Team. Ten cheques have been returned in 2016/17. Scambusters are
a national organisation that investigate large scale fraud cases that
they receive from various intelligence sources i.e. the Police, Citizens
Advice Bureau, Trading Standards Teams and the public.

Rogue Traders/Operation Broadway

6.23

6.24

6.25

Trading Standards has been carrying out a series of joint agency visits
to virtual offices as part of Operation Broadway which is a multi-
agency project tackling investment fraud in the City. Officers found
that while broadly compliant businesses needed advice on due
diligence under the Money Laundering Regulations 2017 and the
London Local Authority Act 2007.

Under the Regulations the virtual offices must have proof of both the
identity of the persons and residential address for those persons
intending to use the virtual post box address.

Of particular concern is a trader based at Wenlock Road, London N1
7TA, the source of a high volume complaints concerning rogue
traders. The address is used for mail forwarding and company
registration business. The company had rapidly become a market
leader and has been registering 30,000 new businesses every year.
The Service has worked closely with the company in an attempt to
resolve the issues using a multi-agency approach including the Police
and HMRC.

Page 150



6.26

The company has responded positively by putting in place an action
plan to address the various compliance issues.

Unsafe Cosmetics

6.27

As a result of proactive work in this area, a number of traders were
found guilty of selling banned cosmetics containing hydroquinone and
mercury, high dose prescription only steroid creams and counterfeit
cosmetics. Sentencing took place on 26 May 2016 with the following
results:-

e Defendant one

o 10 weeks custodial sentence suspended for 2 years
Company disqualification of 4 years

Community Service 100 hours

Costs £10,000

Fine £2000

POCA £3661.59

O O O O O

e Defendant two
o 12 weeks suspended sentence suspended for two years
Community Service 100 hours
Costs £10,000
Fine £3000
POCA £99 confiscation

O O O O

e Defendant three
o £1000 fine

e Defendant four
o £500 fine

Financial Investigations

6.28

The Service has three accredited financial investigators undertaking
investigations for other Services within the Council as well as other
local authorities. The service is currently working on cases for the
Planning department and Barking and Dagenham’s Trading Standards
service.

Additional Service Priorities

National Minimum Wage

6.29

6.30

The National Minimum Wage (NMW) is the minimum pay per hour
workers are entitled to by law depending on a worker's age and if they
are an apprentice.

On the 15t April 2016 the Government's introduced the National Living
Wage for all working people aged 25 and over, currently set at £7.50
per hour. The current National Minimum Wage for those under the age
of 25 still applies

Page 151



6.31

6.32

6.33

In response to this 800 nudge-letters were sent to traders in Hackney.
These letters were reminders to traders about their duties with respect
to the national minimum wage and the national living wage.

Of the 800 letters sent 144 calls were received from Hackney
employers and fifty-seven disclosures were made with most stating
they had nil arrears.

In addition four webinars were held in Q4 of 2016/17 by the HMRC to
reinforce this initiative.

Shisha Enforcement

6.34

The project was not undertaken in 2016/17 as there was a focus on
visits to premises selling corrosive products. A Shisha project is
scheduled to be carried out with Environmental Health colleagues in
November 2017.

Lettings Agents

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

Officers visited 111 lettings agent in 2016/17 to ensure that fees were
displayed on the business website and inside the premises.

Of the 111 visits, 45.9% of the businesses had the fees displayed on
their website, 16.2% of the businesses had no website and 20.7%
were found not to have fees on their website or on the premises.

Officers were satisfied that some small businesses were keen to
address issues instantly at the time of visit as they did not have to
discuss or gain approval from head office. The larger businesses had
the benefit of information filtering down from their head offices and
were generally all complaint.

Follow up action has revealed that the level of compliance on one or
both of the two requirements was higher than expected with the
smaller and independent companies needing more guidance to bring
them to compliance.

Further follow up work is planned for 2017/18 in anticipation of new
legislation that will ban letting agents from charging fees to
prospective tenants. It is expected that the bill will come before
Parliament sometime in 2018.

Winter Warmer Event

6.40

6.41

The Winter Warmer event was held by Hackney Council for over 55s
at Stoke Newington Town Hall N16 0JR on Thursday 26th Jan 2017.

This is a popular event for this age group attracting over 600
residents. The aim of the event is to provide residents with advice on
keeping warm, keeping fit, eating healthy, learning how to be involved
in the digital world that we live in and saving money during the winter
months. Trading standards provided advice to minimise the risk of our
elderly citizens from becoming victims of scams and rogue traders.

Consumer Complaints and Service requests

Page 152



6.42

6.43

6.44

6.45

In 2016/17 there were a total of 3128 consumer complaints and
service requests received from members of the public compared to
3229 in the previous year.

This fall of 3.23% in the number of complaints received reflects a
national reduction in the number of complaints received by the
Consumer Advice Bureau (CAB) who receive the majority of
complaints on behalf of trading standards.

There has also been a 13.5% decrease in the number of service
requests received by the service. In 2016/17 there were 333 and, for
the same period in the preceding year, there was 385.

The Service investigates a range of consumer complaints received
from the CAB. Table 3 below provides a breakdown of the complaints
and service requests received in 2016/17:-

Table 3

Type of complaint/service request Number of requests
received

Complaints received from the CAB 2680

Licensing requests received as responsible | 208
authority

Other type of complaints 115

Requests from public/other body 103

Notification of weights and measures |6
verification

Animal feed registration

Other requests 15

7.0

7.1

7.3

7.4

Business Regulation Unit

The new Community Safety, Enforcement and Business Regulation
service includes the creation of an Integrated Partnership Unit and
Intelligence Hub. This area brings together all strategy, partnership,
partnership support and intelligence capabilities, undertakes and
coordinates the strategy and partnerships actions for the entire service
creating a consistent joined up approach to strategy development and
delivery, also enabling through capacity and efficiency improvements the
simplification of how this service collaborates corporately with partners
and stakeholders and between services and disciplines.

It also brings together all performance management and enables
implementation of effective joint tasking based upon strong integrated
evidences. It also enables simplification of reporting and data
management processes and ensures that all functions benefit from
analytical expertise.

The restructure also created a Business Regulation Unit which brings
together Food Safety, Health and Safety, Environmental Protection
(dealing with noise and odour issues in commercial premises), Licensing

Page 153




7.5

7.6

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

and Trading Standards into one place under a single management
structure. It captures and delivers what's best about specialist service
delivery but also enhances this with greater joint working and flexibility,
creating greater capacity to address demand and solving entrenched and
complex issues and problems.

This serves to reduce duplication, simplify customer processes and
encourage and enable a partnership and prevention relationship to be
formed with businesses which will see a rebalancing in activities from tick
box inspection and punitive action to positive support mechanisms
supporting businesses to self- regulate and enabling a focus on tackling
the worst examples of non-compliance in a more effective way.

The new approach also reduces the regulatory burden upon business by
aligning and joint tasking of services, particularly in business regulation,
will ensure the elimination of unnecessary multiple visits to premises.
Before enforcement takes place the enforcement service looks at options
to support the business through the plethora of legislative restrictions to
enable them to set a course to compliance without the need to recourse
to formal enforcement action. This approach benefits all businesses but
particularly new businesses and it also reduce demands on the
enforcement service making it more efficient

PERFORMANCE AGAINST PRIORITIES - APPENDIX 1

The report provides a 12 month update against the priorities for 2016/17
in respect of Food Safety and Trading Standards (see Appendix 1).

COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND
CORPORATE RESOURCES

This report requests the Corporate Committee to note the contents of the
Food Law Enforcement Service Plan (FLESP) 2016/17 and the Trading
Standards Service Plan Service Plan 2016/17 and Note the level and
scope of work being carried out to meet the requirements of the
respective plan.

As the performance data contained in this report and appendices is
retrospective, there are no immediate financial implications.

The total budget provision in 2017/18 for Environmental Health and

Trading Standards is £1,243,723. The service aims meet the cost of the
current work programmes from this budget.

Page 154



10.0 COMMENTS OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF LEGAL

10.1  One of the terms of reference of Corporate Committee is to develop,
review, monitor and maintain a strategic overview of the Council’s
regulatory function. This report falls within that term of reference.

10.2  All legislation quoted within the body of this report is correct. There are
no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Performance Against Priorities 2016/17 update
Appendix 2 - Food Law Enforcement Service Plan (FLESP) 2016/17
Appendix 3 - Regulatory Services Plan Service Plan 2016/17.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

Report Author

Gerry McCarthy, Head of Community Safety,
Enforcement and Business Regulation.
Gerry.McCarthy@hackney.gov.uk

Tel: 020 8356 7087

Comments of the Group
Director of Finance and

Philip Walcott, Group Accountant
Philip.Walcott@Hackney.gov.uk

Corporate Resources 020 8356 2396
Comments of the Interim Pauline Campbell, Senior Lawyer — General
Director of Legal Litigation

Pauline.Campbell@Hackney.gov.uk
Tel: 020 8356 2775

Page 155



mailto:Gerry.McCarthy@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.Walcott@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:Pauline.Campbell@hackney.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



/ST abed

Performance Against Priorities 2016/17 update
Table 1. Food Safety and Trading Standards

Appendix 1

Item no | What are the priorities? Where to intervene? Update
1. Develop the Food Law Enforcement Service Plan Completed
2. To submit the LAEMS Completed
3. There is a high level of imported foods from non- | To use intelligence led | The service took part in a five borough co-ordinated action
EU countries entering the borough, either directly | information to target illegal food | day on the 30t April 2016 and visited local butcher’s shops to
imported by businesses or by third parties located | activity in the borough and | ensure that they were not handling and selling unfit or illegal
elsewhere. Some of these foods can be illegal | using historical knowledge to | meat. Hackney focussed on Ridley Road. Four premises
(i.e. banned from importation, processed in a way | concentrate efforts on Ridley | were visited and although no food fraud or illegal meat was
that contravenes EU legislation, or they do not | Road market. found, further action days are planned for the remainder of
comply with compositional or labelling the year.
requirements).
A further action day took place on the 215t October 2016.
Eight premises were visited, 4 butchers and 4 African
retailers. No food related offences were noted at the butchers
shop. However at the four African retailers goods were for
sale that are prohibited on the list of increased levels of official
control on imports of certain feed and food of non-animal
origin produced by the European Union some non-
contraventions were noted for incorrect labelling of loose food
products, meat products without the correct documentation
and the sale of Palm Oil. All goods were surrendered and
removed from the premises. The food businesses operators
were warned and informed of the correct checks that need to
be implemented to ensure goods are only imported from
recognised EU establishments
4. The number of food businesses in the borough, | The Service manages a | New applications are managed to ensure that only those
subject to food hygiene controls, has risen by | programme of inspections for | businesses that are operating are maintained on the
approximately 17% from 2,535 in April 2015 to | all new/unrated food premises | database for inspection. At the end of Q4 2016/17 there were
2954 in April 2016. The number of new premises | to ensure their hygiene | 72 unrated premises. The Service has determined that no
are of particular concern to the Food Safety | compliance is assessed. more than 70 unrated premises should be on the database at
Service as they place a greater demand on the any one time. The Service is confident that figure can be
Service. maintained,
5. Hackney participates in the National Food | All high risk premise rated | Data is uploaded to the FSA National website every fortnight.
Hygiene Rating Scheme (FHRS). The scheme is | category A-C are visited every | Rating can be viewed at www.ratings.gov.uk
designed to give the public information about local | 6-18 months.

Document Number: 17814542

Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update




8GT abed

Appendix 1

food businesses so that they can make informed
choices about where they eat locally (and

Standards Agency (FSA) to tackle food fraud in
Hackney. The project was set out over five
phases and started in April 2014. Phases 1 & 2 of
the project were completed. However, the project
was unable to move to phase three due to
operational issues and the project stalled in 2015.

routinely deal with the
occurrence of food fraud in the
Borough, undertaking
enforcement  activities to
remove illegal food from the
food chain. This takes place
during routine food inspections,
following a complaint or service
request or as part of proactive
enforcement days undertaken
by the Service.

nationally).
6. Broad Compliance with Food Safety Legislation | The end of year target for the | At the end of Q4 85% of premises were broadly compliant
service is to have 80% of all | with food hygiene.
businesses inspected to be
broadly compliant.
7. This Service was awarded a grant by the Food | The Service will continue to | A meeting with the FSA in April 2016 agreed a way forward

that both sides would work to. However after further review it
was considered that the project in the form of the FSA
submission was not the way forward for Hackney. Action days
held this year in April and October 2016 have not revealed
any issues of concern. The work completed in phases 1 & 2
has stood up well and the traders have been adhering to the
advice given. In addition, action days held since the project
began have also not revealed an issue with food fraud in the
borough. Further, the recent intelligence received by the food
fraud officer has also revealed that food fraud is not actively
taking place in Hackney. The EH team have a presence in the
Ridley Road market in the form of a EHO responsible for
Dalston ward and this has acted as a deterrent to those
considering trading in illegal meats.

The way forward for Hackney is to broaden the food fraud
scope to include alcohol, rice, fish, olive oil, etc. Also the
subject needs to be integrated in to the work streams of other
teams such as Trading Standards, Licensing Enforcement
and Public Health.

Although the FSA funded project has not progressed the
Service have been proactively undertaking a programme of
action days specifically targeting traders in Ridley Road, and
butchers and importers to ensure compliance.

A work programme is currently being developed with a view
for inclusion the work streams of the departments highlighted
in 2017/18.

8. This Service will continue to support the work of

This project will look to target

This projectis led by Trading Standards and to date there has

Document Number: 17814542

Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update



6GT abed

Appendix 1

business premises where there
is a suspicion that the NMW is
not being paid for example
Viethamese wholesalers/retail
businesses/restaurants,
Turkish restaurants and nail
bars.

been no progress.

Following a meeting with HMRC officers in April 2016, 800
nudge letters were sent to traders, to remind traders of their
duties with respect to the national minimum wage and the
national living wage. Letters were sent to the remaining
traders in September. A series of Webinars are planned for
later in the year

Provide education, advice and
support to target consumer
groups and food businesses

The theme for food safety week was about food waste.

During Food Safety week, officers visited a number of
luncheon clubs and nursery’s to inform the users on the
importance of food waste and understanding durability date
coding. An event was also held at Tesco supermarket, Mare
Street in conjunction with colleagues from Waste
Enforcement where the message was conveyed to customers
of Tesco.

The training centre will support
businesses by making food
hygiene training accessible to
food businesses in the borough
and particularly to those that
are not compliant or are subject
to enforcement action due to
the serious risks of their food
operation.

104 food handlers from businesses in Hackney have
completed the level 2 in Food Hygiene to date.

A Service Level Agreement with the Hackney Learning Trust
(HLT) has been established to deliver food hygiene training
through to July 2017. To the end of March 2017, 90 HLT
colleagues have been successfully trained

This Service will look to engage
businesses to establish a PAP
to support businesses, raise

standards and ensure a
consistent approach to
enforcement.

This Service held discussions with London Union the
organisation responsible for Street Feast, five Points Brewery
and Climpson & Sons. The businesses decided not to take up
the offer to formalise a PAP. The Service will continue to
reach out to further organisations in the anticipation of
realising a formal PAP agreement.

To engage businesses in
Hackney who are looking to
improve their businesses and
to raise their compliance levels

This new role has is providing consultancy support to 12
businesses. Providing Safer Food Better Business coaching,
assistance with Hazard Analysis Critical Control Points
(HACCP) development, advice to architect on new kitchen
plans and food hygiene training.

HMRC, and work with partners on observance of
National Minimum Wage in Hackney to raise
awareness with employers and workers to ensure
the payment of at least the National Minimum
Wage (NMW).

9. Participation in Food Safety Week (week
beginning 4t July 2016).

10. Use of the Training Centre to improve food
hygiene broad compliance.

11. Primary Authority Principle (PAP)

12. Businesses Consultation

13. Additional visits will be undertaken where follow

414 revisits completed in 2016/17.

Document Number: 17814542

Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update




09T abed

Appendix 1

up/formal action is required as a result of serious
contraventions found at the time of a primary
inspection.

14.

It is expected that the Service will receive over
1000 service requests in 2016/17

1345 service requests have been received in 2016/17

15.

Food sampling will be carried out in a
programmed way, in response to complaints and
referrals but also during or following inspections
and in accordance with the food sampling policy
procedure.

85 samples were taken in 2016/17.

16.

The Service is committed to investigating all food
poisoning outbreaks and notifications occurring in
the borough in accordance with Public Health
England/Local Authority Joint Infectious Diseases
Protocol and Procedure.

325 Infectious Disease notifications received in 2016/17.

17.

The Service has arrangements in place to ensure
that it is able to implement the requirements of
Food Law of Code Practice in respect of food
alerts.

Food alerts issued by the Food Standards Agency have not
require a response from the Service.

18.

The Borough hosts a large number of annual
festivals and other outdoor events which attract
community caterers and a large number of
temporary caterers, pop-ups and food producers,
all of which require vetting and inspecting as
necessary.

Participation at HEAT to
consider all large scale events
that take place in Hackney.

5 HEAT meetings have taken place covering events held in
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park and other smaller events held
throughout the Borough that have enabled interventions to
ensure the provision of safe food.

Document Number: 17814542
Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update



T9T abed

Table 2. Trading Standards

Appendix 1

Item no | What are the priorities? Where to intervene? Update

1. Underage sales programme Maintain the reduction in | Trading Standards visited 100% of the high risk premises.
underage to combat anti-social | The target was achieved. Overall 426 visits were conducted.
behaviour and to promote the
health and well-being of young
people.

2. Tobacco Control Reduction in illegal sales and | Three Action days were conducted with Wagtail dogs. Two
the use of tobacco in support of | Wagtail operations have been conducted.
government efforts to
encourage smoking cessation. | The Shisha operation has been deferred until November
To participate in | 2017.
appropriate/related health
initiatives.

3. Animal Feed Ensure any animal feed issues | A database of registered premises has been created however
are dealt with effectively and | and the service did not visit six of the premises.
efficiently.

4. Consumer Advice and Education Promote the Service and | AWinter Warmer event was held by Hackney Council for over
deliver advice to residents and | 55s at Stoke Newington Town Hall N16 0JR on Thursday 26th
businesses. Jan 2017.

Role play event. The theme | Trading standards provided advice to minimise the risk of our

would be electrical safety. elderly citizens from becoming victims of scams and rogue
traders.

Respond to consumer

complaints and service

requests.

5. Product Safety Two traders were found guilty of selling banned cosmetics
containing hydroquinone and mercury, high dose prescription
only steroid creams and counterfeit cosmetics.

6. Tackling Counterfeit Goods Reduce the level of non- | Monitoring of Ridley Road and Hackney Road is ongoing. In
compliance and raise | addition online compliance is also being monitored.
awareness through appropriate
publicity.

7. Use of communications to raise awareness of the | Contribute articles to suitable | One article published regarding Gunners off licence.

work of the service and provide improved | internal publications. London trading Standards conducted various media events

Document Number: 17814542

Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update




Appendix 1

information for residents and businesses.

Website information to be
maintained and updated as
necessary.

Suitable information for press
releases to be passed to the
Communications Team.

on the issue of skin lightening including all day television
coverage.

Prosecution of 2 high profile skin lightening suppliers
appeared in media.

8. Partnership working - opportunities to be
identified for joint working with external
stakeholders and also for external funding

Raise service profile by
attending relevant partnership
meetings, improved
stakeholder engagement and
external/match funding
achieved.

A consistent presence at inner LOTSA meetings has been
achieved.

9. Education of identified vulnerable groups in
conjunction with partner agencies

Education of residents thereby
reducing the impact of scams
and doorstep crime.

As stated Trading Standards participated in Winter Warmer
event.

10. Carry out Licensing checks

Ensure compliance with

licensing principles.

The service are processing the Licensing applications as a
Responsible Authority. They are mostly processed on time.

11. Co-ordination with the Licensing Team

Improved working between
teams in the division.

The service have not carried out any joint activities with the
licensing team. Planned joint action scheduled for following
year.

29T abed

12. Service Improvement

Improved internal processes

Procedures and process maps have been developed.

13. Complaints and service requests

Respond to complaints and
service requests.

From April 2016 — March 2017 there were a total of 2795
consumer complaints received from members of the public.
This is down from 2844 for the previous year.

The Service uses the Intelligence Operating Model and
reviews the complaints to identify projects such as lettings.
Business requests have been processed within target of 10
working days. Officers recording on Civica APP will be
improved by the use of new codes which have been
developed There has been a decrease in the number of
service requests received by the service in the last two years.
In 2016/17 year there were 333 and, for the same period in
the preceding year, there was 385.

14. Visits

Visit all high risk premises due
for an inspection.

151 high risk inspections carried out. This target has been
met.

Document Number: 17814542

Document Name: Performance against Priorities 2016/17 - annual update




€97 abed

Appendix 2

& Hackney

London Borough of Hackney

Food Law Enforcement Service Delivery Plan 2016/17

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



9T obed

Contents

1. INTRODUCGTION ..ttt e e e ettt et e e e e e e e ba bttt eeeeee s e s unbb e e teeeeeeeassaaasseeeeeeeeeaeaaannssseeeeeeeeeessaaaansbsaeeeeeeeeeaa annseeeeeeeeeeeeeaa asnsbeeeeeeeeeeesaannnsseeaaeeaesssanaannsrnee 4
1.1, HIGhIIGNTS TrOM 2015/16.....cccciieiiiiiieeiieeeite et et e ettt ecte e s teeebeesbeestbe e beesbaeeabeeabeassseeateesseesabeansaesssesabeesssesaseanssessseaaseenssesaseanseesaseenseesaesaseensaestsessseessansssenntanns 5
2. FOOD LAW SERVICE AIIMS AND OBJECTIVES .....oteiiteittiiteentte ettt e sttt esbee st et esbee st e e bt esse s sase e beesaee e st e ame e s ab e e s e e sae e s bt e beesane s bt e sheesaneebeesanesabeenneesaneenbeesaeenaneen 7
2 O N[0 o 13- [ To @ oY= ot {1V PRSP 7
2.2.  Food Safety Service Performance INICAtOrs fOr 2006-17 .........uuiiiiiciiieeeeiieie ettt e ettt e e e eette e e e eetteeeesattaeeeeeastaeeeeastasaesastssaesansessaesansasasesansesaassansenessanns 9
T = 7X@l (€ {0 1 N 5 PP ORI 9
0 B oo o Tl e) i s TN HoTo Lo BTN Y AV A Y=Y Vi o S URTPRPPNE 9
3 N 01T F=T oo e T T o o [ol o Yo Te BT =Y VAT Y/ ol I URPPRR 10
TR T =Y o (o ¢ ot=T o o Y=Y oY ol 2o TV SRR 16
4. SERVICE DELIVERY ..eeeeiiittiiiiiii ettt ettt e e ettt et e e e e e e ettt et e eeeeesa e aa bt e et et eaeeeeaaaaanas e e e eeeeeeeee s nnsseeeeeeeeeeeaaanansebe e e e e eeeeeaeaananseseeeeeaeeesaaaannsssbeeeeaeesssaaannnrnnen 17
4.1, Interventions at FOOO ESTabliShMENTS ........oo ittt ettt e e bt e s be e e s be e e s abe e e s bt e e s s bee e nbeeeanbeeeabbeesabeeesabeeesaseesanreeesareena 17
4.2. [SoToTo o IV oqT=T s Tl [ o I o T=Yotd [ T oY =4 =T 0 0] o L= IR 17
795 T o ToTo Iy =Y Yo =10 I g Y o =YotuTo Y o I o e =4 =T Yo 1 =SSP 19
Y < Yolo aTo Y R AV I L (V11 ) ISR 19
4.5, COMPIAINTS @NA SEIVICE REGQUESTS ... .uuiiiieiiiiiiiiicitiiiee et e e e e s eeeeitrreeeeeeeeseesara et teaaeeaaasseasaaasssaaeaeeasasssasasstsssssssaasssssaassssssesssaasessssaassstssanseeesessansasssssnsseeaanns 20
4.6.  Primary/HOME AULNOIIEY PriNCIPIE ..ccveiiie ettt ettt e te et e et e e be e s baeeabe e beesabe e beesbseeabe e beesaseaabeeseesaseenseasssesabeentaesaseeaseaataessseenteessaesaseesanns 20
4.7. AdVICE AN TraiNiNg 10 BUSINESSES...eiiiiitiiiieiiitiiietiiittee e esittteeeeseteeeeestteeeeaataeteeaassaeeesaastssesaassssseesasssssesansssessssssssssessnssseessssssesssssssssesssssesesessssseessnnsseeens 20
A.8.  ACVICE L0 CONSUMETS ..eiutietieeiteette ettt st et e st e s bt e s bt e sute e bt esbeesaee et e e sheeeate e bt e sheeeaseebeesae e easeeab e e ea et easeeem et e e st e s e e eae e eab e e me e eab e e bt e smb e e bt eabeesaneeabeesmeesabeenneesaneaas 21
e TR o Yo Yo IRY=1 00T o] oY PSP 21
4.10. Control and Investigation of Outbreaks and FOod Related iNfeCtioUS DiSEASES...ciiiiii i iiiiiiieee ettt e e e ece e e e e e e e e e e s ta b e e e e e e e e e e e e esnnssaaaeeeeas 21
4.11. [SeTe Yo Y- | =1 VAN g ol o [T ) &SRR UPR 22



GoT obed

R Y 10 0 P 22

LT P o T =T o To | A Lo Tt ) o PO PO TSRO SPU PR 22
I N (=T o VT ol <X o] g A0 X K<Y A AT 23
LT TR - i 0= 40N 1T Yo=Y o IR RPPRRN 23
5.4.  Authorisation and Competencies in line with new requirements of the Food Law Code of Practice (as amended) ........ccccevieviiieieieciiee e, 23
5.5.  Staff Development Plan new requirements of the Food Law Code of Practice (as amended)........ccuevieeciieeieciiiee ettt e e e e 23
N T Y | ToTor: 1 d o] g o)l 0 4 1= gl 3Y= Yo TU L ol TP PSPPSRI 24

QUALITY ASSESSIMENT .iitttttttttttututit e e eees s s s s e s s e seeeeeaaeeeaeeeaseseseseseaeaatesesesesessssasssasasssaa s s aaassaseseaeasasaseseeeeeeeeeseseseseesenenesessnsssssnnnnsnsnsnnnsnnnnsnssnsssnneseees 29
6.1. Ta LY I = Yo =T0 0 1= o AU 29
6.1.2. T E I AN T o= o g =T o | TS UPP 29
6.2. REVIEW - Review against the SEIVICE PIAN 2015/16 ......cc.uiiiiueiiiieeeciee et ettt e et e eetee e et e eeteeeebeeeetaeeeetbeeeetaeessssesbeseasteseastesessseeasseeenssesasesesntesesseeees 30
6.3, ANNUAI FOOD SEIVICE STAtISTICS 2015/16 ....eeeeeeeeeeee e et eeee ettt et e et e e e e e e e ettt eeesssesaaaas s eeeteeeesssaaaaaaeseeeteeeesssasaassesaeeteeessssaaaasssseeeseesesssasaasseseeeeeesesssanans 30
6.4. Identification of any variation from the SEIVICE PIAN .........cii e ettt e e sttt e e e s bteeeeeaaaaeeeesasteeeeeassaeeeeesssbaeesennssaeesennnseeennn 32
6.5. Key Areas for Improvement/Development fOr the NEXE TWO YEAIS.......cuiiiiicieiiie ettt ettt et este e s reeebeesteesabeesbeesteeebeesbeestseebeesteesaseenbeesteseareensenas 33



1. INTRODUCTION

99T abed

This is the London Borough of Hackney’s mandatory annual plan which sets down how the Council will undertake enforcement of food safety
legislation. The Plan follows the national template as directed by the Food Safety Agency (FSA), through the framework agreement agreed
with Local Authorities. This plan refers to the food law enforcement functions undertaken by Hackney’s Neighbourhood and Housing
Directorate.

The objective of the plan is to demonstrate how the service ensures food safety in the Borough. The Environmental Health Service undertakes
the Food Safety Service and aims to deliver an intelligence-led, risk-based approach to business regulation that achieves a high level of
consumer protection.

This plan is a public document and will be published on the Borough's website. It sets out the aims and objectives of the direction for the
delivery of food safety in Hackney for 2016 — 2017, in line with the Mayor’s Priorities.

The performance of the Food Safety Service will be measured against the fulfilment of this Plan and the percentage of broadly compliant
premises within the Borough. Currently 84% (1 April 2016) of food premises in Hackney are broadly compliant in respect of food hygiene. This
is up from 79% in 2015/16. The Service has an aspiration to increase this further by 5% by extending the business consultant’s role, seeking
further efficiencies in the inspection process and with targeted initiatives in conjunction with other council services, community stakeholders
and external agencies.

The number of food businesses in the Borough subject to food hygiene controls has risen from 2,535 in April 2015 to 2,954 in April 2016. It
is anticipated that this increase in the number of food businesses will continue. This is a particular concern to the Food Safety Service as this
places a greater demand on the Service to ensure premises are ‘fit for purpose’ and food hygiene compliant.

Significant improvements have continued to be made in performance and quality following the Food Standards Agency audit in June 2010 the
Food Safety Service the following highlights were achieved:

e Improved rate of compliance for food hygiene in Hackney, with 84% of premises broadly compliant has been steadily increasing from April
2011 (57%);

¢ Robust management of unrated premises resulting reduced numbers of unrated premises in the Borough to 24 (at the beginning of April
2016), from 145 (at the beginning of April 2014);

¢ Implementation of a business consultant role engaging eight businesses paying for a range of services to address compliance issues;



/9T abed

e Three successful prosecutions of food businesses, including one for the sale of illegally processed meat and one that was heard over two
weeks at Snaresbrook Crown Court relating to pests and food related issues;

e Increased the number of FHRS 5 rated premises from 583 to 665 in 01/04/2015 — 31/03/2016;

o Decreased the number of FHRS 0 (zero) rated premises from 22 to 9 in 01/04/2015 — 31/03/2016;

e Further development of the training centre with contract with the Learning Trust secured to deliver Level 2 food hygiene training to
employees working in school kitchens.

The Food Safety Service continues to use a range enforcement tools to improve and maintain food hygiene and safety compliance and to deliver
a risk based approach. The service continues to move away from an “inspection for inspection’s sake” approach allowing for a lighter touch
treatment of those premises that are broadly compliant and providing advice and education. Where necessary enforcement of those premises
that are not broadly compliant will be taken.

This approach is reflected in the priorities for 2016/17 which means that resources will be targeted at those premises posing the highest risk.
Last year 100% of the higher risk food hygiene and food standards premises were inspected in line with the Food Law Code of Practice. The
Food Safety Service also continues to work in partnership with external and internal services to enable resources to be targeted as effectively
as possible.

The Service will have a number of challenges in 2016/17 and over the following 3 years, managing the very different and growing demands of
Government agencies. Along with the cross cutting review and local priorities the service will be challenged to ensure the provision of safe food,
and the need to use resources differently, and deliver the work innovatively and collaboratively in order to maintain and increase inspection levels.
Another challenge will be to drive up hygiene compliance along with the need to support and assist the increasing numbers of new business start-
ups and pop-ups due to the growth of the hospitality economy in the borough.

The current discussion to reduce costs across the Council will also have a bearing on the effective delivery of this service.

Highlights from 2015/16

.1. Introduction of partial inspections for food hygiene and standards that are essentially focused topic-based inspections and undertaking
food sampling as part of alternative enforcement strategies. This more targeted approach will utilise the full range of interventions
available under the Food Law Code of Practice (April 2015) to the delivery of the inspection programme.

—_ -
—_ -

1.1.2. The number of five rated premises in the borough has increased, from 583 premises in April 2015 to 665 premises in March 2015.
There has been a reduction in the number of zero rated premises, from 22 to 9, in the same period.



89T abed

. The percentage of broadly complaint premises in the borough has increased to 84%. The percentage of premises which are broadly

compliant has increased significantly in the last five years, from 57% in 2011.

. An inter-borough consistency exercise between officers from London Boroughs of Hackney and Waltham Forest was undertaken in

2015/16 at food premises in each local authority. This exercise identified matters of good practise and consistency of approach to the
inspection and food hygiene rating scores.

. Increase in the number of delegates attending level food hygiene training from 121 in 2014/15 to 208 in 2015/16, generating an income

of £14,860.

. 86% business customer satisfaction which was 11% higher than the overall target for Regulatory Services (75%).



69T abed

2. FOOD LAW SERVICE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

2.1. Aims and Objectives

[ Mayor’s Priorities ]

Sustainable Community Strategy
(SCS)

A 4

Corporate Plan
( ¢ 7\
Corporate Delivery Plan
| J
A
4 ™)
Divisional Business Plans
(& J
A
4 ™)
Service Area/Team Plans
(. J
A
( I
Individual Appraisals
(. J

How the Service Links to Corporate Priorities

Hackney'’s Vision: A place for everyone

Mayor’s Priority 1: Making Hackney a place where everyone can succeed, through
a first class education, investment and jobs, and providing
support to those who need it most.

Mayor’s Priority 2: Making Hackney a place that everyone can enjoy, with clean,
safe streets, excellent parks and public services and a great
quality of life for all who live here.

Mayor’s Priority 3: Making Hackney a place where everyone can contribute, through
listening to residents, and involving them in the decisions we
make and things we do.

o k&~ 0D

The 2008-2018 Sustainable Community Strategy has six priorities:
1.

Reduce poverty by supporting residents into sustainable employment, and promoting
employment opportunities.

Help residents to become better qualified and raise educational aspirations.
Promote health and wellbeing for all, and support independent living.
Make the borough safer, and help people to feel safe in Hackney.

Promote mixed communities in well-desighed neighbourhoods, where people can
access high quality, affordable housing.

Be a sustainable community, where all citizens take pride in and take care of
Hackney and its environment, for future generations.




0.T abed

The Food Safety Service contributes to the delivery of the following local policies and plans:

Environmental Health Service: Food Safety Service - undertakes a range of food hygiene, food standards and health and safety
interventions across all Hackney food businesses including the provision of advice and information. The team also carries out
infectious disease investigations, investigation of food complaints and sampling work. Mayor’s Priority 2 Sustainable
Community Strategy priority 3 & 4

The Service aims to:

= work with businesses to protect consumers from harm by ensuring that food produced, distributed and marketed in the borough
is safe and wholesome for the consumer to eat. This will be measured by an increase in broadly compliant businesses,
increasing the number of FHRS rated 3-5 premises and a reduction in FHRS rated 0-2 premises

= work with businesses to ensure that food produced, distributed and marketed in the borough meets labelling and compositional
requirements and is presented so that consumers are not mislead as to its nature, substance or quality. This will be met by
raising issues highlighted during visits to premises, acting on service requests and complaints, through promotional material
were relevant and increasing enforcement for non-compliance following a graduated approach.

= deter, detect, investigate and disrupt fraudulent activity involving food, including the illegal importation of food. This will be
measured by restarting the food fraud project, taking an active role in local, regional and national food fraud initiatives and
meetings, by increasing the number of action days to disrupt potential fraudulent activities and increasing enforcement for non-
compliance following a graduated approach

= prevent the spread of infectious disease and food poisoning and to investigate outbreaks by working with PHE, investigating
notifiable disease in line with agreed protocols, participating in local, regional and national initiatives and meetings.

= provide advice and education to all sectors of the community on food safety matters and to meet the training needs of the
businesses in Hackney with the promotion of in-house training courses and participation in national initiates such as Food
Safety week.

= promote the provision of healthier food to reduce health inequalities through the Healthy catering Commitment scheme.
= work with other Services, local authorities and agencies with common objectives to provide effective enforcement. This will be

achieved by attending local, regional and national meetings, benchmarking with neighbouring authorities and by taking part in
internal and external partner led initiatives.



= protect businesses from economic disadvantage caused by competitors not complying with food safety legislation and by
following a graduated approach o enforcement

2.2 Food Safety Service Performance Indicators for 2016-17
2.2.1 The service have a number of key performance indicators and the performance of the service is measured against these.
Pl Frequency . Achieved | Annual Target | Data 2016/17
Godp | SO RETE of reporting | Directorate 2015/16 | 2015/16 Only Pl | Target
NH % of service requests/consumer complaints Neiahbourhoods
PRS about food businesses actioned within 10 Quarters gnhix 99.6% 95.0% No 95%
: & Housing
030 working days
NH o . . :
PRS % of Broad_ Compliance for food hygiene Quarters gelghbgurhoods 79.0% 75.0% No 80%
034 (accumulative) Housing
NH . . .
By 0
) PRS % of uprated food premises inspected . Quarters Nelghpourhoods 100.0% 100.0% No 100%
cg 035 excluding registered premises not yet trading & Housing
iy NH Neighbourhoods
,:‘ PRS | Number of unrated food premises Quarters 8 Hg . 27 N/A Yes N/A
036 ousing
Satisfaction of businesses with local
NH authority Regulatory Services' inspections Neighbourhoods N/A - new
PRS o . . ’ Years ) for 75.00 % No 75%
visits, actions to ensure businesses are & Housing
046 ; 2015/16
compliant

3. BACKGROUND

3.1.

Scope of the Food Safety Service

3.1.1. The Food Safety Service is responsible for food hygiene, food standards, public health activities and health and safety in all food
premises, and involves both planned and reactive work.




2/ 1 abed

3.1.2. Food Safety Service officers, hold dual warrants for food safety and health and safety, so when appropriate, health and safety
hazard spotting and food standard inspections are carried out at the time of the primary food hygiene inspection.

3.1.3. The Food Safety Service provides the following services:

Conducting official controls and other interventions at a frequency determined by Food Law Code of Practice and taking
appropriate enforcement as necessary;

Working with local food businesses to help them comply with their legal responsibilities and good hygiene practice, by
providing information, advice and guidance;

Prevention, control and investigating of infectious diseases, outbreaks, and food-related infectious disease and food
poisoning associated with food businesses in Hackney in accordance with the joint infectious disease protocol, London
Outbreak Management Plan 2012 and advice from the Consultant for Communicative Diseases Control (CCDC) and the
Public Health Laboratory Service (PHLS), within Public Health England (PHE);

Undertaking sampling in accordance with our sampling policy;

Control of imported foods in accordance with centrally issued guidance;

Investigating complaints about food premises and food purchased/provided by consumers in Hackney;

Initiating and responding to food alerts about unsafe or unwholesome food and taking appropriate action as necessary;
Providing advice on training in safe food handling and hygienic practices to food handlers working in Hackney, including
running food hygiene training courses via our training centre.

Processing applications for approval relating to the production of Meat Products, Minced Meat & Meat Preparations, Dairy
Products and Fishery Products;

Carrying out activities with regard to a food safety enforcement policy in line with the central government issued guidance;
Undertaking food safety initiatives (Food Hygiene training and community events etc.).

3.1.4. The Trading Standards Service is responsible for Feed Law enforcement to ensure safe food enters the food chain.

3.2.
3.2.1.
3.2.2.

Demands on the Food Safety Service
Premises Profile

Hackney has 2,954 food establishments (an increase of 419 premises since 2015/16). The majority of food businesses in Hackney
are ‘restaurants and catering premises at (65 %). These are mainly sole trading micro businesses a number which requiring support,
advice and enforcement to ensure that the food they supply is safe to eat. This is reflected in the inspection programme and the
demand for training. Food retailers make up the second most significant group (30 %), with the remaining 5% being made up of
primary producers, food manufacturers, exporters, distributors and importers. A summary of the breakdown of the establishments
is presented in the figure below:

10



€/ T obed

3.2.3.
3.2.4.

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

Premises Profile 2016/17

0.10%.7{%1_0.30%

/

m Primary producers  ® Manufacturers and packers = Importers & Exporters Distributors and transport ~ m Retailers  m Restaurants & Caterers

Population Profile
The borough has a diverse population and is a culturally rich borough with a growing population of approximately 263,150.

Just over a third (36%) of respondents to the 2011 Census in Hackney described themselves as White British. The remainder is
made up of black and minority ethnic groups, with the largest group Other White, 16.3% followed by Black African, 11.4%. The
number of Black Caribbean people has fallen slightly in the past 10 years. They now make up 7.8% of Hackney’s population
compared with 10.3% in 2001. Hackney also has a well-established take Turkish and Kurdish community; At least 4.5% of the
Hackney population is Turkish (derived from the 2011 Census). These populations are often captured in the White British/Other
White, Other Ethnic Group or, for Turkish people, Arab. Other significant communities in Hackney include Chinese, Viethamese
and Eastern Europeans especially Polish, Western Europeans particularly Spanish and French people, Australasians and residents
from North, and Latin America.

Hackney has a large and growing young population. Young people and children under the age of 20 make up a quarter of the
population in Hackney (24.7%). The size of this group will continue to grow in line with overall population growth. People aged over

11



v/ T obed

65 make up only 7.2% of the population. The Plan aims to control foodborne illness which poses a greater threat to the very young,
older persons and some people with pre-existing health problems. The consistent and proportionate application of food law
enforcement in the Borough will greatly benefit these groups and minimize any risks to them.

3.2.7. Outdoor Events

3.2.8. The borough hosts a large number of annual festivals and other outdoor events which attract community caterers and a large
number of temporary caterers, pop-ups and food producers, all of which require vetting and inspecting as necessary. These range
from several large events held in Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to smaller churchyard-style events held throughout the borough.

3.2.9. Imported Food
3.2.10. As well as responding to complaints, referrals and notifications, the service carries out routine inspections and a range of proactive
activities in premises across the borough and in street markets the deal with the trade in illegally imported foods.

3.2.11.The Food Standards Agency has placed greater emphasis on local authority Food Safety Services to ensure controls on third
country imported food (i.e. food imported from countries outside of the European Union). There is high level of imported foods from
non-EU countries entering the borough, either directly imported by businesses or by third parties located elsewhere. Some of these
foods can be illegal (i.e. banned from importation, processed in a way that contravenes EU legislation, or they do not comply with
compositional or labelling requirements). Examples of this include fruit, vegetable and nuts that appear on a monthly warning list
issued by the Food Standards Agency for investigation. This area of work has a high impact on the Service due to number of
businesses handling low cost imports to meet the high consumer demand. This food, however, gives rise to a risk to human health
and where necessary it is removed from sale and enforcement action taken. The Food Standards Agency has supported the Food
Safety Service in improving controls on third country imported food sold in the borough and to identify those imported foods that
may have been brought into the borough illegally to protect public health and animal health. This has led to increased related work
activities such as sampling and surveillance activities.

3.2.12. New Businesses

3.2.13. The number of food businesses in the borough, subject to food hygiene controls, has risen by approximately 17% from 2,535 in
April 2015 to 2954 in April 2016. It is anticipated that this increase in the number of food businesses will continue, and is of a
particular concern to the Food Safety Service as they place a greater demand on the Service, to ensure that these premises remain
fit for purpose’ and food hygiene compliant as they vary their supply of food. In addition, there are a number of temporary food
businesses and ‘pop ups’ who open and then ceased trading within a short period of time. The service manages a programme of
inspections for all new/unrated food premises to ensure their hygiene compliance is assessed.

3.2.14. Food Hygiene Rating Scheme
3.2.15. Hackney participates in the National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme (FHRS). The scheme is designed to give the public information
about local food businesses so that they can make informed choices about where they eat locally (and nationally). As a result the

12



G/ T obed

scheme allows for greater transparency for consumers and businesses the work conducted by Hackney Food Safety Service. It
also recognises those businesses that are operating to a good standard and aims to provide an incentive to those businesses have
not made food safety a priority.

3.2.16. This Service is very supportive of this scheme and in 2015/16 Hackney took part in the Food Standards Agency consultation on the
mandatory display of the FHRS rating sticker at food premises as a means of allowing consumers make informed choices, and
driving up standards and the economy in Hackney. The scheme is likely to be made mandatory January 2017.

3.2.17. Following an inspection, a business can be given one of the following FHRS ratings and uploaded on the National FHRS website
(http://ratings.food.gov.uk) which can be accessed by businesses and consumers.

[FOOD HYGIENE RATING | [FOOD HYGIENE RATING | [FOOD HYGIEME RATING | [FOOD HYGIENE RATING | [FOOD HYGIEMNE RATING | [FOCD HYGIEME RATING |

[0 Jolelelolelliof 1 Jelelalolliolol 2 Jolololololel 3 lololliololelel 4 Jolliofololelol 5 )

URGENT IMFROVEMENT HECEZEAR Y MAJOR IMPROVEMENT HECESEARY

IMPROVEMENT NHECESSARY GEMERALLY SATISFACTORY

13



3.2.18.Broad Compliance with Food Safety Leqislation

3.2.19.At 1 April 2016, 84% of premises were found to be broadly compliant with food hygiene. This figure has increased from 79% in
2015/16. The most appropriate enforcement action will continue to be used deal with premises that are non-compliant following a
primary inspection as a means of driving up full compliance and delivering sustainable improvements.

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

9,1 abed

0%

% Broadly Compliance in Food Hygiene

84%

79%
74%//

71% 73%

57/

April 2011 April 2012 April 2013 April 2014 April 2015 April 2016

14



/1T abed

3.2.20.
3.2.21.

3.2.22.

3.2.23.

3.2.24.
3.2.25.

3.2.26.

Food Fraud Project

The Service has routinely dealt with the occurrence of food fraud in the Borough, undertaking enforcement activities to remove illegal
food from the food chain. This takes place during routine food inspections, following a complaint or service request or as part of
proactive enforcement days undertaken by the Service.

This Service was awarded a grant of £170,000 by the Food Standards Agency to tackle food fraud in Hackney. The project was set
out over five phases and started in April 2014. The 15-month project was developed to provide a strategy and protocol so that food
fraud can be tackled in a proactive manner in borough. It will be delivered by working extensively with food businesses, multi-
regulatory services and multi-agencies, local authorities across London and the consumers to bring about behavioural change and
compliance in respect of food fraud to protect public health.

Phases 1 & 2 of the project were completed. However, the project was unable to move to phase three due to operational issues and
the project stalled in 2015. A recent meeting with the FSA in April 2016 agreed a way forward that both sides would work to. Phase 3
is currently being reviewed with a view to restarting the project in Q2 2016/17. The revision is intended to look at further means of
gather further intelligence on illegal activities and will involve further partnership working and intelligence gathering from other
services, the use of directed surveillance, re-engaging with the traders to support and encourage whistle--blowing and engaging with
the relevant traders associations and increasing enforcement to include greater number of action days

Additional Priorities and Partnership Working

North East Sector Food Liaison Group, London Food Coordinating Group and Association of London Environmental Health
Managers: The Service participated in these Groups to improve consistency, share best practice as a means of obtaining up-to-date
information on policy, regulation, guidance and enforcement.

Events/Partnership and Tasking Group: The Food Safety Service participated in the Hackney Events Action Team (HEAT) process;
and will continue to undertake joint working initiatives with Community Safety, Licensing, Events and Public Realm teams and other
internal and external organisations including the Metropolitan Police to tackle emerging issues and regulatory non-compliance.

15



g/ 1 abed

3.2.27.

3.2.28.

3.2.29.

3.2.30.

3.2.31.

3.2.32.

3.2.33.

Mobile Vending Operators: The Food Safety Service monitored of ‘pop-ups’, and mobile traders in the borough via the food premises
registration process, complaints, referrals and surveys. Also, the Service liaised with the Markets team to ensure closer working
partnerships as a means of improving food safety compliance in Hackney’'s Markets. The Service will continue to work closely with
the Markets and Street Trading Services and deal with non-compliance through existing programmes and initiatives and by
developing joint strategies.

This Service will continue to support the work of HMRC, and work with partners on observance of National Minimum Wage in
Hackney to raise awareness with employers and workers to ensure the payment of at least the minimum wage National Minimum
Wage (NMW): Hackney is committed to ensuring at least the NMW is paid by employers and the Service will continue to work with
internal services and external agencies for this purpose. This will include joint operations at premises identified at potentially not
meeting their obligation.

Liaison with other Organisations: The Council actively participated in liaison with a number of other local authorities, agencies and
professional organisations in order to facilitate consistent enforcement, to share good practice and reduce duplication of effort.

Promotional Campaigns

The Service published advice and guidance through a variety of media to improve food hygiene and safety awareness within the food
business community and the local consumer population and maintain a positive relationship with the media to raise the profile of the
Food Safety Service.

The annual Food Safety Week (18 May — 24 May 2015) focussed on food poisoning caused by Campylobacter from chicken. Advice
about not washing raw chicken, how to store it correctly, checking chicken is cooked properly and thorough cooking and washing of
hands and utensils. The Food Safety Service will carry out food safety promotional work through participation in national and local
campaigns and local projects, subject to available resources.

The Service raised the profile of the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme by encouraging the display of ratings and publicising the
businesses achieving rating of 5 each month on Twitter.

16



6.1 abed

3.2.30. Training Centre
3.2.31. The continuation of the Training Centre will also improve food hygiene broad compliance as this facility will support businesses by

3.3.
3.3.1.

3.3.2.

3.3.3.

3.34.

making food hygiene training accessible to food businesses in the borough and particularly to those that are not compliant or are

subject to enforcement action due to the serious risks of their food operation. The training is promoted to food businesses through the

Council website and the distribution of flyers to new and existing businesses. In 2016/17 the service will continue to offer training in

Food Hygiene, but will look to expand the range of courses offered to include Allergen training, 72 day food hygiene refresher course

and Level 3 Food Hygiene training. The Service will also look at developing a training programme for markets and pop-up vendors.

Enforcement Policy

The Food Safety Service recognises that whilst businesses look to maintain their reputation and wish to maximize profits. They also
seek in most instances to be on the right side of legal requirements without incurring excessive expenditure and administrative
burdens. So, in considering enforcement action, the service will assist food businesses to meet their legal obligations without
unnecessary expense, whilst taking firm action that may include prosecution or other formal action, where appropriate, against
those who disregard the law or act irresponsibly.

The published Food Safety Enforcement Policy, which follows a graduated approach, outlines all enforcement action to be carried
out by officers in relation to food safety legislation, seeks to ensure that formal enforcement is focused where there is a real risk to
public health and that officers carry out actions in a fair, practical and consistent manner. All authorised officers will follow the Food
Safety Enforcement Policy when making enforcement decisions.

The Food Safety Enforcement Policy, takes account of the principles of the Enforcement Concordat, the Regulator's Code, FSA’s
guidance, and has regard to Crown Prosecution Service guidelines and Equality Impact issues. The Plan will allow the use of
resources more effectively in assessing high risk activities whilst delivering benefits to low risk and compliant businesses.

The Service will generally seek to recover from businesses the costs associated with any additional official controls (such as
emergency closures of food businesses).

17



08T abed

4. SERVICE DELIVERY

4.1.
4.1.1.

4.2.
4.2.1.

4.2.2.

Interventions at Food Establishments

The Food Safety Service will employ a full, partial or range of interventions to assist in raising the compliance rate and achieve broad
compliance in food premises. Interventions include sampling, monitoring, surveillance, education or verification visits and should enable
a lighter touch for compliant premises, and also enable additional resources to be targeted on non-compliant premises in line with the
Regulator's Compliance Code.

. Food hygiene inspections are the main driver for performance of the Food Safety Service, as a result of the priority setting and the

scrutiny of the performance of the Service by the FSA, and local and national indicators. Inspections are allocated to officers who are
appropriately qualified and authorized in accordance with the Food Law Code of Practice.

. Following a primary inspection of each food business, a risk category is assigned based on the type of food business and the type of

food it handles as well as the conditions found at the time of the inspection. Category ‘A’ and ‘B’ rated premises pose the greatest risk
and these are therefore inspected at a greater frequency.

. In2016/2017, the numbers of Category A and B premises due for inspection, along with the new and unrated premises and ‘not’ broadly

compliant C rated premises, will meet with the FSA’s intervention strategy and their concept for risk based prioritisation for food hygiene
inspections. The programme of inspection for food standard inspections will do the same.

Food Hygiene Inspection Programme

Food hygiene inspections are given priority in accordance with Food Law Code of Practice and associated Practice Guidance, issued
by the FSA and in line with Hackney’s Food Safety Service, Food Hygiene Inspections and Food Standards Procedures. Therefore,
the majority of resources allocated to food safety are devoted to planned primary inspections for food hygiene purposes.

In accordance with centrally-issued guidance on interventions, the Service aims to inspect the highest risk premises category A-B
premises and all not broadly compliant category C premises, and any not broadly compliant category D premises that are due. In
addition new and unrated premises will be inspected within the annual inspection cycle. Backlogs will also be incorporated into the
annual inspection cycle and addressed through use of a range of intervention tools and alternative strategies. All remaining category
D premises will be addressed by other official controls, interventions or Alternative Enforcement Strategy (AES). Any increase in
demand for food inspections has until now been met by adjusting the inspection target and directing resources so that new/unrated
premises and higher risk category A and B premises are inspected as a priority, and includes any of these categories that form part of
the backlog. This is likely to continue.

18



T8T abed

4.2.3.

4.2.4.

4.25.

4.2.6.

4.2.7.

Partial inspections will be conducted on broadly compliant category C premises, in line with in the Food Law Code of Practice. This will
reduce the burden on businesses and concentrate resources on the non-compliant businesses. However, a full inspection will be
carried out if the compliant businesses are not in control of the risks or a public health risk is identified.

Table 1. The number and types of food businesses and their risk rating planned for food hygiene inspections 2016/2017

Inspection Rating Number of food hygiene The frequency of inspection is
inspections due for Category:

A 21x2=42 A: every 6 months (2

B 331 inspections a year)

C 648 (157 NBC**) B: every 12 months

D 912* (60 NBC**) C: every 18 months

E 358* D: every 2 years

New/Unrated premises carried over from 2015/16 24 E: every 3 years _

New/Unrated premises estimated opening during the 350 The category for premises

year (2016/17) classed_ as unrated_ is

Total due for an official intervention 2016/17 (incl 1455 determined at the first visit and

broadly compliant C rated premises) can be A-E.

Total due for Non-Official Interventions/AES 60 ,

2016/17* (5% of total) Category E premises may pe

Total Inspections due for 2015/16 excl broadly 1024 dealtwithiusingfan altemative

complaint C rated premises. enforcement strategy (AES).

*relates to those premises subject to non-official interventions
**NBC = Not Broadly Complaint premises, which are not broadly compliant with food hygiene legislation.

The Food Safety Service aims to inspect all due category A & B premises all unrated/new premises and not broadly compliant C & D
premises will be inspected as a priority in the months for which they are due.

New premises will be added to the inspection programme as the service becomes aware of them, as these premises count against the
overall broad compliance percentage and hygiene rating.

Compliant Category D and E premises will be assessed in line with the alternative enforcement strategy involving a mixture of self-
assessment and focused topic partial inspections.

Any complaint, received against a premises risk rated C or D will result in a Food Hygiene inspection.

19



28T abed

4.3.

4.3.1.

4.3.2.
4.3.3.

4.34.

4.4.
4.4.1.

4.4.2.

4.4.3.

Food Standards Inspection Programme

Table 2. The number and types of food businesses and their risk rating planned for food standards inspections 2016/17

Inspection Rating Number of food standards The frequency of inspection for
inspections due Category:

A 19 A: every 12 months

B 648 B: every 2 years

C 182* C: every 5 years

New/Unrated premises carried over from 2014/15 24

New/Unrated premises estimated opening during the 350 The category for premises

year(2015/16) classec_i as L_m_rated is determined

Total Inspections due for inspection 2015/16 1,330 at the first visit and can be A-C.

Total due for Non-Official Interventions/AES 9 .

2015/16* (5% of total) Category C premises may pe

Total due for an official intervention 2015/16 1050 dealt with using an alternative

enforcement strategy (AES)

*relates to those premises subject to non-official interventions
All Category A premises will be inspected as they pose the highest risk.
Lower risk category B premises will be inspected at the same time as the planned food hygiene inspections.

Category C premises will be assessed as part of an alternative enforcement strategy involving self-assessment. Category C premises
will be inspected if they give rise to a complaint.

Secondary visits (Re-visits)

Officers will undertake additional visits to premises where follow-up/formal enforcement action is required as a result of serious
contraventions found at the time of a primary (programmed) visit or where a contravention is not remedied through informal measures.
A secondary visit will consist of one or more intervention activity.

Primary inspections resulting in advice to food business operators about minor technical contraventions will not receive a secondary
visit.

Secondary visits will be carried out where significant breaches have been identified. It is anticipated that no more than 30% of planned
inspections will result in a secondary visit.

20



€8T abed

4.5.
4.5.1.

4.5.2.

4.5.3.

4.6.
4.6.1.

4.6.2.

4.6.3.

4.6.4.

4.7.
4.7.1.

4.7.2.

Complaints and Service Requests
The Food Safety Service aims to investigate all food complaints concerning extraneous matter, chemical or microbiological
contamination, unfitness and food alleged to have caused food poisoning, relating to food purchased within Hackney.

The Service will take receipt of all such complaints in accordance with its food and food premises policy and procedure and will
pass on those that are the responsibility of other authorities to investigate.

It is expected that approximately 700 food safety related service requests will be received during 2016/17.

Primary/Home Authority Principle
The Service is committed to the Primary/Home Authority Principle, i.e. the relationship between a food business and local authority
where the decision making base (i.e. head office) of the company is located.

Currently Hackney has no Primary Authority Partnership arrangements but continues to act in an informal capacity with a number
of manufacturers, importers and wholesalers in the borough, as a Home Authority.

The principles of the Primary Authority Scheme are set out in the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008, and are part of
the Government’s regulatory reform strategy led by the Hampton Report and Macrory Review that emphasised reducing burdens
on businesses, and a focus on outcomes respectively.

The Food Safety Service will seek to establish at least one Primary Authority Partnership agreement through collaborative working
with Better Regulatory Delivery Office (BRDO).

Advice and Training to Businesses

The Food Safety Service has produced standards which along with the Food Safety Enforcement Policy outlines the Service’s
commitment to advising and supporting businesses to comply with the legal responsibilities and good food hygiene and food
standard practices.

The Service will give assistance to food businesses when requested to help them to comply with the law and to encourage the use
of best practice. The Service is also proactive in supporting businesses and will continue to:

e Provide advice during routine inspections to premises;
¢ Provide regular Food Hygiene Training courses for businesses to attend.

21



8T obed

e Provide information on the Hackney.gov.uk website with the purpose of providing advice to food business operators and

consumers. http://www.hackney.gov.uk/e-env-environmental-health.htm

4.8. Advice to consumers

4.8.1. The annual Food Safety Week (2016) will focus on “Use By” dates, food waste and the safe use of leftovers. There will be a

particular focus on advice to the over 65s and carers of young children as they are vulnerable to food poisoning and food-borne
illnesses.

49. Food Sampling

4.9.1. A programme of food sampling will be carried out. Sampling may also be carried out in response to complaints and referrals but

also during or following a primary inspections. All sampling is carried out in accordance with the Food Sampling Policy and
Procedure.

4.9.2. The food sampling programme for 2016/2017 will be developed to include London Food Co-ordinating Group (LFCG), FSA and
Public Health England (PHE) programmes, the Food Sector Group projects and local issues.

4.9.3. The authority has access to two official food control laboratories, one for microbiological examination of food (Food Water and
Environmental Microbiology Laboratory) and one for food analysis (Public Analyst Scientific Services Ltd).

4.10. Control and Investigation of Outbreaks and Food Related infectious Diseases

4.10.1. The Food Safety Service will investigate all food poisoning outbreaks and notifications occurring in the borough in accordance with
the Public Health England/Local Authority Joint Infectious Disease Protocol and internal procedures.

4.10.2. The Consultant in Communicable Disease Control (CCDC) at the North East (NE) and North Central (NC) London, Health Protection
Team of Public Health England to act as Proper Officer for the purposes of control and management of infectious diseases.

4.10.3. There were no major outbreaks in 2015/2016 that warranted any detailed investigations. The majority of referrals (322) were isolated

cases where the source of the infection did not present a significant or wide spread risk and other than a routine intervention no
further action was required.

4.10.4. There have been no contingency resources identified for dealing with an outbreak identified for 2016/2017.

22


http://www.hackney.gov.uk/e-env-environmental-health.htm

4.11. Food Safety Incidents

4.11.1. The Food Safety Service has arrangements in place to ensure that it is able to implement the requirements Food Law Code of
Practice in respect of Food Alerts.

4.11.2. A Food Alert ‘for Action’ will be issued by the FSA where intervention by enforcement authorities is required and is often issued in

conjunction with a product withdrawal or recall by a manufacturer, retailer or distributor. All urgent food alerts receive immediate
attention. Outside office hours the emergency contact arrangements will be used.

4.11.3.1n 2015/16 the service received 80 food alerts “for action” were received and a similar number are anticipated this year.

4.11.4. There have been no contingency resources identified for dealing with food alerts for 2016/17.

. RESOURCES

GgT obed

5.1. Financial Allocation
5.1.1.Table 3. Summary of Direct Budget Allocation 2015/16

Budget Heading Food Safety Allocation

Staff (including on costs) £471,286*
Transport £15,328*
External Contractors (Funds all food sampling activities) £16,025
Supplies & Services £17,776*
Total £488,890*

*These figures are 80% of the total amounts for each budget heading based on the estimation that
the service spends 80% of its time undertaking food hygiene work.



08T abed

5.2. Resources for 2016/17
5.3. Staffing Allocation

5.3.1.

5.4.
5.4.1.

5.5.
5.5.1.

5.5.2.

5.5.3.

5.5.4.

Officers currently spend approximately 80% of their time carrying out the food safety function for 2016/17 and staffing the function
is as follows:

1.60 (2 x 0.80) FTE x Team Leaders (TL)
5.60 (5 x 0.8) FTE x Senior Environmental Health Officers (S/EHO/EHSO)
0.80 FTE x Principal Commercial Standards Officer (CSO)
0.80 FTE x Environmental Health Compliance Officer
plus 1.50 FTE x Technical Business Support
Total staffing resources = 10.3 FTE

Authorisation and Competencies in line with new requirements of the Food Law Code of Practice (as amended)

All officers are authorised in accordance with the Authorisation, Induction and Training Procedure and their competencies assessed
against the framework contained therein.

Staff Development Plan new requirements of the Food Law Code of Practice (as amended)

There is a Corporate Staff Annual Appraisal and Development scheme, and at the start of the year all staff will have their own
personal plan which comprises their main objective for the year with targets and their own development plan.

All staff are appraised in accordance with the scheme, and their development needs assessed. Records of all identified training

needs are recorded and incorporated into a training plan. In addition, staff also receive regular one-to-ones/supervision meetings

whereby competencies and develop need are discussed and assessed and adjustments to training plan where possible and
appropriate.

All training records are maintained in accordance with the Authorisation, Induction and Training procedure.

Officers will be assisted in achieving 20 hours’ Continual Professional Development (minimum 20 hours food law related), where
resources permit.

24



/8T abed

5.6.
5.6.1.

5.6.2.

5.6.3.

5.6.4.

5.7.
5.71.

5.7.2.

Allocation of Other Resources

The resources needed to fulfil the food law enforcement plan for 2016/17 are approximately 10.68 full time equivalents (FTE). The
total number of environmental health practitioners and support officers identified in the plan is 10.30 FTE, therefore there is a

shortfall of 0.38 FTE.

The higher risk category A & B, unrated and not broadly compliant category C premises inspections will be prioritised. Where there
may be an impact on lower risk rated premises, project work such as the Healthy Catering Commitment project, food fraud project
and the targeted activities undertaken during multi-service action days will enable the service to address this. The capacity for the
delivery of the Service will be kept under review to ensure that food safety is not compromised.

In calculating the FTE requirement for 2016/17, an estimate of time allocation has been based on the previous years’ outputs. The
estimations make allowance for management time but not for the unplanned arising issues that are not possible to predict.

The team are currently recruiting an additional Environmental Health Officer to lead on the Health Catering Commitment project

which is funded by the Public Health Team.

Resource Allocation per Activity

The table below is the estimation of a full time equivalent.

1 year

52 weeks (260 days)

Annual Leave / Bank holidays

7 weeks (35 days)

Training / briefings etc.

2 weeks (10 days)

Sick leave / dependency / special leave etc.

1 week (5 days)

Number of working weeks

42

Number of working days

210 days

1FTE

210 days (1512 hours)

The metrics used to calculate the activity times below are based on the review carried out following the FSA Audit of the food

safety Service in 2010.

25



38T abed

5.7.3. Programmed Inspections

5.9.

5.10.

° High risk Category A, B, not broadly compliant Category C & D premises and all unrated premises, (assume 350 new
premises) plus 60 AES inspections = 1024 inspections due at 7.0 hours per inspection (including paperwork, notices and 30
minutes journey time). (Due Food Standards inspections will be carried out at the same time) = 7168 hours (4.74 FTE)

° Carry out partial inspections on the remaining broadly complaint rated C premises; 491 premises at 4.5 hours an inspection
(including paperwork and 30 minutes journey time) = 2209.5 hours (1.46 FTE)

Therefore total Food Hygiene inspection time = 9377.5hours (6.2 FTE)

. Food Standards Inspections Category A (19) premises due for food standards only @ 4.0hrs each (including
paperwork and 30 minutes journey time) = 76hrs.

Total Food Standards interventions = 76 hrs (0.05 FTE)

The total resource for carrying programmed inspections = 9453.5hours (6.25 FTE)

Alternative Enforcement Strategy (AES)
Broadly compliant Category D food hygiene premises, Category E food hygiene premises and Category C food standards premises

are likely to be subject to alternative enforcement strategies.

. Allow 0.25 hrs per premises (1210 FH D& E’s +182 FS C) for implementation of scheme = 348 hours.
o Allow 10 hrs for management of AES scheme.

Total for carrying out above Alternative Enforcement Strategies = 358 hours (0.23 FTE)

Re- inspections following programmed inspections
Re-visits will be carried out in premises that are not broadly compliant during their initial inspection, and often multiple re-visits are

needed at the same address. Calculations are based on one re-visit for each non-broadly compliant inspection, and 30% of no
broadly complaint premises needing another re-visit.

26



68T abed

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

For food hygiene re-visits, based on the premises that were tagged at the beginning of April 2016, 42 x As, 331 x Bs and 157 x Cs
were not broadly compliant = 530 revisits @ 2hrs each (including paperwork and 30 minutes journey time) plus 10% follow-up visit
=53 @ 2 hrs = 1166 hours. For Food standards inspections revisits (Category A) 19 @ 2 hrs = 38 hrs

Total resource required for re-inspections = 1204 hours (0.79 FTE).

Service requests
It is expected that approximately 1100 (based on 2015/16 figures) food safety related service requests will be received during the

year. These include advice to businesses and members of the public. It is estimated that each will take an average of 1.0 hrs;
therefore 1100 hrs will be required to deal with these.

Total resource required for Service Requests = 1100 hours (0.73 FTE).

Infectious Diseases and Outbreak Control
The resource required to deal with an outbreak will depend on the size and complexity of the incident. This is not included in the

estimation, and any outbreak will reduce resources available in other areas. In accordance with the Infectious Disease protocol
agreed with the HPA certain infectious diseases are not actioned by the Local Authority. It is estimated that further action
(questionnaire, potting etc.) will be required on approximately 75% of all cases notified (242) (based on 322 cases received in
2015/16 figures) cases. (1 hour each).

Total resource required for Infectious disease = 242 hours (0.16 FTE).

Food Sampling
Sampling will be based on the Sampling Programme — which consists of a number of projects co-ordinated by either: EU, PHE or

the NE Sector Liaison Group, plus a number of local projects and home authority sampling.

o 65 (based on 2015/16 figures) samples @ average 4 hours per sample (including paperwork and 30 minutes journey time) =
260 hours
e Follow up to adverse results (20% approx.); 13 @ 4 hours per sample = 52 hours.

Total resource required for Food Sampling = 312 hours (0.20 FTE)

Proactive Action Days
Action days are taken in areas where there are known problems and it is a focused way of ensuring businesses are compliant. We

expect to carry out at least 4 action days (minimum 20 premises visits) throughout the year for project and collaborative operations.

Each action days involves approx. 11 officers (5hours per day) = 55 hours per action day

27



06T abed

5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

Total resource required for Proactive Action days = 220 hours (0.15 FTE)

Total resource required for Advice and Education to businesses = 86 hours (0.05 FTE)

Food Safety Promotion
Activities during Food Safety Week in June are estimated to take around 4 days of officer time (including maintaining the food safety
web-pages on the Hackney website)

Total resource required for Food Safety Promotion = 28.8 hours (0.02 FTE)

Food Hygiene Training to businesses

The Training Centre is scheduled to carry out 12 x training days in Level 2 Food Hygiene plus 2 x Food Allergens courses plus 4 x
learning trust Level 2 Food Hygiene plus 2 x V2 day Level 2 refresher training sessions. It is estimated that each course currently
takes 10 hours of officer time, and over the course of the year 10 hours’ management time.

Total resource required for Food Hygiene Training = 190 (0.13 FTE)

Outdoor Events
These can occur almost every weekend during the summer months. The Service aims to undertake inspections at approximately
8 events during May to September. Two officers attend per event, for approximately 6 hours each. Preparation time for each event
equates to four hours.

Total resource required for Outdoor events = 120 (0.06 FTE)

Enforcement/Prosecution/Legal work (including Hygiene Improvement Notices, seizures, closures).

28



T6T abed

Table 6: Estimations of resource requirements based on last year’'s enforcement actions

Type of enforcement Number estimated based on Estimate of Total
2015/16 hours hours

Hygiene Improvement Notices 43 1 hour/notice 43
Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notices/Orders 10 anticipated (0 in 2015/16) 18 hours 180
Voluntary Closures 4 10 hours 40
Seizures and detentions 5 18 hours 90
Simple Cautions 2 anticipated (0 in 2015/16) 72 hours 144
Prosecutions 2 72 hours 144
Total estimated time 641

Total resource required for enforcement work = 641 hours (0.42 FTE).

5.19. Technical Business Support

The technical Business Support team are responsible for supporting officers in their activities and for maintaining back-up systems
and specific items of equipment and other resources, managing training courses, maintaining premises database, running reports

for FOIs etc. = 1.5 FTE.

Activity FTE
Programmed Inspections 6.25
Alternative Enforcement Strategies 0.23
Re-inspections 0.79
Service Requests 0.73

29




26T abed

Infectious Diseases and Outbreak Control 0.21
Food Sampling 0.20
Proactive Action Days 0.15
Food Safety Promotion 0.01
Food HygieneTraining 0.13
Qutdoor Events 0.06
Enforcement/Prosecution/Legal work 0.42
Technical Business Support 1.5
 Approximate total resources required to fulfil the plan for 2016/17 10.68

6. QUALITY ASSESSMENT

6.1.

Internal Arrangement

6.1.1. Arrangements include:

6.1.2.
6.1.3.

* monitoring arrangements to assess the quality of food enforcement work and compliance with the Food Law Code of Practice
internal procedures.

* minuted monthly team meetings

annual performance appraisals

development needs assessments and training plan

cascade training and team briefings

accompanied/validation inspections

4-6 weekly one-to-one meetings

External Arrangements

Hackney will submit to the Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS), as required by the Food Standards Agency.
In addition, we upload to the FSA’s FHRS site on a fortnightly basis.

. In 2015/16, Hackney participated in a consistency exercise with the London borough of Waltham Forest as part of a wider North

East London food authority’s initiative focusing on inspection techniques and outcomes. Overall the exercise identified consistent
outcome. However some of the lessons learned will be incorporated in to a new approach by Hackney.

30



€6T abed

6.2.

REVIEW - Review against the Service Plan 2015/16

6.2.1 Monthly and quarterly briefings to the Corporate Director, Assistant Director, the Planning and Regulatory Service Management
Team and lead Councillor on performance against P.I's, the food safety inspections programme and performance targets detailed
in the service plan. Performance of the service is reviewed through a variety of mechanisms which include performance appraisals,
monthly one-to-one meetings and monthly team meetings.

6.3. Annual Food Service Statistics 2015/16

6.3.1. Food Hygiene

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Total Number of premises in Hackney subject to Food Hygiene controls 2,254 2,471 2,575 2954
Percentage of Food premises Broadly Complaint with legislation 73% 74% 79% 84%
Total number of unrated premises at beginning of year 115 145 36 24
Number of new food businesses 341 306 358 367
Number of Food Hygiene revisits undertaken 706 450 358 434
Number of interventions at premises rated A following inspection. 133 154 120 130
Number of interventions at premises rated B following inspection. 600 374 405 493
Number of interventions at premises rated C following inspection. 1215 811 576 650
Number of interventions at premises rated D following inspection. 52 157 164 316
Number of interventions at premises rated E following inspection. 108 68 39 34
Total Number of visits to premises who had ceased trading. 356 290 330 253
Total Number of businesses inspected. 1388 1644 1135 1133

6.3.2. Food Standards

31



6.3.3.

v6T obed

6.3.4.

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Total Number of premises in Hackney subject to Food Standards controls 2269 2513 2832 3210
Number of Food Standard revisits undertaken 10 0 13 120
Number of interventions at premises rated A following inspection. 29 15 20 27
Number of interventions at premises rated B following inspection. 766 656 564 467
Number of interventions at premises rated C following inspection. 292 373 306 340
Total Number of businesses inspected. 1285 1167 1072 933
Food Sampling
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Total Number of Samples taken 154 63 131 65
Food Safety Enforcement
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Total number of Food Hygiene Written warnings issued 1,109 1,021 1,201 1061
Total number of Food Standards written warnings issued 236 431 480 695
Hygiene Emergency Prohibition notices (formal closure) 9 15 13 0
Voluntary Closures due to Food Hygiene imminent risk 11 12 5 4

32



G6T obed

Premises receiving a Hygiene Improvement notice 62 25 37 43

Seizure/detention of food 7 12 16 5

Prosecution of food premises 0 2 2 2

6.3.5. Food Hygiene Training

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Total Number of attendees N/A N/A 121 208

6.3.6. Infectious Diseases

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Total Number of Infectious Disease notifications received 268 245 324 322

6.3.7. Service Requests

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Total Number of food safety related services requests received 1464 1127 878 1134

6.4. Identification of any variation from the Service Plan
6.4.1. NMW activities with HMRC were not undertaken in 2015/16 as HMRC were reviewing their approach and unable to commit to any joint

operations.

6.4.2. 6% of Category C food hygiene inspections were not carried out and these 40 inspections have been carried forward to the 2016/17
programme.

33



96T abed

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

6.5. Key Areas for Inprovement/Development for the next two years

6.5.1.

The service were unable to complete Primary Authority Partnership (PAP) agreement in 2015/16. The service anticipates establishing
the PAP in 2016/17.

The programme of low risk category D rated premises was not completed as higher risk premises inspections were prioritised.
Completion of this work will now form part of the AES for 2016/17.

What we will do

Purpose

when

Delivery of a targeted risk-based
approach for all planned food hygiene
and food standards interventions

To ensure good food safety standards in
food premises in the district to reduce the
likelihood of food poisoning incidents

Targets reviewed and set annually

Checks of food premises that at their last | To ensure that the premises database is | 2016/17
intervention were ceased trading and accurate and up to date and in readiness
therefore recorded as closed. for the mobile working programme.

As it is not uncommon for business to

reopen and start trading without the

knowledge of this Service
Delivery of continued improvements on To contribute to the corporate ICT 2016/17
use of database and to identify programmes, to improve the efficiency of
efficiencies in processes in line with the the service delivery
Regulatory Services ICT strategy and
associated road map
Review of procedures and quality To build capacity and ensure the delivery | 2016/17
monitoring processes of service activities | of the food service is *fit for purpose’, fair,
and internal auditing against Standards practical and consistent and able
and the FSA Framework agreement. withstand a challenge
Ramp-up follow-up and range of To reduce the likelihood of food 2016/17

interventions including formal
enforcement activities in respect of not
broadly compliant premises

poisoning and significant risk of injury to
public health; and to improve the
percentage of broadly compliant
premises

Deliver the Alternative Enforcement

To monitor change of activities and

Targets reviewed and set annually

34



/6T abed

Strategy (AES) for low risk premises

maintain food safety compliance

Deliver the Healthy Catering Commitment
in partnership with the Public Health team

To deliver Hackney’s Obesity Strategic
Partnership plan and reduce health
inequalities.

2016/18

Delivery of Food Fraud interventions to
ensure the provision of safer, healthier
and sustainable food

To reduce illegal foods through
interventions:

Continuation of FSA funded Food Fraud
Project and revised phase 3 action plan

To work collaboratively with the FSA &
City of London to deliver illegal meat
training for London authorities.

To lead pan-London illegal foods group.

2016/17

2016/17

2016/18

Educate and support to businesses

To develop and deliver training courses
to food businesses including market
traders and mobile traders through the
training centre

To develop a plan to identify a number of
businesses in order to establish at least
one primary authority agreement.

To market and further develop the
business compliance consultancy to
assist business compliance, improvement
and growth

2016/17

2016/18

2016/18

Food premises registration

To ensure that all new food businesses
are inspected in a timely manner to limit
the negative impact on the broadly
compliance figure.

2016/17

Effective partnership working

To support the work of HMRC, the Police,
Immigration and other relevant internal

2016/18

35



86T abed

and external partners on observance of
National Minimum Wage/National Living
wage in Hackney.

To identify causes of nuisance arising
from issues relating to commercial noise,
odour control and waste management.

To work with the relevant departments to
establish indicators for human slavery
and safeguarding that can be identified
during inspections to food businesses.

To improve consultation process for
planning applications for new and change
of use premises

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

Promote the Food Hygiene Rating
Scheme

To allow consumers make informed
choices, and driving up standards and
the economy:

Encourage the display of ratings
Develop a scheme for recognition of
businesses that have attained and

maintain FHRS rating of 5

Establish mandatory display in
accordance with FSA guidelines

2016/17

36



AawoeH jo ybnosog uopuo

AoupeH

R ——

9102 ysiely

BuisnoH pue spooysnoqybiaN

wieay d1jqnd
J1/910Z ue|d 991A13S sad1AIag Alojenbay

Page 199



‘suonelaush aininy Joj ‘JUSLLILCNAUS S)| pUB AauyoeH
JOo eieo aye} pue ul apud axe) suszio |le @laym ‘ANuUnNWwWod B|qeuleisnS B ag ‘9

‘Buisnoy s|qepioye ‘Ayjenb ybiy ssaosoe

uea s|doad asaym ‘spooyinoqybiau paubisop-|jam U] SauNWWOod paxiw ajowold
‘AaunoeH ul syes |98} 0) ajdoad djey pue ‘1ajes ybnoloq sy} axen
‘Buiall Juapuadspul poddns pue 'jje Jo} Buldq||em pue yjeay sjowold

‘suofjelidse [euoneonpa asiel pue paijijenb ta))eq awoosaq 0} sjuepisel dioH

+

N T W

‘sapunuoddo juswAhodwa
Bupowoud pue ‘Juswiojdwsa sjqeuleisns ojul sjuspisas Bupoddns Aq Auenod aonpay T
'sapioud xs sey ABajens Aunwiwo) sjqeuleisns gL0z-800Z SUL

‘op am sbuy) pue axew
am suolsioap auy} ul way) Buajoau) pue ‘sjuepisel o) Bulus)sy
ybno.y) ‘spngquiuod ues auoiianae assym aseid e Aauyoe Bunen

"218Y 8Al| OyMm || 1o} 3} jo Ayenb
jeaib B pue s8onuas olgnd pue syled Judj@oxe ‘sjesal)s 8jes
‘veap yim ‘Aofus ues auoiisae jey) aoeld e AauyoeH Bupew

"Jsow JI pasu oym asoy} o} poddns
Buipinoid pue ‘sqol pue JUaWISOAU| ‘UOlIEONPA SSED JSIY e
ybnoJy) ‘pesdons ued suoiiana alaym ade|d e AsuyoeH Bupje

:¢ fjuoud s Johepy

:Z Mjuoud s johey

11 fjuoud s Johe

auo/fiaAs Joj asejd v :uoisip s Aewnjoerf

sjasiesddy jenpisipuy

F 3

SuUBjd Wea |/ealy 8diAleg

F 3

sueld sseulsng [BUOISIAI]

F 3

ueijd Aaaleq siesodion

. * —_—,

f ue|d ejesodion ] m

5 7 Y = AN
(O]
(@)
@
o

(808)
ABajes)s Ajjlunuitio) ejgeutelsng
sajjliold sJoAey

SoN1I01id 9)E10di07) 0} SHUI] 801AIag oy} MOH



‘9 9 ‘¢ Aptond ABajesig Ajunwwon sjqeurelsng z Ajuond s JoAely 'swes] spiepue)s buipel) g Buisusom
‘yleaH |2luawuonaug 0} Moddns eAnElSIUILIPE/SSAUISNG [e21UL0a) 8010 Yoeq pue Bujoe)-jucl) sepinold pue aied Jo [ejdsoy ul sswoy
J13U) woyy Aeme Aelodwa) aie oym sjuapsal Jo Auedoid sy sjoalold ‘way) Jo) i op o s|ge/Buljim ApogAue aaey jou op jey) AauyoeH
JO SeuEpUNog ay) UIyIM aip oym ajdoad Joj s|eieun) sabuelie aoIAleS JusWaABaleg [U0IIB)0Id Ajiadold pue sadiAlag JuswvARalag

‘g g ‘¢ Aond ABejens AJunwiwo sjqeuleysng g Ajuoud s Jofey
"sjejWeH Jamo) pue uolBuys| ‘uspwe) Jo sybnolog uopuoT jo Buisisuod WniHosuoo e Jo Ked s 8djales 8y “JsuoloD au) Aq pausjal
SYJESp JO} JNO PalUED aIB sWwapow-1sod SaINsue pue Paseadap sAsWoeH Sal0ls pue sajpuey Alenuoly dlignd auy} :Alenuop Jlignd syl

‘9 g ¢ ‘¢ Qoud ABejens Alunwwo) sjqeuleisng g Ajliold s JoAey ‘SalAOR S|qesuadl| paslioyineun
Aue o) preBal Uim Juswadlojus oy a|qisuodsel osly ‘seduadl) asoy) o} Buiuiepadde suoipuod pue sejn 8y} yim Aldwos pue suoljelisibal
‘sayeoyen ‘saoued) ejeudosdde au) ploy sessauisng Aswyoen Jueasied |e jey) Buunsus Joj ajqisuodsal :edlaseg Bujsuedr syl

‘¢ %9 ¢ Auoud ABajens Aunwwo) sjgewreisng z Ajuolid
s JoAep ‘siuejdwos paje(as yom Jnoge suopebiseaul pue uolewUoU] ‘@oiApe jo uoisinoid ay) Buipnjour sessaulsng AsuxoeH Jueas|sl e
ur uone|sibis| Ajaies pue y)jesy Jo JuswWaeaIojua Jo) ajqisucdsal - esiniag Ajajes B YjeeH [euoednad( (921AleS YiesH |ejusuuolAuz

vRE
Kyioud ABajens Apunwwod ajqeujelsng z Ajuond s ofep “om Gujdwes pue sjuieidwod pooy jo uoheblsaaul ‘suoyebijsaau) sseasip
SNOIY3JLI JNO SSLLED OS|E WES) 8y ‘UOHELLIojUl PUB 3DIAPE jo uoisiaoid sy Buipnjoul sessaulsng pooj AsuxoeH [le SSOJOB SuojuaAIB)Ul
Ajejes pue uyeey pue spiepuejs pooj ‘aualBAy pooy Jo abuel e sayeuspun - edlueg Alejeg Pooy (9DIAIBS UjjeeH |ejuswiuolAUg

‘b 9 ¢ Qjuonid ABajens Ajunwwio) siqeuleysng
Z Aol s,JoAel 1paIo Jawnsuoo Jo yoedses ul siawnsuoo Buidiey se jlem se ‘sainsesw pue sjybiam pue A9jes Jewnsuod ‘Buipey
ey 0) pajejes sannp Aojnjels Bunsaw Uy sessauisng ayewyibs) suoddns pue ‘pneyj pue slieos sajefiisaaul wee) sy ‘saoljoe.d Buipelny
0} Bupejel uone|sibal Lo AsuyoeH UlyIm slawnsuod pue sassauisng Buisiape pue Bujolojus Joj ajqisucdsal :a2ja18g splepuels Buipes)

'swes) Buimo)jo; ay) sasudwios aaIes 8y AjAIOE JUSWSIojUS
gjeudoidde ypm siy) suiquiod pue syomjeu Loddns ssyjo o) way) jsodubis pue pyoddns djgy o} sassaulsng Yim sey sdlaias alf) Sjoejuod suy
Buisyn sepniowl siy L Juswdojaaap ssauisng poddns pue sislieq paalsasad pue [ENJO. Y1og UMOp Yeauq o} S| sadinag Aiojeinbay Joj snooy Aoy
e ‘ymolb pue yuswdojaasp ssaursng o} Jauleq e 8q 0} paaeasad usyo si uojenbiay ysu 1e Awouoos [200] aU) pue yjieay olignd jnd oym ssouy
JsuieBe Ayanoe juswaoiojus Bunabie) Jsiiym SassauIsng O} Lolewloul pue soape ‘poddns apiaoid Ajsaloe 0} s 8jo) Koy seoineg Aojenbay

wea] ayj jo asodind ayl 1’1

Page 201



wepuajuuadng
ArETLIoN WETSISSY {papuny ys3) B340
x1 I— joslaig pnesjpooy |
X
ﬂun.#._._m&m
ity (papuny Hd) =0
x| .uu_entsﬁﬁmﬂoo &
Buuaes 2
urs)
Eﬂﬂpﬁj
IIIIIIIII 1y w_.:uﬁcmEiwcrE&om [ Eﬂnﬂnﬁ.ﬂm:_ncun_._! n:.m:uo.iﬂnﬁaﬂ_.ﬁ
x|
5040 woddn SBOUO I RO SRIEMUEIS FOU0 WIS 1Y SpEpUTIS
ssoumeng jessa) | | jenswunaag 1omos | | wieod mwewoasaus || | Bususory sowes | | tntawsmzﬂ._ o0
4
B0I () SPUEpAE 30 YESH FEUD) U UL AU 4304 SpeEpUElS
7 nodine e |—| | MEssunos jedouilg || | jewausoinig soiuag | | Bususon o || | Bursudon fedouid BRuaWIne ) [Edolld
xi — xz X

Page 202




*aousbiau)
Jo yoe| e o} enp bBunssw e Bupuad pausisp
sem saoineg  Alojginfey Jaujo pue  SIUO siehoidwa Aq pied s| abem | uepul]
aWOoH ‘9004 ‘DWWH ulm Bupliom diysieuped - | WNWiuW jeuopeu ay) jses)je Buunsus Joj ssa.d 0} anunuod |iIM S i1To) Sl

‘Aojjod pasiaal & uo Buynsuod
alojaq Jusawsbebus sapjoy a¥e)S SAjuelsqns
Jayuny ino Buifiied o) MaIA B UM GLOZ AON SZ Uo

j2UNo A dope-as sem AS B -
¥ D 84l AG pajdope-al 1|04 bulisixa syl BLULID PUE INOINBYS]

GLOz 1snBny p| pue Ae 52 |e1oos-pue Sapjoe} Jeyl sqnjo pue sqnd o) esuocdsal paduejeq | uspul]
usamiaq Uo pa)nsuoo pue padojeasp Aolod yeiq - | e Buidojeasp ‘Adjjod Buisusoi] S|Iouno) sy) malnal [Iim SM ilTTe) 19
Jequuap
sauo)sa|in juswiiuiwion ojsejjuely | jeulqen |  Joy
‘suoiejoadxae 1ewolsno -

pue sjable) ‘sainseaw ‘Buajuo Jo ebuel e jsuiebe pauuopad 821A1SS SU) ||SM MOY N0 Jas SBAIE 90IAISS BU} IO} SJ0JEJIPUI BoUBULICKSd BY |

‘splepuels
Buipes). pue Buisueal] ‘yiesH [ejuswuuosAug Joj uoijoesiies Jawoisnd Buipsebas Jojes)pul souewiopdad A9y B sey seoniag Aiojeinbey

91/S510Z 914oid aJueULIONdd |

91/5102 NO MOVE ONIMOOT — MON JdV M J¥3IHM ¢

Page 203



‘sjooyas

1ebie) Jeau sAemeaye) Ul sadjoyo/suondo
Ayyeay aaosdw 0} wes) yyesy

alland 8y yum juswiiwwoy Buusieg AyyesH

:Buipnour ‘saAoe pue
sjoaloid psj-aouapias JO SBLIBS B JN0 pelle)

*S919UD|01Ye Jo)ealb pue )soo paanpal
‘saunpoddo pue Alealap a0inas pancsduy|
‘sJauped wod) JusWwwwo))

‘Burjsom diysiauped pue juiol pasiwndo

‘Buijom diysisuped

‘PI8yY
S9a)IWWOo3-qNs g9 PUE paledal suoijedidde
SN3L 0002 'panss! sasusd) sAkemybiH 0002

'G10¢ J8qWBAoN
ul paydope-ai sem Aaljod Buisuasin Bupsix3

aoe(d ul sess8004d GuIsSuadi| Jusdy]

‘610z Isnbny | pue Aey
GZ U2amjaq Jno palJed uole)nsuod aqnd

‘padojaasp Adjod yeiqg

"Ajaoy Buisusor

sasiwald vy Alobajen
ysu ybiy jo 9,00} aoueulopad uoyoadsy|

*§59U|SNq
Joj spalosd pyoddns paseq-oidoy jo AiaaljeQ

‘awwelbold uonoadsul Ajajes w YiesH

‘Ajajes pue

ylesy uo aiqnd ay) pue SasSaUISNG 0] SdApe
epiacld pue uonouny Ajuoyine Juaweslojud
A)ajes pue yjjesy s,|Iounoy ay} 4euspun

‘sasiwald pooy
uedwos peciq jo abejuasiad pasosdw 0}
Bunnquiuoo spiepue)s aulibAy pooy paaoidul

‘069°01 3 JO SNUAASI pB)BIBUSE)

"si8|puey
poo} 6Z | 0} uoissas Buiuies ¢ passalag

‘si9)ew
Ksjes poo} uo sassauisng o) Guiuiey) apinold

‘s@s|waid pajeiun Ul uolonpal %0¢

"0,6/ 10 J18bie) ay} Bulpaaaxa ausibAy pooj ul
uedwos Ajpeo.iq sasjuaid Jo 9,69 passiyoy

‘ssauIsng
Joy syoafoid poddns paseq o1do) jo Aisallag

'slajew Ajajes
poo} uo Jlgnd sy} pue sasssuisng 0) 9diApe

‘sosjwald gy Aiobajes apiaoad pue uonouny AjlJoyine Juswsliojus
ysu ybiy Jo ¢,001 eouewlopad uopsadsul ‘swiwelbold uoioadsul sasiwald poo4 Ajajes pooj s,|1aunoD ay) ayelapun
awoan0 indino uooy

g1/S10Z WO} SaWO0IIN0 PUB SJUBIBABIYIY Ad))

Page 204



"Z1'G99'613 10} papIemE 8iem

$)S09 pUB Q00'0LF SEM BuUll 8y "asipusyoiesw
yausjunos Bues jo ANk punoj sem

oym Asuoen ul Japey) e Jsuiebe uoygnosasoid
e palnodas adiAlas spiepue)s buipesy ayl

sJopeJ) Jo suolosdsu) sejnbay

spoob
~ Wapsjunod o Ajddns ey} jequiod o} JoM

"000eqO} )OI PBY S]ISIA XIS

woy) sesiwald auo Ajuo o} paacadul sjnsa.
ay) Aueniga4 Ul pajonpuoo s)SiA 3y | "059eqo)
JOI| ABY O) pUNCY SJ9M SISPEJ} XIS JO

N0 JN0o} JaqoIa0 Ul PSIaNPUO0I SHISIA BY} W0J

‘Aleniqa
pue 12qojo0 Ul aoeid %00} asay) ‘AsuxoeH
Ul slapel) 0} syisiA Jo shep ejeledas om)

002Eq0} }I01))1 Jo Aiddns ey) JeqLUOD 0] HJOAA

‘siouiws o} joyodje Buyjes

J0} 00/Z3 JO 8Ul B paA|9dal Japel) B 'ased
sSnoiABld B Wiol) JJNSal 8} PaAjadal aolalaes au)
judy u) "uopnoesoud Joj papiwgns uaaq sey
Yoiym SHJOMaJY JO B|BS B SEM BI8Y) JaqoloQ

Ul pue ajluy B Jo ajes B Sem alay] Ae

U] "JOYOD|E JO SB|BS OM) 3JaMm 23U} JaquiesaQ
pue |udy U] "sjonpoid pejouyssal abe o) spetu
219M S8jes Ino) ‘sAep uonIe Al 8y} wold

20l0d S} Yim
diysseuped uj sAep uonoe aseydsnd 1se) SAl

sajeg aby Japun

"aWILID 3)IUY JBPIOSIP SWLD B}0E)
0} ,Juspi | uonesadQ, 89110d 8} Yim BuOAA

158104 Wweyjep jo ybnolog uopuo
al) woly senbeajjoo y)eay [ejusluuoiAue
yuMm uoposadsul Aoua)sisuo julof

‘sasiwald pajel aualbAy
anoqe ¢ u) sbuiel sualbAy poo} jo Aejdsip
ay) abeinooua 0} yS4 9y} wouy Buipung

‘pooy papodw AjjeBayl pue pnelj
pooj Jsujebe ajenbar pue Jojuow O} YS4
ay) Aq papoddns peoy Asjpiy Ul sAep uopoy

Page 205



‘swiapow jsod ggL Ino palues
pue selpoq ££Z palojs Aenlol dlland Syl

‘|lendsoH uopswoH
J0 J|leyaq uo saysiess Ausadold auiu yoouspun
pue sjeusjel /G PpeA@dal  #dIMeS Byl

201A19G JuUsWaAeslag

‘pauueid uonelado Jayung ‘palolisap
Awenbasqns pue pazies saulyoew Q¢

‘Aauyoey Ul sasjwaid
woJ) sauiyoew Buwef |ebs|p psaowal
0} uoijesado ue u uoissiwwo) Bujques pue
991|104 8ul Yim payiom Juswediojus Buisuso

saJinzies sauyoew buiwes |ebay|

*0L0¢€ AQ paseaJtoul sde.
Aoyiny sjgisuodsay uawasltojus Buisusol

‘SMalAsl
Buisueol ainyny o] piebal ym [eyusnyul aq
0) palepisuod s pue abeisaod ssaid |euoneu
paAl@dal uoIsia juswysagal ybiu sl
apmosd Jo joyooje |jes 0) papiuued 1abuo| ou
SOSIWal4 ‘|lounoy o} papleme S)sod 000'GZ3

‘Bulieay teadde ay) Je 8oAal
0] uolisicap 8y} papusjep Ajnjssedsons pue
Yo)pPaIoyS Ul UoNe)S |05ja4 09BX8 ] JSWLO) 8y}
10 90UB9)| 9y} pemainel Juawadloyug Buisusar

suolejuasaida.l
Auoyiny s|qisuodsay juswasiojul Buisuao

“(1ounon ay) 0) awos spasdold ay)
10 paIY) BUQ :gN) UOISIBAUCD paslioyineun Joj
000'gc3 pue Juawdojaasp |ejuapisal |ebaj| Jo)
paAalyoe sem 000'00/3 JO J5pI0 UOIBISYUOD Y

satousiolyle Jajealb pue Jsoa paonpal
‘saniunyoddo pue Alaajep a2inas paaoldw)

‘siauped woly Juslujwwo)

aonsag Buluue|d suj yum diysisuped
ul suopebisaul [eloueuly swU Jo spasdold

‘Buiyiom diysisuped pue juiof pasiwundo

Buniom diysseuped

‘GLoe
JaquisAON GZ U0 j1ounod Aq pajdope Asijod

G1L0Z Jequaldes  pue Anf 0z usamiaq jno
palles uoje)nsuod sygqnd pue pasinal Aoljod

(Aonog)
sa|dioulld jo awalels Bulques Jo MaiAaY

Page 206



‘Aous|oiye
asealoul o} ABojouyos)
a|qejieae pue Buplom
10 sAem mau Buisin Ag
‘snuaaas uonelausb Ag u
‘saoinas pebeuew
aouruuopad Jo Buuasep Ag «
IMBIADY JUBLWasIojuT
Bumna-ssoin sy} jo
Aianliep ayy 0 Bunnquuod Ag «
‘seonoeld Buplom LIspow
ajelodiod Buippaque Ag «

9 %2 ¥ ‘¢ Huond ABajens
Aunwwo) sjqeuresng

€ '8 T Ajoud s Johey

(La)
mny pineq

(3Iv)
gj|uajuo
suhaly

pajeulplood apiaosd

pue suojje|nbiay
yuaswabeue oiyel ).
yum Ajiny Aidwios oy

sassauIsng
pue sjuapisal }sbuowe
UONoBJSHeS JBLIO)SNI JO
s|aAa] ybiy ujeiulew ol

"sassaoso.d

pajeibsiul ybnolyy
pasn AjgAnoaye

pue Ajjuaioyje

alow aq ued sa2INosal
alaym seale Agjuepl o}

anusaaal pue Aouaidlye
8SEBa1oU| pue S}sod
Bunesado sonpal o)

auaos)sal)g 0} Buisuaai
sAemybiH Jo uoisuel|

swuwelboly
Juswaioju]
Buyno ssou) e
108lo1d sauabysu)
ssauisng ajeJodio) e
108l01d Sjuswslinbay
ajqop sjelodlo] e
:0} UolINQUILOD
pue uonedpied

-awwelboud
Suiddew ssaooad
jo uopejuswsajdw| e
"‘Alessaosau
2JaM UONEJUSWNIOP
pue sainpaso.d
Buipnjour sessso0.d
[Buoljesado JO MBjADY e

:Bunpiom Jo sAem malney

PRI

Juswaolojugy Bumny
-§5017) @y} Jo Ausalep
pue Bupjom Jo shem maN

Se0inosey JO as() 8y} buisiuixep

Ajanoe ajelrodion Aoy

IR
pes

asoding

OP [IIM 8M Jeym

seAp2elqo

dIUTHL 139 O1 ONIOO IM 3dV MOH ANV 38 OL 433N IM OQ J¥3IHM €

L1/910Z @Yy 1o} sanioud Ae) oyl '€

Page 207



ot

~ eojaseg Bujsuedy |

v

- (ss)
BUBWEBIIG ‘uojjeLLIoU) ‘ajeudeidde se jusjuos slg)sibay ay1qnd
wbuegng puB $S800B J1|qnd aroidwy O} | 8)sgam sjepdn pue malney Buipnjou maines s)ISqsn
ms) ~ "8DIA9s |esnaU ~ -aouepinb enne|sibe)
uesanyiey | 1s02 e|qissod asoym pue 1ebpng |  pue me| aseD Jusdsl jo b sabieyo
BUING/LQ | SWwodu] 99} peduejeq ainsua 0 | Ui sabieyo pue sa9) MalAaY pUB S88} JO MBIADY
: ‘Buipoda.
pue juswabeuew
S0UBLLIOUDA e
ssauyots Buionpal pue
aoussqe jjejs buibeuely e
‘sinoiaeyaq buyjjjepow S8U0-0)-au0 Jeinbal pue e
8|0J pue JuawuoJiAua salonpaoud au
pue aapiscd e Bupest ‘uonos.Ip uo sjesieidde yejs Jiay)
Jes|d Buipnosd ‘dysiapes) Bupjepapun siebeuely e
JU[|2oxXe Wolj Jysuaqg swes) Buiuiel Juswabeuew ‘s|I1ys diysiepea)
4y PUE S|ENPIAIPUI ||E 8JNSue 01 12 @ouepuslly « | pue ssbeuew Buidojaaag
Jusaald 2
pue jesH alignd -
siosom jeba| -
abem Buia|lumwuI
jeuoneu -
slgyjolq -
Buiyse) diysisuped Bupjoiyesy uewny -
1SISSE 0} 8oUSNYUI pU. ;apnioul sauoud 321A18S-SS0UD
4y | abBpajmoun pajesbajul apinosd oL 0} S}ISIA 10} ISIPoaYD e JO SSBuUsIEME PISEaIIU|

‘Aemybiy ay) Bunoaye
syJom 0} asuodsal

Page 208



11

*SUOQIIPUOD 82UBd||

J18y) Aq epige sasiwaxd

pasua?|| j|e buunsus Ag

‘sjure|dwios

Buinjosas pue Buiebisaaul Ag «

‘uone|siba)

yim Ajdwon o) Ajlunwwios
ssauisng ay) Bunsisse Ag

‘anuaaal Bupeisuab Ag “_

‘Aousiolya

asealoul 0] ABojouyoa)

1d

‘89UBS|NU 18YJ0

puUE INoABYaQ |BIDOS-JUB ‘B0
aonpal 0} AJajes Ajunwiwos

Jo ylom 8y} poddns o)

‘Awoucoa Ayendsoy/ew ybiu
jueiqIa pue ajes e poddns o)

|EQ0| pUB SajjuoyIne
|eco) ‘saiouabe [eula)xa
Jayio ‘fisjes Ajunwwo)

ym Bunjiom aaljesoqe|ioD e
J1ounoc)

8y} 0} Ara7 uo Hoday e
"3[ISEOMBN
pue uspwen) ‘uojbuysi
ul salng| 8U) woly aonjoeud
}58q pue JuIea) SUOSS?)|
Buiojdxa pue junoaoe
oju Bunye; siamod

pue SWIaYyds JO MBIASY »

‘Awoucoa sw ybju ay) jo
Buoyjod jeuonippe apiacid
0} AneT JUBIN 91e] Ay Jo
uoljonpoul 8y) Jepisuod

a|qejieae pue Bu|yiom
10 sAem mau Buisiiin Ag ¢
Aunwwos
ay] uiyum Awouoos JO)SIA 3)es
e Jo uoisiacud sy} sjowoud
01 sisuped ypm Bupiom Ag «
'SJOWINSU0D
pue sassauisng yjoq
0} @9in1as Ayjenb pue aanosye
“aioyje ue Buipinoid Ag &
‘aoinpe
pue aouepinB Bulonpoid Ag «
‘woddns ssauisng
apiaold jeyy saaneu; ul
Bunedionied pue Bunowold Ag o

9 2 v ‘¢ Ajuoud ABajens
flunuiio) s|qeureisng

£ % Z Ajuolid sJ0hely

(4D) alanry
Buiuuey/1a

‘sjuapisel
pue siawnsuod 1o} a)) o Ayjenb
pue Buisq||am ‘Ujjeay uo |oyoo|e

Jo syoedw) aamyebau sonpai o)

‘@oUBsINuU pue JnejiAeyaq [BI00S
-jjue jo 1oedwi ay) abeuew o}

“10}08s Ajjepdsoy ayy jo
ymodb pue Awouooa awg ybiu
JuBIgIA pUB 3)Bs B poddns o]

‘Awouoss awi) Jybiu jueigia
ay} Jo ymoib ay) sbeuew o

'saAlja9/qo

Buisuao)| ¢ ay) Bunowoud 1sjum
£00¢ 10V Buisuad] ay) sepun
suonesidde Bupapisuoo usym
paydde sejdiound sy} Jnojes oy

sapywwon Buisuson)
J0j yoda. ssedaid
pue siap|oyse)s

Aoy yum Uol1e)nsuoD) e

‘uole)Nsuod
10} uojiejUaWINOop
annloddns pue
JUswINoop YeIp 8anpold e

"UONE)NSUCD
o) Joud Buidoos
pUE $8|22SBW|} 9INpold e

Aallod

Buisuaol Jo jusiualels
10 MmaIAal & Jo peaye
uoeyNSuUoD aAljuBiSgng

AjAnoe ejeiodiod Aay

182140 pea

asoding

Op [1!M M JEUM

$9AN08Iq0

Page 209



(4"

‘ssano0.d
aapiuwo) qng Buisuasl sy
ybBnoay) piaydn ate saanosiqo

Buisuaoy ay) jey) buunsusa

aj

ay) Jo Buyepspun ayj o} psebay
UlIm SassaulIsng pue sjuapisal
)sBuowe ucioejsijes 1aWoisno
Jo sjaae] yby uejuiew o

‘sjues|dde Joy swweiboid
Buiuiey) e jo Ateallep a10dxe o]

‘ybnoJoq ay; u sasiwaid
pue sjuaAs pasuad) wouy Buisue
sanss) Algjes algnd asiwuiw o

"JnolAeysq

[BIDOS-I}UE PUB 1BPIOSIp /BWUD
‘aouesinu Se Yons se yons
10edw) aanebau asjunuiw o

sanss| paje|al
Buisuaoy) Jejiuwis pue
SaI)IAIOE pasiouIneun jo
suoljebs||e o) puodsay
‘Alessaosu
alaym suonejussaldal
a2)elw pue ‘suoje}nsuod
0] puodsal pue MalAsy e
(9307)
dnolo) Juawsoioju
suonelsadp Buisuao e
sajjoYyINy 8|qisucdsay
19Yjo yum Bupprom
pue 8|0y Ajouyiny
sjqisucdsay Bunuing e
‘Buiseyoind )sa)
Buipniou sdoys Buipaq
Jo Joadsal saones
J2aY1o ypm suopuasssiul
Juonoadsul Julor e

sjuawannbal Buisuaol|
Buiuanenuos asoy)
Jsuiebe uonoe juswisoloa
aAll03)y8 Janlag
‘Alessasau se uojjoe
juswaaioue a)jeudoidde
2yeuapun pue uolje|siba)
Buisuso)| yum aoueldwos
2INSu8a 0] S[ENpIAIpU)

‘suoneoljdde | Jo Joadsal u| pue sasiwaid Aoyiny sjqisucdsay
(da) Buisua9y| ||e uo uojessiujwpe O suonoadsu; paseq-ysit e se buisuaoi
Aney usueq aAljoaye apinoid o] | jo awwelboud e axepapun pue uoljejnbas Bujsusa|

ul }sisse pue suojjeojjdde mau

uo suonejuasaidal Bupew Ag o

"S8ljIUNWLWOD
pue sassauIsng

Page 210



£T

AS

0202 Aq

AlljeJinau 1S00 SpIEMO) YIOM O]
'sgssauisng Buisipisgns

JOU S [I2UNoD) 8Y) 8INsua o)
flounod ayy

10} 9NUSAB) |EUOHIPPE 8INJ8S 0]

CRIINED
SSIUaAPE PUB 82NpOoJjU|
‘vodsu

siamod pajefisjap dojeasg
'sBunsoo ysijgelsa

0} adueuld UYiIM YJOM

‘safuoyny Jayjo Aq pajajo

sawayos Jo aonoe.d )saq
MBIADL pUB YJeluyouag

alwayds aoLadl| Yoey
-}se} pue uoneosidde-aid
jo uonejuswa|du asojdx3

Hd/1.4a

sjuans
JOOPINO 0} LoNEe|al Ul pajjyin} sie
sme Ajajes poo4 pue Ajejes R
ylyesH 10y Buisusol ainsua o]

"§9559UISN( pUE Sjuapisal
jsBuotue UoNoBISHES JSWoISND
10 sjaAs| Ybiy ulelulew o)

sjuana ajeos abue) jo
Buuojuow pue aspuoud -
‘sdnolo
Aosiapy AJajes jueaalal
Jayjo Jojpue ssadsoud
{wes] uonoy Juang
KauyoeH) 1vy3H ‘dnoib
Alsjes pue |euonesado
‘Buuue]d ‘Buisueal
yed aidwAio yiegezii3
usanp Ul uonedioied -
Aessaoau
alaym suonejuesaidal
Jo Buyew
Buipnaul 'suojje)nNsuod
0} puodsal pue malnay -

AausoeH auy ul sasiwaid
pue SjuaAe pasuad)|

wol) Buisue sanss)
Aajes olgnd ssjwuw o,

"83UE]JSISSE PUB SDIAPE
YlIM SBssaUISNg apinold

Page 211



vi

N s0}saqsy e
suyesp (spixouopy
puUB SjUapIZO. JO SBOUBPIOU) uogJen) [any pliog e
sonpal 0} AJunNwwaoD ay} LIYjim sapa4 ‘awsyas
sjuswiuosAud Buppiom ajes auer Buiey susibAH copey e
10 uoisinoid ay) Buunsua Ag yuswsjdwi pue dojpAep o] e
‘sJawnsuod (gu) suofjoadsu
pUE sessau|sng Woq hejueg "90IAISS 8U) Ylim uoioR)sijes Juswieal) [eioads
0} a9jAlas Ayjenb pue aaoays qoy $S3UISN pue juapisal pue abessew ysu yoiH e
“uaioys ue Buipinoid Ag « Jo sjeaa] ybly uiejuEW O] 19848 uUBIH sy Ul Y)ea .
‘as1ape pue Buiydseos sssuisng
pue Buiunely 1500 mo| Buipiaoad ‘uoljeLLLIojul pue sjoalosd ggH
Aq pue poddns ssauisng Hoddns Joj @omues sy Yoeoidde (Ajuo
apinoud jey) saapeniul u| 0} sessauisng abesnoous | sasiweud vy je)) awweibosd
Bunedpiued pue Buowolid Ag o pue ymo.b ssauisng poddns o) uonadsu) sesiwaid SPH
9 % ¢ ‘¢ Auoud ABajens s 1saybiy sy} Bunebie) :SUOnUBAIB)UI/SBNIACE ybnoioq ay} ui
Munwwog a|qeule)sng Aq ‘spsezey |euonedno20 Jo swwelboud e jo laaep |  saoejdiiom Ul spiepuels
(N) pe woJyy Bupnsal sjuapioul pue sauinbua pue alejjom pue A)ajes
£ ® Z Auoud sJofepy | ysaIN/HY pUB SJUSpIodE 8onpal o] sjulejdwod o) buipuodsay | ‘yyeay poob sy} Buunsug
190140
Aanoe ajesodiod Aay peen asoding Oop 1M 2M JELAA saAnoaiqo
adjAleg Ajejes pue yjjeeH
soeyd
ul sjuswabuelie pasinay -
‘sapiwwon Bujsuao
ay) o) nodaiuodal
slamod pajebsjaq -
sanuoyjne (swayos Bupel ausiBAY
‘saonoesd 18yjo yym ylewyouag - coyje) Jo juawdolaaap
Buiiom juaidis sinsua o sassaocoud Bupnjour) suonound
HOHSW) asodund pue sainpaocoid yuswyeal] |elosdg

yiws I

10} Jlj S| UOJjouUN) 8INsus 0]

USLND MBIADY -

pue afesse Mmainey

Page 212



ST

|| JaWwnsuo)

JeuoneN Buunp Auenoped
yiom yoealne Bunjepapun pue
SJaWINSU02 Joj ssalpal buiueyqo
‘siope)) anbos Bunequos AgQ «f
‘sjdoad BunoA o} saAluy

pue syiomall} ‘'022eqo) ‘|oyoole
se yons sjanpold pajouisal

abe |jos 12U} SassauIsng

‘siapel)

18410 10} pioy BuiAeld |9as)

B ainsua 0} pue sjybu sjueus)
108)0.4d 0} SBWAYIS SSAIPS.
ay) Jo diysiaquiaw aunsua o)

neyssbim/sonawsod
Buiseyound 1sa) e
sasiwaid ysu ybiy wnipaw
Jybiy jo suopoadsu; psuueld
pUE S}ISIA S0IAPE jUOjEDNPT
awsyos ssaipey sjuaby
Buibeuep pue Bupa e
ABajeys |eaq
[e8y, 8y} JO uonenuijued
— spoof yapeiunod Supoe] e

0} ABojouyosy s|qe|leae pue
Buijiom Jo shem meu Buisiin Ag «

ynesH Z |eas Jo Asallsq e
aoug||ooxo sejelsy e

Bunejnbal pue Buisiape Ag }aap\ Jawnsuo)
KawoeH ul spoob j)au8lunod |euoiieN ul uojedioiied e
9% ¢ ‘¢ Auoud ABajens | (Mr) lMluey Jo A)jigejieae 8y} aonpal 0, sjoefoud
Alunwwo) sjgeuieisnsg | BInrAry) [euoiBal uj uonedioied
sauop *AlIOU0D23 Buipnjou syoelosd A)ajes pue uoleanps
¢ B Z Ajllold s Jofey uqoy 8y} pue slawnsuod Jasjoid o) Kiajes paj| aousbijiaju) e ‘20JApE JOLUNSUOY) |
Jaoujo
A)Anoe ajelodios Aay pea asodingd Op ||IM M JeUM saAlRa3iq0
o % 20IAI8g Spiepue)s Buipe )
1a
"€00Z 10V Buisusor (ML)
ay) Japun Ajuoyine sjqisuodsal SWEIM
10 aj01 8y} Bupjepepun Ag e esasey]
‘AiIdwod jou op Jey) sassauisng 1a
asou) Buiyoey Aq pue uonejsiba|
yum Aldwes o} Ajunwiwod (a)
ssauisng ayj Buisisse AQ ¢ SIMaT
‘Aouaioiye asealoul 1o0)xag Buies) Aysjes pue

Page 213



91

(zZs) 267 90IAI8S BY) UM LonoeBISHES :sj08loud £)ejeg poo |
usayeys/IN $SauUIsSNg pue juapisal
Jes 10 sjaAs| ybiy ulejuew 0] swwelboid
0} JouINsuoD ayj 10} aWosajoym Guydwes Aisjes pooy
pue 3jes si ybnoloq ‘uoljewLojul pue Joddns
ayj Ul pejaxelwl pue pajnquisip gy Joj a91n9s aY) yoeosdde swwe.boid Buwyoeod Ajejes
‘psonpoud pooy Jey) Buunsus 0} sassauisng abesnoosus | pooy Buiesodioou) ‘swweisoid
AQ wiey wolj s58WINSUOD pue ymoub ssauisng poddns o] uojjoadsur sasiwalid
1089104d 0) sisuned pue poo} Jo Aiaallep pue 'sasiwald
sassauisng yum Buiiom Ag ‘AswyjoeH | pooy pue pooy Jnoge saunbua
u| sassausnqg pooy jueldwos | pue syulejdwod 0} Bujpuodsey | ‘sjuspiou) bujuosiod pooy
9 % ¥ ‘e Mjuoud ABajens Jo Jaqwinu sy} sacudwy o] JO pooYI9Y) 8y} eonpal
Ajlunwwios sjqeulesng :UB|d 22IAJ9S Juswadiojug | 0} JoLSIP 8Y) U sasiwald
‘Uy)eay |ji jo sasned Jofew MET P004 Jo uonejuswaldwi | pooj Ul spaepuels Ajejes
€ ® Z Huold s dohepy AIN/4Y | Wi uoijanpal ay) 0} 8inquiuoo o) pue juswdojsaag pooj} poob ainsus o)
Ajapoe ajeiodioo Aoy [ Jseoyjopeay| esoding [ Op (1M aM JeyM | seAl0alqo
__eajaleg Ajejes pood |
T - ‘salpuabe
|ELIDIXS PUB SSDIAIOS |IDUN0D
"£00¢ 19V Bujsuson 1210 Y)im UoneIoge||oD
ay} Japun Ajoyne ajqisuodsal
B Se 8|0J ay) Bupjeuspun Age sybiy |ebo e
'spJeoq sjuabe aje)sa Jo awwelboid 000BQO| e
uonessyijold sy) Yum bullesp Ag « Bujuies; e jo Aianep alojdxs o) S)iOMall] e
{vD0d) yom awno |oYoaly e
Jo spaasoud Buidojenep Ag « ‘sjonpoud ISOAIUY e
Sy apsunod pajoulsal abe yum pajeinosse
Jo ajes ay) buonpal Aq Ausdoid :Bujwissuod

|enjosjeiu Bunasiold Ag =
'sdnoif awoeou) mo| s|qessuinA
108101d 0} swa}l |eoujos|@
uo Buyyse) pue saseyaind 158}
Alajes |eowos|e 1no BulAiies Ag «

|oeyoIN.

BN

JNOJABYS] |BID0S-JUB 9oNpal 0]

"a|doad BunoA jo Buieq
-llem pue yjesy ay} sjowoid o)

saAljeniul 9 awwelboud
uonusaaIaiul paj-souab)ul
ue juswajdw) pue dojPaaq

se|es pejouisey aby

sjuawalnbal Ajajes jeaw

A3y} aInsua o} SUOISUB)Xa

Page 214



L1

OUM S|BWIUE PUB SISWNSU0D sucpuaAIsiul 2JNSUS 0] SUOHUBAIaJUI
ZSNN ‘jo uonoejold aunsud o) spooj |eBaj) pue papodw pneid pocd jo Ausalsg
‘safienbau "sBuyes jo Aedsip awaydg
LUpeay sanpaJ o) pooj Jelyiesy -sBuyel susiBAY pooy paysignd | @y} ebesnoous  Ajsanoeoxd Buney susibAH poo4
Jo uoisiroud sy Bupowoud Ag « ybnouy) pooy aseya:nd Jo jes | pue sbupes susibAy ysiand e — spsepuels aus|BAy
-598IN02 0} 2J3UyMm U0 sedjoyd pawojl | awayos Bunel susiBAY poo) pooy dn aaup o) Jemod
Bujujes) asnoy-ul o uonowo.d IN ayew o} ajqe siswnsuo) | 8pm ybnolog e ule)UIE] Jawnsuod Buissauiey
ay) uym AsuyoeH Ul sassaulsng — = = —
ay} Jo spasu Buuiesn
2y} 199l 0} pue sisjjew
A}@jes pooj Uo Ajunwuwos
ay) JO SJ0J0as ||B 0} UONEINPD
pue aainpe Buipinoid Ag «
‘syue|dwiod
JBWOISNY pue sjusplou]
poo} 0} Aj@jeuoipodold
pue Apjoinb Buipuodsal Ag «
‘syee.qino
sjebnsaaul o} pue Suluosiod
poo} pue aseasip SnNoNdsjul .
10 peauds ay) Buusasid Ag « -sAnERILI UopuoT-ued
Buiajoaul Ajaljoe Jusinpnely A peejiBUILEONELIOPLIIRS
Bundrusip pue Bunebissau; £
‘Buioajep ‘Buieiep A9« (1) niisoN 8|04 Aoue)nsuoy) ssaulsng
‘Ayenb e|01/1a ay} dojsasewwe.boud
JO aoUelsgns ‘ainjeu sy 0} | (97) aqeen Bujures) susibAy pood e
SE pes|SiL JoU 8l SISWNSUoD ue|] %eam Aiajes pood
1ey) os pejuasaud si pue soueldwod
sjustualnbal [euosodwod IN auaibAy pooj buiroidwi] e
pue Bujjleqe| sy@aw ybnoioq 1981)s UBiH ayj ul yljesH =
3y} Ul pajeyJeLl pue paynqLysIp ay SjuSLWHWIWOD)
‘paonpoud pooy Jey) aunsu Buusien AujjleaH e
0} sassauisng Yjim Bupiom Ag o ay pnel4 pood e

Page 215



81

"‘anuanal Buesauab Ag «

gu/IN

sessauIsng
0} saa1nles Joj abieyo o} gy

PARRNIUL S 80410
Aienlag uoneinbay Jeneg
se paysigelsa sdiysiauped

‘sJojejnba. Jo suopndasiad
ssauisng anoxdwi o

Sa0IAIoS
AojeinBal pue sassauisng
usamjaq enbojelp J1axaq 0]

‘'sassauIsng uo
suspng Asoje|nbas sonpal o)

‘palinbal se uolejuswnaop
paje|as uo Buisiapy
‘uoljejuawa|duy
jeuonesiuebio

pue AGajel}s apnjou

0} 'sjuswabuene Aiojeinbal
8] MaiAal pue JIpnyY

‘sjuswabueue Juswasbeuew

pue sJojoenuod s Auedwod
yoea jo |esielddy
‘pamainsl

aJe Aay) se saoioeid

pue sainpasoud ‘saloljod
Aiojejnbal s Auedwoo
yoea jo |esieiddy

"SSOIAIBS

2loW J0 3uo Jo Jpadse.

ul yuswasibe diysiauped
Aoyine Aewud

SU0 )SE8| JB e)euspun o]
‘Aojod (Oaug)

2010 Alenlag uoneinbay
Jayeg yim aduepioaoe

ul BuiBieyo pue Asaa)ep Joj
|ooojoid e Jo Juswdojpaag

sanss| Aiojenbal

uo a2IApe 10} e jo yjuod
111} ,SS2UISN] B SE 9AJSS
0} juswabuelle |ewlo}

v — (dvd) diysisuped
fpoyiny Aewiid

uone|sibe| A}1ajes pooj ypm
BuiAjdwos jou ssoiadwos Aq
pesneds abejueapesip JILIOoU0dd
wol} sassauisng Buposjoid Ag e
‘JUBLLIASI0JUS BANI8YS spiacsd
0} SOAN0SIgOo  UoWWOoD  Yypm
sapuabe pue sajuoyne |e20|

'S90IAIBS JaUJo ypm Bunpiom Ag =

KauyoeH ui paonpoud
Jo payddns ‘Jybnoq 1ayjie si
Jey} paa} J0 poo} 3WNsuUod Aew

*dnoJb spoo}

jeba) uopuc-ued peen
‘Ajuoyine uopuo 1o}
Buiwen yeaw |ebaj) tealep
0} uopuo 40 AiD ? VS 9y
uym Ajaanesoqe||od BupLopa
108f0l4 pnelq poo

papun} ys4 jo uojenuyuon

pooy4 sjqeulesns
pue Jaiyjjesay
‘Jajes J0 uolsiacld auy

Page 216



6T

9 @ ¢ '¢ Aysond ABajens

'ybnoioq sy} ulYyym sjuap|sal
a|qelauna Joj pejosjold
aJe sojadoid sinsus o)

‘pabuele
aJe s|eiauny ainsus o} adidsoy

Juswyedaq
jeba jusiuianog)
3U} 0} S8sed Jajoy o

‘pajosjoud sejpedoid
pue pabueue sjgisun)

10} paIBA028] aJB S]S02 aINsul o
‘panlaoal |euajal Jo shep

0L ulynm |ejidsoH UopBWoH
10 J|eyaq uo sayoless

Auadoid Aues ay) 0] abueLly «
‘|eusjal jo sAep

01 uiyym Auadoud uopoejold

‘Aem Ajpwiy

pue ajeuo|ssedwod

e ul uoneooje

ases uoposjosd Apadoud

Alunwwio? ajqeujesng (1 ay} pue sawoy uisinu ‘a1en Auadoud ysia o} sbueLy « pue juswanesiaq
sewoy) | [e10os JINPY 'SJ8d10 S J8U0I0D paAladal |eliajal Jo Syaam yoes ssasoud
L. ¢ % Z Aol s Jofew aulelon ~ siauped YiIm 3J0m 0 XIS UlyIm sjesauny sbuely « pue sbeueLw aseo o |
182130
b_>=u._“... ajetodioo Aey __pea] asoding Op [|1M @M JBYAM mm>_aum_no..

uonodsjo.d Apedoid pue yuswieeeleg

"sio)ejnbai

Asjes g yjeay Jeyjo

woJy saluedwod Agq psoey
sabua||eyo 0} puodssey e

-gofjoe.d jsaq pue uope|sibe)

KiojeinBaz ul sjuswdolaasp
mau uo saluedwod BuisiApy e

Page 217



98 ¢ ‘¢ LHaond ABejeng
Aunwwo) s|qeuleysng

ot

‘Aunwiwosd
ayy Jo spaau ayj Bupesw
80JAI8S 9)qIXa|} B apircid 0] e

siel)sibay Jno pue
WNIJOSUOD 8y} '18uoion)
8y} ypm uoiouniuod up
sainpasoud pue sassasold
Jo uawdojanap o}
anquueo pue Hoddns o) e

32JA13S SInoyY
Jo no ue Buiysiqeysa
spiemo) Buppop

sjuawaJinbai

sjoo0)0ud

asoding

_£@zAyoudsJofen | vy/dv
ViH Usund (B O] uuojuod
saojjoeid pue
‘SBI)IALOE JNO B Jey} 8Insua o e
‘Aem pajelbaju
UE Ul pue ‘A[2AjoaY8 Yiom
0] SNUJUOD OM JEU} 2INSUS O] »
99 p 'c Auond ABajeng aoas Ayjenb ybiy e apiacad
Aunwwos sjqeuselsng (V) 0} SNUIJUOD M JBY} 8INSUD O]
swepy "B0UNI Y1H JNC
¢ %9 Z [juongd s Johel | suusyiey UBJUIEW 9M JBU} 8INSUB O] *
lagyo -
Ajanoe sjesodion Aay pea’

‘uojjeslyiyas yyeep Bujpietal
salinbus Aue yjm 1SISSE 0]

(Aiwoyiny

anssi| UeWNH) v¥1H au}

Jo asodind ay) Joj pajeubisep
suosiad sejpe Ol *

salpoq 8y} jo uohedynusp!
ay) uj aojjod )siIsse 0

"Spuaiy
pue Ajwe} Aq peseadsp
ay) Jo sBuimeln a)euspun o] e
J2u0J0o7) auj Jo }sanbai sy}
18 swauow jsod Ino Alied 0] e

‘suopenBal y1 H jusund
Yim aul| w) a1e saonoeld

pue sainpasoid Alenjuouw
iIe 1ey) Bunsus

S9Ipoq paseadap

lie jo abelo)s ajes ay |

Op JliM 9M JeYM

mm>._.ﬂ..m.30

Aienyop ofiqnd

Page 218



TZ

pue suofesado paj-aousapine
pawsay) Bupjepspun Ag

9 9 ¢ ‘¢ Aioud ABajess
Aunuwwo) ajqeuieisng

‘abem wnwuiw ay) Jses|
1B Jo Juswded ay) ainsua
0) sloyJom pue siefojdws

0} SWedauod Joday "Bunouwen
uewny Jo subis buiniasqo

‘abem

wnwiuiw jeuoljeu ajowoud

0} seAljeniul pajahise) Jo Alensq e

'seale Auoud BuiAuspl

‘AawoeH ul abepp
WNWILIW |EUCHEN JO
925uBAIBSqO U0 Siauped
Upm siom pue ‘OHWH

¢ 9 Z ‘L Quold s jo0hel MM/ Yym ssaualeme osiel o) swwelboid e jo juswdoteasqg e O Ylom ay) poddns o
Aanoe ajesodioo Asy | J8oayjo pea asodind Op |IIM M Jeypr saAld3qo
Bupiiom diysisupred eagaey3
‘sajpusladwoo pue abpejmouy
‘8auaphuo9 Jey} Buiping Aq
Jje]S JIay) pue SI8UMo Ssaulsng S48p|oH 83U
JoYi0 pue poo} dojenag |[Buosiad 10} pIEMY Z [9ASTe
sajes pajaLlsay aby Juanald e
sanpqisuodsal 18y} pue JJom susfuajly pood ¢
e Alojes pue yeeH ‘AIBIES | | co el e el
pood spiebal ypm ssauisng Joj M } 4ES puE i M
Buipuejsiapun 1a}9q B aplA0ld |sre] Bubslen u) Ajejes poo- e
4 )
S9SSBUISNG | 1575 Bupsjes) ul Ajojes pood uoneledsid
uiyim saonoeld Aysjes pue pooj} 0} uojjelal
yyesH ‘Ajojes poo4 anoldw splepue)s Buisues|  ul Buisqjem pue yjesy
fyioud ABajens pue spsepuelg Buipe:] ‘yesH| ‘Alajes oqnd sinsus pue
fAunwwo? s|qeule}sng pue mej au} yim jueldwos [E]USLUUOIIAUT UO Sasseulsng Mme| ay) yum jueldwos
8Q 0} MOY WIZ8| 0} S8ssauIsng o) Buluiesy aAnosys 1509 ale Aay) jey) aJnsue
¢ 9 Z Ajdold s Johep Ha/N1 iayjo pue poo4 ajqeuy pue |eajoeid 'Aenb apiaold | o) sessauisng Hoddns o],
199140
Kjanoe ajesodiod Aa)| pea asodingd op ||1m M JEYA saAloeiqo

s@ssouIsng poo4 - anue) bujuies]

Page 219



(A4

sauiyosew Bunueb eba))
SSOUSIBME S0)Saqsy
Bupes AyyesH

poo) pepodwy

Ajebaj pue pnesq4 poo4
000BqO]

s Jo spasnnid
sbem wnuiuly Jeuonen

:(AjoAisnjoxa jou Inq)
o} Bunejas sisuped jeuis)xa
pue jeusjul Yyum saiiaoe

™

‘AawyoeH

u| spoob Jiepajunod

jo Ageliene ay)

aonpael 0] "Awouods ay)
pue siawnsuod josjoid 0}

aouendwod
-Uou AUE SSSIPPE [|IM PUE SHSIA
aoue|laans pa| souabieiul e

SpooSy
Jiepajunoy buiyoe

AN/MY/AEA/Ld

‘yjesy (|| U0 UOISSILUWOD
Aupniog AsuyoeH Ul Ujjeay
ay) woyy }sanbai e YNy o

Juswabeuew
pue |[0AU0D 8seasip
snoljoajul aaosdwil 0

"SBA|BUS SJa|IBjad WOl
Japio Jo 1abe) 1eaqg yjbuans
Jadns JO |eaOWwal AIBJUN|OA 31}
o} aweyos e jo uopejuswasjduw
alo|dxa 0} wea] yyeay

Jlland 8y} yim uoljesoqe|jjop e
‘dnoug
022eG0_ }olIl DN/3N [Euoibal

yim yiom diysiauped panujuo) e

Jow ale sjuswalnbal

jeBa| aunsua 0} {aoyjod

‘B+2) siauped Jayjo pue yyeaH

|EJUSWIUCIIAUT pue spiepue)s
Buipel] usemieq uoielogeljo) e

(eysiys ‘6-a) sease

jualayip w asiuadxs Buidojeasq

:Buipnjoul
S2INSEaW |O4U0D 0928G0)

pue asuel|dwos 8314 AHOWS =
suonaadsul

jusuwnesl) [elvadg pue afessep o
SaSBD saseasi(

snoijoaju| dn Moj|0) pUB MIINDY e

‘saljianoe
Jo swwelboud e dojanaQ

‘wieay-|
JO S8SNED U] UoNoNpalJ
ayj o} Bujnguiuo)

"Inoqe|
aAe|s pue Bupjoyjel) uewny
03 109lgns asoy) 109joid o)

‘wes | Buoiyes)
uewnH 2o1j0d uepodonapy

Page 220



EL

‘sanjenbaul

yjleay aaoiduwly 0} seiousbe
pue safnuoyine |eso| Jayjo
‘wea] ylesH d1qnd 8y} se
yons siauped yyum Bupjiom Ag

g B ¢ 'c Ajuoud Abajens
Ajunwwoy sjqeuielsng

(Bunieqe))

2861 10y uonoa0id
Jawinsuo? pue (sasiwe.d
pasojoue Ajenuelsqans)
900¢ 1oV Yljes Buiosojug

sanssi yjeay
ajjgnd asiaApe U uoljonpe.l
pue spiepuejs yjeay

paonponul 8q |)im swayos
Bune) susibAy ooye)
e J0 Juawdojanap aioldxy -
Jolid
ibuans Jadng, Aiejunjop -
109l0ud eysiys
Aouabe-jjnw salg sjowsg -
sajes |oyoole
Jo Buyiejal s|qisuodsay -
seafeniul Bunes AujesH -
sajeg pejoulisay aby -
02280} pue
joyosje jo seseyoind jsa] -
‘8) Ul Jyauaq Jo aq pinom
Jey) seaeRiul yyeay aygnd jo
uswdojaaap pue uonebisaau) e
(VYNSI) Juswssassy SpasN
oibajess Juior ay ojul indul

epuabe

yieey ongnds/buisgiiem
2 Ulesay Jepim

ay) ol indu s,12UN0H

£ g 2 Aluold sJohel | IN/rE/HQ/La oiignd poob jo uojjowold ejep aeudoidde BuluiejuiE * ay) 0) Bunpnquijuo)
Kianoe ajesodiod Aoy | J8diyo pean asodind Op JI1M 3aM Jeyp saAN23iqo
Bujeqliem pue yjesy
‘Aausden ul sesjwald ay) -sBop Jaylus Buysn sAep uoijoe
W0J} 0928G0) JB4BUNOCD 092eq0) 12}l OM] JO WNWUILL
10 JI0}|t dA0Wal 0} B N0 ALIBD ||IM WEea) 8Y] "Miom
ay | sl om sy jo esodind ay), j108loud jeuoiBar yum sjedioiped )JOM 020BqO )|

rm™M/av

‘aayos
UOIESIAIJUBIU] JUSWILIDAOE)
ay) Buisn Ayuoyine

[220] 8Y) OJu| Swodul

Buuq o) Bupjees swi) swes
BU) 1B I1S|IUM S[BUILWID WO}
Njauaq ay) aaowal 0) wie
sjojebiisaaul jejoueuly ay

"seljiAnoe 200¢C

10V 8L JO Spasdoid

10 Joadsal u| senoyne

|E20] JAYJ0 pue AsuxoeH

UIYNM S3DIAIBS UM

sanunuoddo diysieuped
Joj ueid e dojoAap 0] )jeag e

suolebisaaul |eoueuld

Page 221



v

yjjeay pue Ayajes aqnd ainsua
ssaupaledaid Buuiejuiew Ag

98 ¥ ‘¢ Aiolid ABajens
Alunwwon ajqeureysng

¢ 9 Z Ajloud s Johew

IN/HY

sasuodsal sinoy Jo IO
pue Buugd Aousbiawg

S)ESIQINO pUB SUO}EIYIIoU
aseasip 0} puodsay e
sassauIsng
Upm suoijuaAIaiul paj
aouabi|jeiul /peseq ¥su JoNpuo) e
‘ajeudolsdde se ‘sue|d }se] 0}
S9s10J9%a Jauped ul yed aye| e

"SYEaJqIN0 aseasip
pue sjuapiou| Ajajes
poo} ‘Sjuapiooe SnoLss
Buipnjoul ‘selouabiaws
o0} Bujpuodsey

"yjjeay ||l UC UOoISSILLIWOY
Aunniog AauoeH Ul yjesH
8y} woJjisanbal e ynj oL

‘Juswabeuvew
pue |0JjucD 3seasip
snooajul aAocldwl) o]

"SaAjaUS SJajiela) wol)
19p15 Jo Jabe)| ‘1eeq yibuans
Jadns Jo |BAowsl Alejunioh ay)
Jo} 8wayos e 4o uojeuawsidul
alo|dxa o0} wea] yjesy

olgnd 3yl Yiim ucjieloge)jo] e
‘dnolg) oooeqo
11l ON/IN jeuoiBas yyum

sydom diysisuped panuyuo) e
1w aJe sjuswsalnbal
|ebe| ansus 0} (da1j0d
-6'8) sisuped Jayjo pue yjjesH
[E]USLUUOJIAUT pUB SPJEPUBIS

Buipes) usamiaq UOIBICQE||0D e
(eysiys ‘6'a) seaue Jualayip

ul asiadxa Buidojgnag e
:Buipnpu
SaJnNseall [0JjJuod 092eqo)]

pue aouB||dWOod 8314 HOWS =
suonoadsul

jusuneal) |enadg pue abessep e

S8sed saseas|

snoNaaju| dn MO||0) PUB MBIASY e

:SalAloR
Jo sunueiboid e dojanag

‘Yesy
-{Il O S8SNED U| Uoildnpal
ay) o) Bupnquuoy

sinoped cope) ul susibAy
Buiaoidwil Jo Wie ay) yum

Page 222



=14

uatll: %001 (Buisuaoin) pajoadsu; sesiwasd ysu c.m__._ Jo abejuaniag
%001 %00} (spiepue)g Guipes) ) peyoadsu sesiweud ysu Ybiy jo abejusdsed
%9 0 "shep Buijiom
N 096 796 01 uiypm pauonoe sjuie/dwod Jawo)snossisanbal aoluses splepuelg buiped) jo sbejusased
(Ajuo Buiodeu) ‘sas|waid pooy pajeLun Jo JaquInN
(Buipen
%004 .-.nx,oov 124 jou sesiwaid pars)sihal Buipnjoxa) pajoadsul sasiwaid pooj pajelun jo abejusdisd
%08 %S4 ‘(amneinunooe)} susiBAY pooy Joj souel|dwos peoiq jo abejuanlad
9 0 ) ‘skep Bupjiom o)
}mm %56 LI PaUOIIO. SBSSaUISNY Poo) Inoge sjule|dwoo Jswnsuodysisanbal sonias jo abiejusdied
- o 'shep Bupjiom
%56 %56 0L UM pauonde sjulejdwod Jawojsnoysisanbal juswaalojus Buisusg) jo abejusdied
%06 %06 1sanbal jo sAep Buiyiom Q| uiypm pessasoid spungal yisodsp sAemybly jo abejusdiad
o 0 - ‘1senbal jo idiedal
%08 %08 wosy SABp Qg UIyIM panss| pue paulwssiep suopeslidde aouad)) sesiweld jo abejuadiad
3ebBie) /119102 jabie] 9L/51L0C Jojedlpu]
91./610Z — S10)edIpuU| 89UBLLIOLIA |B20T €£°¢
*SUOI}DB pue S}ISIA
%G/ V/IN ‘suonoadsul saoneg AlojeinBay Alsoyine |200] Uiim S48SN 8DIAISS JBI0 JO uoloeisyes

Jobie) /119102

13bie] gL/rL02

jue|dwoo ale SessauIsng 2JNsua 0) suoloe 970
‘sisin ‘suoiosdsul ssomnusg Alojeinbay Ajuouine |BJo] ypm sasssuisng Jo uopoejsnes EEEIENGTY

aweN Hoys |d  3poJ Id

L1/9L0Z — S10jea1pu| aouewiopad Aay yiesH ybnosog Z'¢

Page 223



9z

. UJON - 3 e l.ﬂa/)ll_ 0 W uepur sydos D loAepy Aindeq
& \ ,. w ’ QWM /l?\ﬁ\\% é u_._m_.:s wiy Jojoauq dnouo)

V / \ 5 \ 144 Alhe Leb — saolnleg Alojeinbay @ Buluueld
Jsybejen Ayien *10]08.1(] JUB]SISSY WLB)U|

m B _ & aj|ausiuo sukaly saoineg Auojeinbay jJo pesH
ajeq paubig aweN 9L

ue|d 83|A48S 8y} jo Yyo-ubis ¢

-pasnuioud usaq saey Jey) sjoslosd oiyoads Jaaep 0} pIEMIO) PBj[0] USaq BABY JBY) SBAISSEI L0 UMOP MEIP ||IM 80IAI8S 8y

G96'810°L3 £88'65P'L3 [EejoL
£St'6£93 161'8€93 yljeaH [ejuswiuoiiaig
005'63 005'93 u01199)0.)d Aadold pue juawusaeslag
19G6'0SE3 $2€'LGEF Asenuop AsuxoeH
£29'LLE3 80t'82r3 spiepue)ls Buipes]
8it'9L3 768'G23 Buisuso
(santosay
» sabieyoey "|oxa) 3 yebpng L1/19L0Z sabieyoay ‘joul Jebpng 91/51.02 saljua 3sod

2102 — 9102 19Bpng saoialag Alojenbay ¢

Page 224



Agenda Item 7

Draft Work Programme of the Corporate Committee 2017/18

13 July 2017 - Cancelled

TITLE DESCRIPTION DECISION GROUP
DIRECTOR

1 | HR Policy Review (if To Approve Tim Shields

required) (Dan Paul)

2 | Planning - Authority The AMR provides monitoring For Information Kim Wright
Monitoring Report 2016 information on spatial planning- | And Comment (lan Rae)

related activity for the financial
year 2016 to inform and monitor
policy development and
performance

30 October 2017

1 HR Policy Review (if To Approve Tim Shields

required) (Dan Paul)

2 | Pay Policy Review The Localism Act 2011 requires To Approve Tim Shields

2017/18 the Council to publish an annual (rescheduled from | (Dan Paul)
pay statement for Chief Officer December 2017)
Pay.

3 | Highways Obstruction and | A verbal report on the For Information Wayne
Enforcement (Tables and | enforcement action in relation to | And Comment Stephenson
Chairs) tables and chairs on the public

highway

12 December 2017

1 HR Policy Review (if To Approve Tim Shields

required) (Dan Paul)

2 Environmental The report sets out the annual For Information Kim Wright

Enforcement - Annual performance report across the And Comment Gerry
Assessment Of The environmental enforcement McCarthy/
Local ) remit for the 2015/16 financial (Deferred from Wayne
Environmental Quality year. October 2017) Stephenson
Enforcement Strategy
And Annual
Performance
Report 2016/17
3 | Regulatory Services The Food Law Enforcement | ForInformation Kim Wright
Update Service Plan (FLESP) is a| And Comment
statutory plan which sets out how
the Council will undertake
enforcement of food safety
legislation.
4 Planning - Authority The AMR provides monitoring For Information Kim Wright
Monitoring Report 2017 information on spatial planning- And Comment (lan Rae)

related activity for the financial
year 2017 to inform and monitor
policy development and
performance.

Page 225




26 March 2018

1 HR Policy Review (if To Approve Tim Shields
required) (Dan Paul)

2 | Annual Report Of The The annual report sets out the For Information Kim Wright
Community Safety Team | development of the Council’s And Comment
And Noise Nuisance response to noise nuisance.

3 Annual Review Of The Annual report on the DPPO/ For Information Kim Wright

Borough Wide
Designated Public Places
Order (DPPO)/ Public
Spaces Protection Order

Public Spaces Protection
Order.

And Comment

Page 226




	Agenda
	3 Consideration Of Minutes Of The Previous Meeting
	4 Revised Planning Sub-committee Procedure
	Revised PSC procedure V2 29.11.17 app 1

	5 Planning  Authority Monitoring Report 2017
	CDM-#18935837-v2-AMR_2016_-_DRAFT

	6 Regulatory Services - Regulatory Services' Service Plan Update
	corporatecommitteregservicesappendix1
	App2 CDM-#16941399-v10-FLESP_2016-17_v6
	app3 RS Regulatory Service Plan 201617 - Signed copy

	7 Work Programme 2017/18

